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Zero Coupon Bond of BDT 2,499 Million
for
Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Enginrers & Buiidery

Contact Information: Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level 7 & 10

71-72 Old Elephant Road, Eskaton Garden, Dhaka 1000

Issue Name: Mir Ak'hter Zero Coupon Bond
Type of Security: Non-convertible Fully Redeemable Zero Coupon Bond
Trustee: UCB Investment Limited

Total Face Value: BDT 2,499,000,000 \
Face Value of Each Bond: BDT 500,000 and Face Value of Each Lot of Bond: BDT 3,000,000
Bonds in Each Lot: 6, Number of Lot: 833, Number of Securities: 4,998
Issue Price of each Bond is Variable as it is ZCB and mentioned in Features of Bond
Issue Price of Each lot of Bond: BDT 2,487,130.63

Total Issue Price of the Bond: BDT 2,071,779,815*

* Calculated based on the Face Value of BDT 2,499 million of the Bonds and YTM of 7.0% p.a. The
approval from BSEC to be taken in a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to adopt any market change and to be
finalized based on market condition at the time of bond issuance.

Credit Rating status of the Issue:
Long Term Rating: A+
Credit Rating of the Issuer:
Long Term: AA- Short Term: ST-3
Credit Rating Agency: Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

Joint Lead Arranger

IDLC Investments Limited Prime Bank Limited
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Issue Date of IM: , 2022

“If you have any query about this document, you may consult the issuer or originator, issue manager and the
trustee”
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ARRANGER’S DISCLAIMER

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (the “Issuer”) has authorized IDLC Investments Limited (IDLCIL) and Prime
Bank Limited (the “Arranger” or "Arrangers”) to distribute this Information Memorandum in
connection with the proposed transaction outlined in it (the “Transaction”) and the bond proposed
to be issued in the Transaction (the “Bond”).

This Information Memorandum is provided to prospective investors on a private and confidential
basis for use solely in connection with the issue, offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase the
Zero Coupon Baonds. This Information Memorandum shall not be, in whole or in part, reproduced or
used for any other purpose without prior written consent of the Arranger.

The Issuer has prepared this Information Memorandum and the Issuer is solely responsible for its
contents. The Issuer will comply with all laws, rules and regulations and has obtained all regulatory,
governmental and corporate approvals for the issuance of the Bond. All the information contained in
this Information Memorandum has been provided by the Issuer or is from publicly available
information, and such information has not been independently verified by the Arranger. No
representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no responsibility or liability
is or will be accepted, by the Arranger or its affiliates for the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
correctness or fairness of this Information Memorandum or any of the information or opinions
contained therein, and the Arranger hereby expressly disclaim, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
any responsibility for the contents of this Information memorandum and any liability, whether arising
in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to or resulting from this Information Memorandum or any
information or errors contained therein or any omissions therefrom. By accepting this Information
Memorandum, you agree that the Arranger will not have any such liability.

You should carefully read and retain this Information Memorandum. However, you are not to
construe the contents of this Information Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory
or tax advice, and you should consult with your own advisors as to all legal, accounting, regulatory,
tax, financial and related matters concerning an investment in the Bond,
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ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of prospectus. The
issue of non-convertible zero coupon bonds is being made strictly on a private placement basis.
Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and
shall be treated as such. It does not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or an
invitation to subscribe to the bond issue to the public in general. Apart from this Information
Memorandum, no information memorandum or prospectus has been prepared in connection with
the offering of this issue.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared to provide general information about the issuer
to potential investors to whom it is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to the
bond issue. This Information Memorandum does not purport to contain all the information that any
potential investor may require. Neither does this Information Memorandum nor any other
information supplied in connection with the bond issue is intended to provide the basis of any credit
or other evaluation and any recipient of this Information Memorandum should not consider such
receipt a recommendation to purchase any bonds. Each potential investor contemplating the
purchase of any bonds should make his/her own independent investigation of the financial condition
and affairs of the issuer and his/her own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the issuer.

Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax, and other professional advisors as to
the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the bonds and should possess
the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the suitability of such investment to such
investor’s particular circumstances.

The information relating to the company contained in this Information Memorandum is believed by
the issuing company to be accurate in all respects as to the date hereof.

It is the responsibility of potential investors to also ensure that they will sell/transfer these Bonds in
strict accordance with this Information Memorandum and other applicable laws. None of the
intermediaries or their agents or advisors associated with this issue undertake to review the financial
condition or affairs of the issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this Information
Memorandum or have any responsibility to advise any investor or potential investor in the bonds of
any information available with or subsequently coming to the attention of the intermediaries, agents
or advisors.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained
or incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or in any material made available by
the issuer to any potential investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the issuer.

The contents of this Information Memorandum are intended to be used only by those potential

investors to whom it is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should
not be reproduced by the recipient.
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The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum shall maintain utmost confidentiality
regarding the contents of this Information Memorandum and shall not reproduce or distribute in
whole or part or make any announcement in public or to a third party regarding its contents, without
the prior written consent of the issuer till the time the Information Memorandum comes within public
domain. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a bondholder may provide this Information Memorandum
to a potential investor for the sole purpose of transferring the bonds.

Each person receiving this Information Memorandum acknowledges that:

= Such person has been afforded an opportunity to request and to review and has reviewed and
received this Information Memorandum and all additional information considered by an
individual to be necessary to verify the accuracy or to supplement the information herein; and

= Such person has not relied on any intermediary that may be associated with the issuance of
the bonds in connection with his/her investigation of the accuracy of such information or
his/her investment decision.

The issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum to reflect subsequent events
after the date of the Information Memarandum and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to
such subsequent events without first confirming its accuracy with the issuer. Neither the delivery of
this Information Memorandum nor any sale of bonds made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has been no change
in the affairs of the issuer since the date hereof.

This Infermation Memorandum does not constitute, not may it be used for or in connection with, an
offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized
or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken
to permit an offering of the bonds or the distribution of this Information Memorandum in any
jurisdiction where such action is required. The distribution of this Information Memorandum and the
offering and sale of the bonds may be restricted by law in certain jurisdiction. Persons into whose
possession this Information Memorandum comes are required to inform themselves about and to
observe any such restrictions.

4"L} [
Vir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director %__,_ﬂ_

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Parymal Kumer Sarker wd. Masbaus Sunnah
Chief Financial Officer “ompany Seqgptary
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CONTACT LisT

Issuer: Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

@ Prime Bank

wIDLC

Irvestmana. Limitad

Giiveniing fpppreess

Mr. Parymal Kumer Sarker, FCA

Chief Financial Officer

Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level 7 & 10
71-72 Old Elephant Road

Eskaton Garden, Dhaka 1000

Mobile: +8801777711616
E-mail: parymal.sarker@mirakhter.net

Mr. Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director & CEO
UCB Investment Limited
Bulus Center (17" Floor)
Plot-CWS-(A)-1, Road No. 34
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212
Phone: +880-2-55668070
Mobile: +8801927111555
Email: tanzim.alamgir@ucb.com.bd

Mr. Md. Moniruzzaman, CFA

Managing Director

IDLC Investments Limited

DR Tower (4" Floor)

65/2/2 Bir Protik Gazi Golam Dostogir Road
Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000

Phone: +8809609994352 Ext: 29101
Mobile: +8801730328813

E-mail: mzaman@idlc.com

\ger: Prime Bank Limited
Mr. Md. Shafiqul Islam
Head of Debt Capital Market
Prime Bank Limited
Simpletree Anarkali (Level 3)
89, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212
Phone: +880255068721 Ext: 371
Mobile: +8801819813588
E-mail: shafig.islam@primebank.com.bd

e: UCB Investment Limited

Phone: +880-2-55138529, +880-2-55138533-35

Ms. Kazi Sanjana Taufique
First Assistant Vice President

UCB Investment Limited

Bulus Center (17'" Floor)
Plot-CWS-(A)-1, Road No. 34
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212

Phone: +880-2-55668070

Mobile: +8801756009957

Email: sanjana.taufique@uch.com.bd

Mr. Mahmud-Ur-Rashid
Head of Investment Banking
IDLC Investments Limited
DR Tower (4™ Floor)
65/2/2 Bir Proik Gazi Golam Dostogir Road
Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000
Phone: +8809609994352
Mobile: +8801730738360
E-mail: mahmud@idlc.com

Mr. Mohsinul Hog Sumon

Senior Manager

Debt Capital Market

Prime Bank Limited

Simpletree Anarkali (Level 3)

89, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212
Phone: +880255068721 Ext: 628
Mobile: +8801730727298

E-mail: mhsumon@primebank.com.bd
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REPORT TO THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

Issuer has obtained information regarding Bangladesh and its economics from various government
publications and other sources. Although we believe that its sources are reliable, you should keep in
mind that it has not independently verified information it has obtained from industry and government
sources and information from its internal surveys has not been verified by any independent sources.
In addition, we have obtained information about the Trustee i.e. UCB Investment Limited from the
Trustee and do not accept any responsibility for the information contained in the section entitled “The
Trustee”. Further, we do not accept any responsibility for the information contained in the section
entitled “Credit Rating”. We are not making any representation to you concerning the accuracy or
completeness of the information contained in the section “The Trustee” or in the section “Credit
Rating” section.

The distribution of this Information Memorandum and the Offering is restricted only in Bangladesh. It
is not intended or make to offer or sale of the Bonds in any other jurisdiction. The Offerings will not
be offered to the public at large in Bangladesh, or outside Bangladesh,

We may withdraw this offering at any time, and we reserve the right to reject any offer to purchase
the Bonds in whole or in part and to sell to any prospective investor less than the full amount of the
Bonds sought by such investor.

We have obtained approval from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) for issue of
Bonds and the distribution of this Information Memorandum. Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission has given their consent to issue the Bonds through its letter No. dated [........cccceriiviennn]

———
Mir Nasir Hossain p
Managing Director arymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Messain Lid. Chief Financia| Officer Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain L1q. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SecTION I: RISK FACTORS AND MIANAGEMENT’S PERCEPTION ABOUT THE RISKS

a. Interest Rate Risks

As on June 30 2021, Mir Akhter had outstanding bank borrowing with several financial institutions
amounting to BDT 17,005 million. Interest rates on such loans ranges from 7% to 9% per annum.
Hence, the company is exposed to volatility of interest rates on its outstanding liabilities.

Management Perception

Mir Akhter is engaged in execution of construction projects which is long term in nature. The
company took long term loans to finance construction of these projects in line with the waork order
received. So, the loans are backed by the cash flow of these projects. As Mir Akhter is engaged in
large scale construction projects, the Company requires significant bank financing. To retain a
bargaining position, the company maintains relationship with several banks. Due to this bargaining
power, the company has been able to receive loans at an attractive rates. So, the management of
the company does not consider interest rate swing as a major risk.

b. Foreign Exchange Risks

Mir Akhter imports various construction materials and capital machineries from foreign countries
and makes payments in foreign currency. Most of its foreign currency transactions are settled in
US Dollars. Hence, any significant volatility in the exchange rate of Taka against US Dollar will
increase the volatility of the company’s cash flow and profitability.

Management Perception

From time to time, Mir Akhter imports various construction materials and capital machineries
from foreign countries and makes payments in foreign currency. The company also receives part
of its revenue in foreign currency. Hence, there is a natural hedge between this receipt and
payment. For last few years the exchange rate between USD and BDT are in a stable condition and
Bangladesh’s Foreign Exchange Reserve is increasing significantly which is pivotal for this exchange
rate stability. However, if the BDT appreciates or depreciates significantly, this will be a nationwide
phenomenon experienced by the whole industry.

c. Non-Repayment Risks (Credit Risks)

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any counter party to make required
payments in accordance with agreed terms and condition and/or deterioration of
creditworthiness.

Management Perception

All projects of Mir Akhter are backed by contracts and majority of the projects are government
projects. The company recognizes revenue based on these contracts. Thus, Mir Akhter does not
foresee any significant credit risk.

. . Sz e - Parymal Kumer Sarker
Strictly Privafgif (R481F H&€sain Chict Filiciat o «d Masbaus Sunnah
Managing Director Mir Akhtey Hossain Lid, .ompany Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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d. Prepayment, Call or Refunding Risks
Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the principal amount of a bond.

Management Perception
Since this is a zero-coupon bond, prepayment risk is not applicable here.

e. Security Risks

Security risk pertains from the adverse changes in the value of collaterals securing the investment
of the subscribers and it takes the worst turn in case of default situation.

Mitigation
Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is not going keep any asset as collateral. So the risk is not applicable
for this bond issuance.

f. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk refers to any company’s inability to meet its short term financial demand. If the
company fails to generate cash from its short term assets to pay short term liabilities as the
payment becomes due, liquidity risk arises.

Management Perception

As of June 30, 2021, Mir Akhter had BDT 7,673 million as current asset whereas the total current
liabilities stood at BDT 5,031 million. Hence, the current ratio of the company is very high which
provides evidence of strong liquidity position that should act as a safeguard against any potential
liquidity issues.

g. Management Risks

Management risk refers to the chance that management’s inefficiency or under performance
which will finally affect the shareholders. The bondholders may suffer financial losses in such an
event.

Management Perception

The management of Mir Akhter has significant experience in the construction industry. All the
teams of Mir Akhter are composed of qualified professionals. Absence of any of the team head
will not impact the business significantly as the other team members will take up the
responsibility. Moreover, the directors of Mir Akhter look after the business on a regular basis.
The managing director of the business provides overall guidance in regular business issues. Hence,
the absence of any key management personnel may not impact the business significantly.

h. Operational Risks

Business operation of the Company may be affected by strikes, work stoppages or increase in
wage demands by employees.

Management Perception

The Company always maintain a good relationship with all of its employees. The company believes
that employees are their main strength and the Company’s success immensely depends upon their
performance. The benefits received by the employees are also in line with other companies in the
industry. So, it is highly unlikely for the company to experience such event.

2
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i. Business Risks

The successful implementation of the project depends on availability of funds, infrastructural
facilities, weather conditions, labour and supply of raw materials within due time. Shortage of
fund or any other micro or macro-economic obstacles may expose the projects to completion risk.
Moreover, if the company fails to win projects, it may create obstacle for the existing business and
the future business as well.

Management Perception

Mir Akhter is an effective ‘One-stop Construction Management Service Provider’ in the country.
Majority of Mir Akhter’s clients are government bodies and renowned corporate entities. Hence,
the risk of not getting available funds and infrastructural facilities are very slim for Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited. The company also receives fund from bank through work-order financing, by
which loans are taken to finance specific construction projects. Besides, the company procures the
raw material from various sources and maintains a strong liaison with the suppliers. Weather
conditions sometimes affect the business of construction industry. During the rainy season, work
is somewhat affected in the overall construction sector but through careful planning Mir Akhter
performs a greater portion of work during the dry season to minimize seasonal impact.

j.  Industry Risks
Companies operating in the construction services industry will be affected if there is any adverse
changes in the industry.

Management Perception

As Bangladesh is progressing through phases of economic development, there is an increasing need
for construction services. Hence, the management does not foresee any significant industry related
risk over the short term period.

k. Market and Technology Related Risks

If there is any reduction of demand for construction services industry, businesses in the
construction sector will get affected.

Management Perception

The market for construction services is growing rapidly. As the economy is developing, there is an
increased demand for major construction projects. Existing construction services businesses will
also be affected for any major swing in technology that these businesses use. Although investment
in new technology might be costly, new technology may increase efficiency of the work.

I.  Risks related to potential or existing Government Regulations

If there is any significant change in existing government regulation, construction industry will be
affected.

Management Perception

Mir Akhter has a long history of working in the construction industry. As the economy of
Bangladesh is growing, there is an increased demand for construction services. The government of
Bangladesh has always been supportive to the industry. So, the management of Mir Akhter does
not foresee any changes in regulation that will negatively impact the landscape of the construction

industry.
B o
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m. Risks related to potential changes in Global or National Policies
Risk associated with any potential changes in global issues or a change in national policy may affect
the business and industry as well.

Management Perception

Any changes in the global and national policy will affect the industry as a whole. Due to significant
financial and operational strength of the company, Mir Akhter is in a better position to withstand
any adverse changes in global or national policies.

.J\__)M__g____} &‘—’—i—.

Mir Nasir Hossain Pafymal Kumer Sarker Md-Masbaus Sunnah

Managing Director C"_’"ef Financial Officar Company Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. it Akhtar Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SecTion I1: DETAILED DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION

Detailed description and information as per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
[Debt Securities) Rules, 2021; Schedule- A (Part | and Part 1) is as follows -

A. Particulars of Issuer/ Originator:

(a) | Name ' - | Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

(b) legalStatus | PublicLimited Company i
| i Red Crescent Borak Tower
' | Level 7 & 10

(c) | Details of contact information 71-72 Old Elephant Road

Eskaton Garden, Dhaka 1000

Phone: +880-2-55138529, +880-2-55138533-35
July 18, 1980 {mcorporated asa prlvate limited

| company) _
| July 18, 1980; |n1t|aliy the company commenced

(d) | Date of incorporation

“_3_}_ Date_of_ corfwme_nc_sj-.ﬁtent Of__bl_‘smess_ | Its business as partnership firm in 1968
_(f) | Authorized capital (as on date) | BDT2,000000000
_(g) | Paid-up capital (as on date) ] BDT 1 2(}7__715 470
(h) | | Total Equity {as on June 30, 2021) BDT 5 ,555,652,136
(i) Total Liabilities {as on June 30 2021} | BDT17,162,036,756
Q) | Total financial obllgatlons (as on June 30 | BDT 17,162,036,756
.| 2021) [
{k) To_t_e_:_f_@s_s__ets {as on June 30 2021) BDT 22,721,014,868 - . o
n Total Tangible Assets tas on June 30 2021} | BDT 22,721,014,868
(m) | Networth (asonJune 30,2021) | BDT5555652,136

2. Particulars of issue manager:
Not applicable as the issue will be private placed.

3. Particulars of the issue:

(a) Name s ......... erAkhterZeroCoupon Bond
(b) . TypeofInstrument | Non-Convertible Zero Coupon Bond
(c) | Purpose of the issue The proceeds of the Zero-Coupon Bonds shall

be used for the following:
¢ Working Capital Investment
» Refinancing a portion of existing

| liabilities e L S
(d) ' Number of securities and total size of the | Number of Securities: 4 998
| issue Face value of each Lot: BDT 3,000,000

Issue Price of each Lot: BDT 2,487,130.63

Total Issue Size (Face Value): BDT
| 2,499,000,000
i Total Dascounted Price: BDT 2,071,799,815
ace value of each Bond: BDT 500 000

(e) | Face value and issue price of securities

Pa Ku
umer Sarker
: ; Mir Officer Md. Masbas
strictly AdisdNasio Hossain Akhter Hossak g Eamosiy Secretfr';""ah

Managing Birector
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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' ‘ - R ' '__lr Issue Price of each Bond: Issue Price of each
' Bond is Variable as it is ZCB and mentioned in
| = B e, . Features of Bond
(f) | Coupon rate/discount rate and YTM 7.00%*

‘ *the approval from BSEC to be taken in a range
f ' of 7% p.a.— 9% p.a. to adopt any market change
and to be finalized based on market condition

. at the time of bond issuance

{B) Tenor{Maturlty 4 (four) years from the Issue Date

(h) | Details of converswnfexchange optlon No conversion feature
..................... | features o A0 e

(i) | Mode of redemption ' Structured in a way so the issue redeemed in 6

| equal instalments starting from the end of the

i 18th month from the issue date and each 6-

ik _________ months thereafter

) 1 Mode of optton (call or put) - | Not Applicable
(k) | Rate of return 7.00%*

| *the approval from BSEC to be taken in a range
' of 7% p.a.—9% p.a. to adopt any market change
" and to be finalized based on market condition
N at the time of bond issuance

(1) | Apr : - _Asapplicable

(m) | Default protection mechanism " Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the

security as follows -
| Any/all of the following but not limited to:
! e Bank Guarantee by any reputed
scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;
* Personal Guarantee of all the Directors
of the Issuer;
; e Corporate Guarantee from one of the
| _ major sister concerns of the issuer
"{n}' ! Type of collateral securities bemg offered Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the
' | securities for the subscribers as follows -
' Any/all of the following but not limited to:

e Bank Guarantee by any reputed
scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;
e Personal Guarantee of all the Directors
of the Issuer;
e Corporate Guarantee from one of the
major sister concerns Of the ISSUEI'
(0) e secur|t|é_sai'.l‘.(.)"|.aé-|:§ ................................................... =i appﬁca e
(__p}_____ _Penod within which securities to be issued _6 Months from the date of BSEC approval

(q) Nature of tradablllty of listing in the stock Expected to be private placement in demat

exchange(s) form. -
(r) [Others N/A
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4. Particulars of the trustee:

| UCB Investment Limited

_(a) | Name | UCB Investment Limited
BDT 250,000,000* as on December 31, 2020

(b) | Paid-up capital

| *Paid-up capital has been increased to BDT
| — B  1,000,000,000 as on 13 July 2021. .
c et wort ,194, as on December 31,

N h BDT 312,194,085 as on December 31, 2020

(d) | Name of thglssue(s} perfo_rming as a 1. BDT 3,000 million of NRBC Bank

trustee i Subordinated Bond-1
| 2. BDT 5,000 million of Bank Asia Perpetual
| Bond
3. BDT 5,000 million of Mercantile Bank
| o .| Perpetual Bond
(e) | Others e L v

5. Particulars of the credit rating company:

{a)  Name i - - _!._C_re_di_t_l}ating Ipformation_ﬁﬁ_d Services Limited
(b) | Credit rating status of the issuer = AA-

(c) | Creditratingstatusoftheissue A+ o
(d) Date and validity of rating along with Rating Date: 26.12.2021
' surveillance rating for the issuer oréVaIidiw:25.12.2022

__ originator and for the issue

(o) |Latestdefaultrate  [069%

(f) ' Average time to default of the rated Not applicable

_ category |

(g) | Ratingtrigger, ifany | Notapplicable -
(h) _ Others = Notapplicable

6. Particulars of originators, if any:
Not Applicable

7. Particulars of other contractual parties:
Not Applicable

/L""s b K>
Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
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SecTION I11: DETAILS PLAN OF THE UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has applied to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission for
issuance of zero coupon bond amounting to BDT 2,499 million in face value. The company is expected
to raise BDT 2,071,779,815 at 7% discount rate through private placement.

Out of the total proceeds of BDT 2,071 million, the company will restructure a portion of short term
liabilities amounting to BDT 1,657 million. The management of the company will restructure the high
cost bearing liabilities considering the market scenario. The details of use of proceeds is as follows —

sl‘-_.: = : 0 m: _”’ﬂwg@ By ._. ' :;;__ : T m

1. Restructuring a portion of existing liabilities 1,657,423,852

2. | Working capital 414,355,963
 Total 1 2,071,779,815

The abovementioned loan was taken at 9% interest rate per annum. The repayment of loan through
proceeds of bond will (i) convert the loan into long term in nature, (ii) help the company to save 2%
interest rate per annum, (iii) also help the company to match the liabilities with assets which are
predominantly long term in nature.

Additionally, Mir Akhter Hossain Limited will use part of the funds as working capital to pay suppliers,
where on average price discount of 5% can be received.

b
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SECTION IV: FEATURES OF THE DEBT SECURITY TO BE ISSUED

Basic Features of the Instrument

Issuer: Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (MAHL)
The Issue: BDT 2,499 million Non-Convertible Zero Coupon Bond
] = IDLC Investments Limited (“IDLCIL”) and

SOHE ST NN Prime Bank Limited

Arrangement Basis: Best Efforts / Strictly Non Underwritten
To meet the requirement for refinancing of the existing liabilities and

Purpose: working capital management through alternative financing
solutions.

Banks, Corporate Houses, Insurance Companies, NBFl's, Asset

Investors: Management Firms, Mutual Funds, Merchant Banks and High Net
Worth Individuals etc.

Currency: Bangladeshi Taka (BDT)

Total Face Value: BDT 2,499 million

' Total Discounted Value: BDT 2,072 million

Denomination of Each Bond: BDT 500,000

Bond in Each Lot: 6

Denomination Per Lot: BDT 3,000,000

Mode of Placement: Private Placement
7.00%*

Discount Rate: *the approval from BSEC to be taken in a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a.
to adopt any market change and to be finalized based on market
condition at the time of bond issuance
Structured in a way so the issue redeemed in 6 equal instalments

Redemption: starting from the end of the 18th month from the issue date and
each 6-months thereafter
To be redeemed in 6 Instalments starting from end of 18" month

208 s for fack Dooeh from the issue date and each 6 months from thereafter

Maturity: 4 (Four) years from the Issue Date
A Subscriber shall have the right to freely transfer, novate or assign

Transferability/ Uqul_dltv: all or a portion of its rights and obligations under the Subscription
Agreement.

ment, Call, Refunding, The issue crannot be prepaid or refunded unless otherwise agreed by
pay Bt " Issuer and investors. . .
Also there is no conversion features in the bond
Cal e par cqeat i : Not Applicable
premium or discount thereof
e e
umer S
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Company Secretary
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Any/all of the following but not limited to:
e Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in

Bangladesh;
for the subscribers of the ' .
e Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;

e Corporate Guarantee from one of the major sister concerns
of the issuer

Form: 0 Registered

Credit Rating of the Issuer Long Term: AA-, Short Term: ST-3

Credit Rating of the Issue: A+

Truston, Traosier Agunt; UCB Investment Limited
nvestment Limite

Paying Agent and Registrar '

Legal Counsel e Farooq & Associates

To be redeemed in 6 equal Instalments starting from end of 18th month
from the Issue Date and each 6 months thereafter as depicted below for
each lot of bond:

Modoe | Meew | wmor | Tmawr |
1 6
—— .............................. s S ‘__ et
3 7 375659137 | 416,500,000
e o | |
Schedule: | s | o | woemss [ assoo |
i 6 36 338,823,018 = 416,500,000 |
= = -y _ T
e B | e | |
;_—_' | 207779815 | 2,499,000,000
- Calculated based on 7% p.a. The approval from BSEC to be taken in
a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to adopt any market change and to be
finalized based on market condition at the time of bond issuance.
NN it e et e of the 200 Coupon Bond and be
BSEC (Debt Securities) Rules . z
2021: o payable on the amount not paid on the due date up till the date of

actual payment.

Tax Features: ~ Taxable as per laws of the country

Total of Arrangement fee, “Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar,
Transfer Agent fee” (for 4 years), Bond Rating fee, & Legal Counsel
Fee: BDT 15 million (approx.)

Application Fee of Bond to BSEC: BDT 10,000

Costyraiatod ToX SSUK: Consent Fee of Bond BSEC: 0.10% on the total face value
Trustee Application Fee: BDT 50,000
Trustee Consent Fee: BDT 100,000
. Annual Trustee Fee to BSEC (4 years): BDT 200,000
Documentation: ¢ Bond Subscription Agreement
10
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e Trust Deed
e Agency Agreement
e Any other instrument(s) relating to such transaction

(i) documentation for the Financing and appropriate business

In form and substance satisfactory to the MLA including without
limitation: (i) due diligence having been conducted and completed,

description disclosure in the offering circular, (iii) receipt by the MLA
of appropriate legal opinions from external counsel, (iv) the Issuer
having obtained all relevant approvals for the financing.

Governing Law:

" The Laws of The People’s Republic of Bangladesh

Enhancement/Guarantee Bangladesh;

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the securities for the
subscribers as follows -
~ Any/all of the following but not limited to:
e Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in

* Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;
¢ Corporate Guarantee from one of the major sister concerns
of the issuer

Enforcement of Ch
Securities:

arges over

At any time after the bonds have become due and repayable, the
Trustee may, at its sole discretion and without further notice in
writing, take such proceedings against the Issuer as it may think fit
to enforce repayment of the bonds and to enforce the provision of
the Trust Deed, but it will not be bound to take any such proceedings
unless (a) it shall have been so requested in writing by the holders of
not less than 662/3 percent in principal amount of the bonds than
outstanding or shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution of the Bondholders and (b) it shall have been indemnified
and/or secured to its satisfaction. No bondholder will be entitled to
proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Trustee, having
become bound to do so, fails to do so within a reasonable period and
such failure shall be continuing.

Listing Status

Unlisted

A
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SECTION V: DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL SECURITY AND TYPE OF CHARGES TO BE CREATED
AGAINST ISSUE

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the securities for the subscribers as follows -

Any/all of the following but not limited to:
e Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;
* Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;
e Corporate Guarantee from one of the major sister concerns of the issuer

The issuer only owes the bondholders an indebtedness which is secured by claims over all present and
future assets of the issuer subsequent to all secured lenders/investors.

<'}'\—5qu d&~—-—"“)-—

Mir Nasir Hossain E:T’:T'fm”mel erSaﬁrlt: ': Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Managmg Director Mir Akhter Hossain Lid Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hessain Ltd. ) Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SECTION VI: RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER

General Covenants by the Issuer: The Bonds shall be issued in registered and unlisted form and Issuer
shall comply with the provisions of the Trust Deed and shall be bound by it.

As long as any of the Bonds remains outstanding or any amount is outstanding to the Trustee or any
Bondholder under any Bond Document, the Issuer undertakes to each of the Trustee and the
Bondholders that it shall comply with the following conditions namely:

¢ To refrain from substantially changing its general nature of the business;

e To refrain from entering into any transaction, agreement or arrangement with any of
its Affiliates other than on arm’s length basis;

e To promptly obtain any Authorisation required under any law or regulation of its
jurisdiction of incorporation to enable it to perform its obligations under the Bond
Documents and comply with them fully as and when required by the Trustee;

* To comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

e To shall maintain insurances on and in relation to its business and assets with
reputable underwriters or insurance companies;

s To be duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction;

o The Issuer shall duly and punctually follow the prevailing rules and regulations of
taxation.

e To maintain books and records (with respect to itself and its business) in the
manner described in the Trust Deed;

e To promptly do all such acts or execute all such documents as the Trustee may
reasonably specify for the exercise of any rights powers and remedies of the Trustee
provided by or pursuant to the Bond Documents or by law on a best efforts basis and
to the extent permitted by applicable laws;

* To refrain from being a creditor in respect of any Financial Indebtedness except in
ordinary course of business;

e To refrain from incurring or allowing to remain outstanding any guarantee or
otherwise voluntarily assume any liability except for any guarantee under any Bond
Document or any guarantee in the ordinary course of business consistent with its
current practice;

e To provide such information and within such period of time as specified in the Trust
Deed;

Corporate Covenant: The Issuer shall all times carry on and conduct its affairs in a proper and
efficient manner in compliance with any requirement of law from time to time in force in Bangladesh
and in compliance with its and in compliance with its Memorandum and Articles of Association save
where failure to do so would not constitute a Materials Adverse Effect.

Consents: The Issuer shall obtain and comply with the terms of all authorisations, approvals,
licences and consents necessary under any Law in connection with its business.

O
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Authorised Signatories: The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee upon execution of this Deed and
thereafter upon any change of the same, a list of Authorised Signatories of the Issuer together with a
specimen signature of each Authorised Signatory.

Financial Statements: The Issuer shall prepare in respect of each financial years, financial
statements and provide the same to the Trustee in such form and manner as described in the Trust
Deed.

General Negative Covenants: The Issuer shall not until after the final Maturity Date, save to the extent
permitted by or contemplated by Applicable Law or with the prior written consent of the Trustee:

e grant, create or permit to exist any encumbrance over (including the grant of security
or trust over or the occurrence of execution or diligence in respect of) its assets which
shall reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

e Consolidate or merge with any other person.

e Permit the validity or effectiveness of the transaction documents to be impaired or to
be amended, hypothecated, subordinated, terminated or discharged.

Dealing with Trustee: The Issuer shall upon reasonable notice, during normal business hours allow
the Trustee and any persons appointed by the Trustee access to such books of account and other
business records as relate to the assigned rights or the benefit of the assigned rights as the Trustee or
any such persons may reasonably require.

Information to Trustee: So far as permitted by applicable law and subject to any binding
confidentiality restrictions, the Issuer shall give to the Trustee such information, opinions, certificates
and other evidence as the trustee and any persons appointed by the Trustee shall reasonably require
for the purposes of the discharge of the duties, trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in
the Trustee by or pursuant to the Trust Deed or any other Transaction Document.

Execution of Further Documents: The Issuer shall, so far as permitted by applicable law and
regulatory requirements, execute all such further documents and do all such further acted and things
as the Trustee (acting reasonably) may consider to be necessary at the time to give effect to the terms
of the relevant Transaction Documents.

Notification of Event Default: The Issuer shall deliver notice to the Trustee forthwith upon
becoming aware of any Event of Default without waiting for the Trustee to take any further action.

No Variation and Termination of Transaction Documents: The Issuer shall not until the final
Maturity Date, save to the extent permitted by the Transaction Documents or with the prior written
consent of the Trustee (a) terminate any Transaction Documents, (b) vary any provision of any
Transaction Document (c) permit any person who has obligations under the Transaction Document to
be released from such obligations other than in accordance with the terms of the applicable
Transaction Document and any applicable requirement of law or regulatory direction.
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Filings: The Issuer shall effect all required filings in respect of the Issuer and file, record or enrol each
Transaction Document required to be filed, recorded or enrolled with any court or other authority in
Bangladesh and ensure that such required filings, recordings or enralments are maintained in
accordance with any applicable requirement of law or regulatory direction at all times.

Payments: The Issuer shall pay moneys payable by it to the Trustee under this Trust Deed without set
off, counterclaim, deduction or withholding, unless otherwise compelled by law.

Notices to Bondholders: The Issuer shall send or procure to be sent (not less than three days prior to
the date of publication) to the Trustee, for the Trustee’s approval, one copy of each notice to be given
to the Bondholders in accordance with the Trust Deed and not publish such notice without such
approval and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such notice.

Notification of Non-Payments: The Issuer shall use reasonable endeavours to notify the Trustee
forthwith in the event of non-payment of the full amount within due date.

Notification of Late Payment: The Issuer shall forthwith give notice to the Bondholders through the
Trustee of payments of any sum due in respect of the Bonds, made after their due date to the Trustee.

Non-Listing of Bonds in the Stock Exchanges: The Issuer hereby covenants that the bonds will be
issued in registered and unlisted form. It may be listed if required by BSEC.

Notification of Tax Deduction: The Issuer shall promptly give notice to the Trustee

a) ifitis required by law to effect a deduction or withholding of Tax in respect of any
payment due in respect of any Bonds.

b) and in such cases take such action as may be required by the Trustee acting
reasonable in respect thereof.

Consolidation, Amalgamation or Merger: The Issuer will not consolidate with, merge or amalgamate
into or transfer its assets substantially as an entirety to any company or convey or transfer its
properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any person (the consummation of any such event,
a "Merger").

Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal K
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SecTion VII: RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE TRUSTEE

Duties and Powers of the Trustee: The Trustee has the following duties and powers in connection
with the Trust:

e to act on behalf and for the exclusive interest of the investors;

e to ensure compliance of the issuer as per the requirements of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;

e to monitor timely payment of all dues of the issuer to the investors in terms of the IM or other
terms and conditions of the issue of securities under Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;

e to ensure creation of charges by the issuer over collateral securities and obtaining other
securities or guarantees in favor of the trustee;

e to enforce its rights, over the credit enhancement or collateral securities and other securities
or guarantees when it is necessary to do;

e call the investors’ meeting and enforce the decisions within such time of any default or any
act of the issuer which may affect the interest of the investors as specified in the deed of trust
and in the IM;

e delay in payment of any dues by the issuer, which is not approved by the trustee shall be
treated as final default, in such a case the trustee shall enforce its rights over the credit
enhancement or collateral securities and other securities or guarantees of the issuer
observing due legal process and thereafter the trustee shall dispose-off the same to pay the
proceeds proportionately to the investors after deduction of costs related thereto;

e in case the delay is approved by the trustee for a certain period upon any reasonable ground,
the trustee shall ensure repayment of the dues within the approved delay period along with
interest for the delay period at a rate of 2% (two percent) per annum above the usual rate of
return of the debt instrument;

e in case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger) of the issue under
surveillance rating, the trustee shall ensure the collection of risk premium from the issuer or
originator for the investors as per declaration in the deed of trust or IM, aimed at securing the
lender claims from the borrower's higher risk level;

e the trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission regarding the
activities of the issuer including repayment of dues to the investors;

* the trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors within one
month of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the Commission informed about
the number, nature and other particulars of the complaints received and the manner in which
such complaints have been redressed;

e the trustee shall be liable to sue or to be sued on behalf of the investors:

Provided that if any loss incurred due to negligence of trustee in case of litigation or recovery
process, the trustee shall bear the loss;

s the trustee may, if required, inspect or call for books of accounts, records, registers of the
issuers and the trust property to the extent necessary for discharging its obligation.
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Covenant to repay: The Trustee is entitled to have the Issuer unconditionally pay or procure to be
paid to or to the order of the Trustee in Taka in freely transferable funds for value the relevant due
date for payment of the principal amount of the Bonds or any of them becoming due for redemption
or repayment on that date and shall until all such payments are duly made unconditionally pay or
procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the dates provided for in the Trust
Deed, or any of them outstanding from time to time as set out in the Trust Deed.

Reliance on information: The Trustee may in relation to the Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice
of or a certificate or any information obtained from any lawyer or other experts and shall not be
responsible for any Liability occasioned by so acting;

Certificate of directors or Authorised Signatories: The Trustee may call for a certificate signed by two
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or other person duly authorised as to any fact or matter prima
facie within the knowledge of the Issuer as sufficient evidence thereof. The Trustee shall not be bound
in any such case to call for further evidence or be responsible for any Liability that may be occasioned
by its failing so to do;

Resolution or direction of Bondholders: If there was some defect in the constitution of the meeting
or if the resolution or direction made by the meeting of the bondholders is not valid or binding for
some defect, the Trustee will not be held responsible provided it has acted in good faith.

Bondholders as a class: In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities
and discretions, the Trustee shall have regard to the general interests of the Bondholders as a class.

No obligation to monitor or investigate: The Trustee is under no obligation to monitor or supervise
the functions of any other person under the Bonds or any other agreement or document relating to
the transactions herein. In the absence of actual knowledge of a breach of obligation the Trustee may
assume that each such person is properly performing and complying with its obligations. Similarly, the
Trustee is under no obligation to investigate Bonds or other agreement or documents to that effect.

Bonds held by the Issuer: In the absence of actual knowledge or express notice to the contrary, the
Trustee may assume without enquiry (other than requesting a certificate of the Issuer), that no Bonds
are for the time being held by or for the benefit of the Issuer or any of its Affiliates;

Events of Default: The Trustee shall not be bound to give notice to any person of the execution of the
Trust Deed or to take any steps to ascertain whether any Default or Event of Default has happened
and, until it shall have actual knowledge or express notice to the contrary.

Right to deduct or withhold for taxes: Deduction or withholding of tax will be as per prevailing law of
the land.

Error of judgment: Trustee has no liability for error of judgment made in good faith.

Mir Nasir Hossain =l mal Kumer Sarker M3 MasHaus Sunnah
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No responsibility for loss: The Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss incurred by bondholders
subject to any applicable laws or regulations except for its Trustee's own gross negligence, wilful
default or fraud.

Force Majeure: The Trustee shall not be liable for Force Majeure.

Immunities: The Trustee's immunities and protections from liability and its right to indemnification
extend to its officers, directors and employees and it's successors upon resignation and replacement.
The Issuer will not be entitled to claim for itself or any of its assets immunity from suit, execution,
attachment or other legal process.

Trustee's determination: The Trustee may determine whether or not a default in the performance by
the Issuer of any obligation under the provisions is capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to
the interests of the Bondholders. If the Trustee certifies that any such default is not capable of remedy
and/or materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders, such certificate shall be conclusive
and binding upon the Issuer and the Bondholders subject to conditions as specified in the Trust Deed.

Application of proceeds: The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the
Issuer of the proceeds of the issue of the Bonds or the delivery of any Bond Certificate to the persons
entitled to it;

Delegation: The Trustee may, with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, whether by power of
attorney or otherwise, delegate to any person or persons or fluctuating body of persons all or any of
the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by the Trust Deed and any such delegation
may be made upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations (including power to
sub-delegate with the consent of the Trustee) as the Trustee may think fit in the interests of the
Bondholder. The Trustee is required to exercise reasonable care in the selection of any such
Appointee,

Agents: Subject to the provisions of the Trust Act 1882, the Trustee may, with the prior consent in
writing of the Issuer, employ agents to conduct its duties in accordance with Trust Deed on its behalf.

Confidential information: The Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so to do by a court
of competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder any confidential information
(financial or otherwise) made available to the Trustee by the Issuer or any other person in connection
with the Trust Deed.

Professional charges: Any trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged in any
profession or business shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual professional and other
charges for business transacted and acts done by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in
connection with the trusts and also his incurred charges in addition to disbursements for all other
work and business done and all time spent by him or his partner or firm on matters arising
in connection with the Trust Deed, including matters which might or should have been attended to in
person by a trustee not being a banker, lawyer, broker or other professional person.
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Expenditure by the Trustee: The Trustee is not obliged to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise
incur any financial liability in the performance of its duties if it has grounds for believing the repayment
(if approved by the issuer) of such funds or adequate indemnity against, or security for, such risk or
liability is not assured to it.

Restriction on financial transactions with the Issuer: The Trustee and its directors and officers shall
be precluded from making any contracts or entering into any transactions (“Other Business) with the
Issuer which would place its fiduciary duties towards the Bondholders in conflict with its rights and
obligations in such Other Business.

Trustee liable for gross negligence: Trustee shall be liable for gross negligence in the performance of
its duties under the Trust Deed.

Exercise of Discretion: Unless provided to the contrary in the Trust Deed, the Trustee shall not be
obliged to exercise or consider exercising any discretion or consider making or make any
determination or to consider taking or take any action whatsoever in connection with or under or
pursuant to the Bonds unless directed to do so by the holders of not less than 66 2/3 percent in
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution and
the Trustee will not be responsible for any loss, expense, damage, claim, cost, charge or liability which
may be suffered as a result thereof.

Trustee’s Obligation for Requesting Compliance Certificates: The Trustee shall have no responsibility
for requesting Compliance Certificates unless the Issuer has failed to deliver such certificates in
accordance with (Terms of Appointment) or the Trustee is requested to do so by any Bondholder.

Modification and Waiver: The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Bondholders, to (i) any
modification (except as mentioned in Amendment Provisions of Trust Deed) to, or the waiver or
authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any terms of the Trust Deed which is not materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders or (ii) any modification to the Bonds or the Trust Deed
which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or to correct a manifest error or to comply with
mandatory provisions of law. Any such modification, waiver or authorisation will be binding on the
Bondholders and, unless the Trustee agrees otherwise, any such modifications will be notified by the
Trustee to the Bondholders as soon as practicable thereafter.

Interests of Bondholders: The Trustee shall have regard to the interests of the Bondholders as a class

and not individuals in the exercise of its duties under this Deed.
|
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SECTION VIII: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUE MANAGER, UNDERWRITER, OR ANY

OTHER CONTRACTUAL PARTIES,;
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As the mode of placement is private placement, no issue manager/underwriter is applicable.

e
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Managing Director
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SecTiON IX: RIGHTS, DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE INVESTORS

Binding Obligation: Investors/bondholders are required to enter into a Subscription Agreement with
the Issuer and be bound by the terms and conditions of that agreement.

Severability of Bondholder’s Obligations: The failure to perform obligations of the Bondholders under
the Subscription Agreement and other agreements with identical terms shall not affect the obligations
of the Issuer towards any other Bondholder(s) under other identical agreements.

Individual Right: Each Bondholder will be entitled to protect and enforce its individual rights
independently without the need for other Bondholder(s) to be joined as additional party in such
proceedings for such purpose.

Powers: The Bondholders shall be able to hold meetings with such power and scope as provided for
in the Trust Deed.

Issue Bond Certificates: Issuer shall duly execute and deliver bond certificates to the bondholders with
conditions attached.

Subscription: The Investors will subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price on the Closing Date
for the allocation, in Bangladesh Taka for same day value to such account as the Issuer designates,
subject to the provisions of the Subscription Agreement.

Compliance: The Bondholder(s) are obligated to comply with all applicable laws and regulations of
Bangladesh.

Indemnity: The Issuer shall fully indemnify the Bondholder(s) from and against any expense, loss,
damage or liability which any of them may incur as per provisions of this trust deed in connection with
the enforcement, protection or preservation of any right or claim of the Bondholders under the
Transaction Documents.

Payment: The Bondholders will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer in the form
attached as (Form of Investor Representation Letter) of the Subscription Agreement on the
date specified. They are further obligated to pay the purchase price of Bonds to the Issuer in
Bangladesh Taka in the manner provided for on each closing date.

Termination: The Bondholders can give a termination notice to the Issuer at any time on or prior to
the Closing Date if the Issuer fails to perform any of its obligations under the Subscription
Agreement, if any of the conditions precedent is not satisfied or waived by the Bondholders on the
Closing Date, or in the case of force majeure. Upon service of such notice Issuer will be discharged
from its obligations except for its liability in relation to expenses related to the Bonds and except for
any liability arising before or in relation to such termination and Bondholder would also be discharged
from performance of their respective obligations under the subscription agreement.

Protection of Interest: The Bondholders are entitled to have their interests protected/preserved by

the Trustee.
g e
Mir Nasir Hossain
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Mir ; Company Secretary
ANitiae Hassain L. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



mah  Arrimepax  TRLC

hrnncina happisais

SECTION X: DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER: MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is a Public Limited Company by shares. Initially, Mir Akhter was established
and commenced its operation as partnership firm in 1968. Later on, it was incorporated as a Private
Limited Company on July 18, 1980 vide registration no. C — 8196/35 of 1980-81. Subsequently the
company was converted into a Public Limited Company on January 10, 2017. At present, the
authorized and paid-up capital of the company stands at BDT 2,000 million and BDT 1,208 million
respectively.

MIR AKHTER continues to hold a unigue place in the country’s engineering and constructions sector
as a well-diversified and leading company with operations in projects including constructions of roads,
bridges, highways, railway tracks, airports, 5-star luxury hotels, discharge channels, civil construction
of power plants, functional buildings, factory buildings and complex infrastructural projects. The
company is also actively engaged in river dredging, gas pad drilling using high-tech utility rigs,
manufacturing of railway sleepers and poles, and soil stabilization.

MIR AKHTER is the only construction company in the country that has completed and is actively
engaged in all of the following categories of projects —

=  Roads and bridges

= Airports

=  Railways tracks

= Power plants

=  Buildings and factories

MIR AKHTER’S business is operated with a vision to fully participate in infrastructure development of
Bangladesh with a view to providing high quality construction to its customers, and at the same time
optimizing opportunities for all stakeholders including maximizing value for the shareholders.

MIR AKHTER, a leading brand name in the industry, an excellent conduit for investment into
Bangladesh’s sustained and impressive economic growth story which has a broad spectrum of
capabilities including —

= 3 highly experienced and professional engineering team,

= tested and strong project management and execution skill set,

= culture of project innovation and adoption of cutting edge technology,

= state-of-the-art equipment portfolio,

= 3 great track record of contract wins,

= deep partnerships with international engineering companies.

MIR AKHTER has executed a considerable number of construction projects which has contributed to
the infrastructural development of Bangladesh. Notable amongst them —

= 1,884 meter long flyover connecting Mirpur to the - Airport Road

= Shahid Ahasan Ullah Master Ural Setu (Tongi Flyover)

= Shahid Buddhijibi (3rd Buriganga) Bridge at Basila, Dhaka

= Construction of a new railway line from Majhgram to Dlarchar via Pabna
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= Construction of 8 km approach roads (4-lane) and structures under Third Karnaphuli Bridge
Project

= Radisson Blu Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka

= |ndependent University Bangladesh Campus at Bashundhara, Dhaka

= The previous new block extension of Dhaka Sheraton Hotel, Dhaka

= 4 bridges and entire asphalting of Hatirjheel Project

= Chevron Bangladesh South - South Drill Pad, /B New Drill Pad, West Pad Construction

=  MTB Tower (Mutual Trust Bank Limited), Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue, Dhaka

= Saiham Tower (14- storied building with 3 storied underground parking), Gulshan 1, Dhaka

= Liberation War Museum, Agargaon, Dhaka

= 500-bed hospital (13-storied) at Mugda, Dhaka

= Construction work of Gopalgonj 100 MW power plant

= 810 meter long PC Box Girder Bridge at Gaforgaon, Mymensingh

= 520.6 meter long bridge over Dhaleshwari River

MIR AKHTER is working on 29 projects and the aggregate value of these on-going projects is around
BDT 56,245 million. Notable amongst them —

= Development of Osmani International Airport, Sylhet

= Development of Shah Amanat International Airport, Chattogram

= Site Preparation and Earthworks for Hazrat Shahjalal International Airport Expansion Project
(Sub-contract)

= Construction of 595m PC Box Girder Bridge Over Bakkhali River at Kusturi Ghat of Cox's Bazar
District

= Rehabilitation of Road from Badarkhali Naval Police Station to Yunuskhali including new 680m
Kohelia Bridge under Matarbari Ultra Super Critical Coal Fired Power Project

= |mprovement of Road from Bangabandhu Bridge (West Side) to Hatikamrul (19.80 km) to a 4-
Lane Highway

= 6 (six) 14-storied residential buildings in block A of Dhaka Elevated Expressway Project

= |mprovement of road from Dulla Mari Road to Tangail (22.4 km) from 2-lane to 4-lane

= Construction of 7.35 km Road from Rajghat to Mohoriguna, in Moheshkali Upazila of Cox's
Bazar under Matarbari Ultra Super Critical Coal Fired Power Project (RHD Part)

= Patenga Container Terminal (PCT) Project of Chittagong Port Authority

=  Construction of 595m long PC Box Girder Bridge over Bakkhali River at Kusturi Ghat under
Sadar Upatzila of Cox's Bazar District.

MIR AKHTER’s management is headed by Mir Nasir Hossain, a former president of FBCCl and a leading
entrepreneur with an industry experience spanning more than 40 years.

Mir Akhter is an 1SO 14001:2015, ISO 9001:2015, OHSAS 18001:2007, OHSAS 18001:2007 certified
company.

"7{4»“\, %_.———1___
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a. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

e Authorized Capital:

Number of shares 200,000,000 at BDT 10 each — BDT 2,000,000,000
e Paid-up Capital:

Number of shares 120,772,000 at BDT 10 each — BDT 1,207,720,000

Shareholding Structure

. 31-Oct-21
Sl. | Shareholder W Mw'! ” o
1 | Sponsor/Director 48.58%
2 | Institute 3.96%
3 | Public shareholders 47.46%
Total 100.00%
b. BUSINESS

Since its inception, Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is engaged in construction engineering business. Late
Mir Akeb Hossain established the business of Mir Akhter with a view in mind that planned
infrastructural development is a prerequisite for achieving overall national development. Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited continues to hold a unique place in the country’s engineering and constructions sector
as a well-diversified and leading company with operations in projects including constructions of roads,
bridges, highways, railway tracks, airports, discharge channels, 5-star luxury hotels, civil construction
of power plants, functional buildings, factory buildings and complex infrastructural projects. The
company is also actively engaged in gas pad drilling using high-tech utility rigs, river dredging,
manufacturing of railway sleepers and poles, and soil stabilization.

Mir Akhter’s diversified business includes broad category consultancy - from building architectural and
engineering designs to the full construction of the intended structure. Thus Mir Akhter is an effective
‘One-stop Construction Management Service Provider’ in the country. Mir Akhter is already engaged
in providing such construction management services in some of their ongoing projects and has plan
to subcontract projects to others in near future where Mir Akhter would work as the consultant.
Thereby, the company’s strong business aptitude allows it to undertake high-margin project
management activities. The company has a plan to invest in a newspaper subject to approval from
Ministry of Information, Government of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh. The company has made
advance in this regard.

In addition to working under its own name, Mir Akhter also works under several joint venture
agreements. The Company attaches profound importance to the co-operation of multinational
companies and executed several projects of international standard by forming Joint Ventures with
Internationally reputed Construction Companies namely Samwhan Corporation of Korea, Seokwang
Development Company Limited of Korea, Halla Corporation of Korea, Ranken Railways Construction
Group Company Limited of China, Sadeem Al Kuwait for General Trading and Contracting Company of
Kuwait, Wuhan Municipal Construction Group of China, Komaihaltec Inc. of Japan.
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The legal status of the joint venture is a partnership at will because it is created only to carry out a
particular construction projects as per contract, but in accordance with the provision of Section — 2
(20) BB of Income Tax Ordinance 1984, its status is a company though it does not have any
consequential effect under this Ordinance.

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited does not have any subsidiary or holding company.

c¢. MANAGEMENT

Mir Akhter’s management is headed by Mir Nasir Hossain, a former president of FBCCI and a leading
entrepreneur with an industry experience spanning more than 40 years. List of senior management of
Mir Akhter is as follows -

Name | Designation | Educational Qualification | Previous Employment
Master of Commerce |
(Accounting) | Started service life with Mir
Mir Nasir Hossain | Managing Director | ;

 Akhter Hossain Limi
| Bachelor of Commerce | Sakatiperen

(Hons.) ) i
MBA in Finance, Goizueta |
Business School, Emory |
Shama-e Zaheer Director & COO University, USA

i IBA, University of Dhaka
| 2003-2016
_ MBA in Finance (IBA) ,
Avinul Haql"e Senior " Executive W e | Started s'ér'vi_éé'i'i'fe" with Mir
Director (Technical) | . Akhter Hossain Limited
| e Executwe TR B el ; e
Syed Rasheduzzaman | Director | B.Sc. Engg. (Civil)
(Engineering) '
Senior  Executive | Rural Electrification Board
Md. Golam Mustafa Director | B. Sc. Engg. (Mech.) (REB)
(Mechanical)
e T e
Md. Momtazul Karim - (Planning & Co- & B.Sc. Engg. (Civil)

| Started service life with Mir
Akhter Hossain Limited

| Started service life with Mir
| Akhter Hossain Limited

| ordination) ,
Executive Director | | Started service life with Mir
Md. Ashraful Islam . | B.Sc. Engg. (Civil) i
(Project) Akhter Hossain Limited

+

Started service life with Mir
| Akhter Hossain Limited

Executive Director

Manik Kumar Biswas { :
(Project)

B.Sc. Engineering(Civil)

: | Chartered Accountant

Parymal Kumer Sarker, =Chief Financial - o
M.Com - Rangs Motors Limited

FCA Officer
B. Com (Hon's)

A P~
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d. DESCRIPTION OF ENCUMBERED AND UNENCUMBERED ASSETS WITH VALUE THEREOF
As on June 30, 2021, the company has total assets of BDT 22,731 million. All of its assets are
unencumbered.

e. PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sohela Hossain
Chairman

Sohela Hossain is the Chairperson of the Board of Directors of Mir Akhter Hossain
“ﬁ 3 Limited. She has completed Bachelor of Arts (Hon’s) and Master of Arts in Philosophy
from University of Dhaka. She is a renowned social worker and an educationist. She is
actively involved in cement, telecom, banking, real estate, concrete products, and power generation
sector of our country.

Currently, she is the Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors of National Credit and Commerce Bank
Limited and a Director of Mir Group of Companies Limited, Mir Cement Limited, Mir Power Limited,
Mir Real Estate Limited, Mir Telecom Limited among others.

Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director

Mir Nasir Hossain, the Managing Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited, is a
prominent entrepreneur who has had significant impact in the construction, real
estate, ceramic, banking, telecom and information technology sector of our country.
He completed Bachelor of Commerce (Hon's) and Master of Commerce in Accounting from the
University of Dhaka. He is leading Mir Akhter with an industry experience spanning more than 40
years.

He has led the apex trade organization of the country, Federation of Bangladesh Chambers of
Commerce and Industry (FBCCI), as its President. He also held the positions of Senior Vice President
of South Asian Association of Regional Co-operation (SAARC) Chamber of Commerce and Industry
(SCCI). He is also a Director of Eastern Bank Limited (EBL) and engaged in the management of Mir
Ceramic Limited, Mir Telecom Limited, Mir Holdings Limited among others.

He is actively engaged in various social activities, most notable of which is his Life Membership of
Bangladesh Red Crescent Society, Bangladesh Diabetic Association. He is working as the President of
Faridpur Diabetic Association and the Chairman of the Governing Body of President of Faridpur
Diabetic Association Medical College.

P o
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Mahbuba Nasir
Director

Mahbuba Nasir, wife of Mir Nasir Hossain, is a Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited.
She has completed Bachelor of Arts (Hon's). She is one of the best women entrepreneur in our country.

She has been recognized as a Commercially Important Person (CIP) by the Ministry of Industries,
Bangladesh in 2015 for her contribution towards the economic growth of Bangladesh.

She is also engaged in businesses in ceramic, telecom, real estate and power generation sector of
the country.

Shama-e Zaheer
Director

Shama-e Zaheer, Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited, is a prominent businessman
with diverse range of business interests.

He has completed MBA in Finance, from Goizueta Business School, Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia,
USA under the prestigious Junior Fulbright Program as well as the Institute of Business Administration
(IBA), University of Dhaka.

He sits on the Board of a number of companies, whose businesses span from cement, construction,
real estate to information technology.

Md. Farid Uddin
Independent Director

Md. Farid Uddin was appointed as Independent Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
in 2018. He is the chairman of the audit committee of the board.

He has completed Bachelor of Arts (Hon’s) in History and Master of Arts in Modern History. Later on,
he also completed LLB. He secured first position in Customs and Excise cadre of Bangladesh Civil
Service (BCS) exam in 1982,

Before retirement, he served as Member (Grade-1) of National Board of Revenue (NBR). During his
illustrious career as a government official, he acted as a Director of Padma 0il Company Limited and
Sadharan Bima Corporation.

——}mﬂ-._k_ s Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Nasir Hossain Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Managing Director Mir Akhter Hessamn Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltg
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. ' |
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A.K.M. Faizur Rahman
Independent Director

A.K.M. Faizur Rahman was appointed as Independent Director of Mir Akhter Hossain
Limited in 2018. He attained his Bachelor of Science (B.Sc.) in Civil Engineering from
Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology (BUET). In 1982, he completed Masters in Bridge
Engineering from Japan. He is a fellow of Institute of Engineers Bangladesh (IEB). He retired as the
Chief Engineer of Roads and Highways Division of Bangladesh.

Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat Ullah
Independent Director

A renowned teacher, Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat Ullah, did his Ph.D in economics from
; Ritsumeikan University, Japan and obtained his BBA degree in Management and MBA
in Strategic and International management from University of Dhaka. Currently he has been serving
as a professor of department of organization strategy & leadership in University of Dhaka.

He has 16 years of teaching Experience including 13 years in University of Dhaka. Mr. Shariat Ullah is
a life Member of Bangladesh Society for Total Quality Management.

Prof. Nausheen Rahman
Independent Director

A renowned teacher, Prof. Nausheen Rahman completed her Honors and Masters in
Finance from University of Dhaka. After that, she obtained her MBA (Major in Finance)
k2 i degree from educational institute University of Canberra. Currently she has been
serving as a professor of finance department in University of Dhaka.

MirNasrﬂg\‘_'.” .,amr Md. Wasbaus Sunnah

Man Director Chief Financial Officer Cqmpany Secrelar.y
M'fﬂak?'l{'e?}-lm“ “Mr Akhter Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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Amount in BDT

As on June 30
2021 2020 2019
Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone
Assets
Non-current assets 15,047,411,526 15,127,211,526 14,684,267,206 11,328,777,764

Praperty, plant and equipment

Investment in Joint Venture
Investments in Mir Securities

4,075,655,901
10,403,929,520

4,075,655,501
10,403,929,520

3,840,446,370
10,315,894,731

3,970,622,784
6,781,866,183

Limited - 79,800,000 - -
Investment in Projects 567,826,105 567,826,105 527,926,105 576,288,797
Current assets 7,673,603,342 7,603,975,416 5,735,813,591 5,659,383,688
i:;:::‘i’ HEEORIe [ e T 806,068,568 806,068,568 732,929,403 784,415,102
Advance and Prepayments 970,370,307 940,641,976 951,889,504 1,088,889,958
Accounts Receivable - - - -
FDR 754,972,500
Advance Insonye tariar ol fax 49,772,694 49,772,694 48,134,478 48,806,217
provision
Inventories 4,252,811,374 4,252,811,374 3,525,944,685 2,484,794,553
Cash and cash equivalents 1,594,580,400 1,554,680,805 476,915,521 497,505,358
Total assets 22,721,014,868  22,731,186,942  20,420,080,797  16,988,161,452
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity 5,555,652,136 5,565,858,710 3,846,005,599 3,470,998,601
Share capital 1,207,715,470 1,207,715,470 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Share premium 1,042,284,530 1,042,284,530 - -
Revaluation Reserve 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881
Non-Controlling Interest 173,984 - =
Retained earnings 3,197,938,271 3,208,318,829 2,738,465,717 2,363,458,720
Non-current liabilities 12,134,690,053 12,134,690,053 13,473,817,325 10,001,644,802
Deferred tax liability 3,325,976 3,325,976 3,325,976 3,325,976

Long term loan

Current liabilities and

provisions

Short term loan (Current
portion of long-term loan)

12,131,364,077

5,030,672,679

4,873,468,063

12,131,364,077

5,030,638,179

4,873,468,063

13,470,491,349

3,100,257,873

2,612,089,755

9,998,318,827

3,515,518,048

2,712,213,393

Deferred LC 101,927,962 101,927,962 349,455,'6?2 696,166,257

Liabilities for expenses 55,276,654 55,242,154 138,712,446 107,138,398
Total liability 17,165,362,732 17,165,328,232 16,574,075,198 13,517,162,850
Total equity and liabilities 22,721,014,868 22,731,186,942 20,420,080,796 16,988,161,452
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g. DESCRIPTION OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED DEBT OR SECURITIES

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has not issued any debt securities earlier.

On November 23, 2020, MAHL received consent from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) vide letter no. BSEC/CI/BB-18/2018/269 dated November 23, 2020 to raise BDT
1,250 Million under book building method through IPO. The company has raised the fund from general
shareholders in the subscription period dated December 24-30, 2020. Trading of the shares of the
company commenced in the exchanges on February 02, 2021. Trading Code of the company is
“MIRAKHTER" in both the exchanges.

Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Man Director hief Financial Officer Company Secretary
MirmHmh Ltd. gﬁrAkhlar Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SecTion XI: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ISSUER, MIIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

For the detailed Audited Financials as at 30 June 2021, please see Annexure — 1

Ir Na?i? ﬁa’ssa'n Pal'ymal Kumer Sarker

Chief Financial Office Md. Masbays gy
Managing Director icer c nnah
Mir ARte! Hossal Lad. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltg M?rflpkan':j; rsflf;rseta ry
Sain Lid.
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SecTiON XII: BRIEF OVERVIEW AND COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Comparative financial performance of MAHL over the last three years has been presented below:

Statement of Financial Position

Retained earnings

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Long term loan

3,197,938,271

12,134,690,053
3,325,976
12,131,364,077

3,208,318,829

12,134,690,053
3,325,976
12,131,364,077

2,738,465,717

13,473,817,325
3,325,976
13,470,491,349

Amount in BDT
As on June 30
2021 2020 2019
Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone
Assets
Non-current assets 15,047,411,526 15,127,211,526 14,684,267,206 11,328,777,764
Property, plant and equipment 4,075,655,901 4,075,655,901 3,840,446,370 3,970,622,784
Investment in Joint Venture 10,403,929,520 10,403,929,520 10,315,894,731 6,781,866,183
| " .
pvgstments in Mir Securities 79,800,000 )
Limited
Investment in Projects 567,826,105 567,826,105 527,926,105 576,288,797
Current assets 7,673,603,342 7,603,975,416 5,735,813,591 5,659,383,688
;";ﬁ;’:‘; Uenasits tfietention 806,068,568 806,068,568 732,929,403 784,415,102
Advance and Prepayments 970,370,307 940,641,976 551,889,504 1,088,889,958
Accounts Receivable
FDR = 5 = 754,972,500
Advence inconye tax petof Tk 49,772,694 49,772,694 48,134,478 48,806,217
provision
Inventories 4,252,811,374 4,252,811,374 3,525,944,685 2,484,794,553
Cash and cash equivalents 1,594,580,400 1,554,680,805 476,915,521 497,505,358
Total assets 22,721,014,868 22,731,186,942 20,420,080,797  16,988,161,452
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity 5,555,652,136 5,565,858,710 3,846,005,599 3,470,998,601
Share capital 1,207,715,470 1,207,715,470 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Share premium 1,042,284,530 1,042,284,530 -
Revaluation Reserve 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881
Non-Cantrolling Interest 173,984 = - -

2,363,458,720

10,001,644,802
3,325,976
9,998,318,827

QerFet RuICHs v 5,030,672,679  5,030,638179  3,100,257,873  3,515,518,048
provisions
s S Som | CarrSne 4,873,468,063 4,873,468,063 2,612,089,755 2,712,213,393
portion of long-term loan)
Deferred LC 101,927,962 101,927,962 349,455,672 696,166,257
Liabilities for expenses 55,276,654 55,242,154 138,712,446 107,138,398
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13,517,162,850

Total equity and liabilities 22,721,014,868 22,731,186,942 20,420,080,796 16,988,161,452
Statement of Profit or Loss or Other Comprehensive Income
Amount in BDT
2021 2020 2019
Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone
Revenue 3,242,277,000 3,242,277,000 2,694,959,701 4,267,036,996
Cost of execution of the contract (2,306,555,858) (2,306,555,858) (1,928,782,658) (3,134,809,245)
Gross profit 935,721,142 935,721,142 766,177,043 1,132,227,751
General and administration expenses (198,461,469) (188,054,895) (144,650,336) (245,251,801)
Profit from operations 737,259,673 747,666,247 621,526,707 886,975,950
Non-operating income 16,382,166 16,382,166 13,328,379 22,599,281
Financial expenses (425,921,011) (425,921,011) (379,093,795) (361,407,703)
Profit before tax and WPPF 327,720,828 338,127,402 255,761,291 548,167,528
Contribution to WPPF (16,101,305) (16,101,305) (12,179,109) (26,103,216)
ml:;:""e R frm o bowst action 311,619,523 322,026,097 243,582,182 522,064,312
Tax expense
Current (220,057,635) (220,057,635) (168,613,886) (321,559,939)
Deferred - - -
Total Tax expense (220,057,635) (220,057,635) (168,613,886) (321,559,939)
:L‘:::::“’ ML DRG SoniiERn 91,561,888 101,968,462 74,968,296 200,504,373
Profit after tax from Joint Venture 367,884,649 367,884,649 300,038,702 431,989,484
Total net profit after tax for the year 459,446,537 469,853,111 375,006,997 632,493,857
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Revaluation reserve g
Less: Deferred tax liabilities on revaluation -
reserve
Total comprehensive income for the year 459,446,537 469,853,111 375,006,997 632,493,857
Statement of Cash Flow
Amount in BDT
2021 2020 2019
Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 3,610,161,649 3,610,161,649 2,994,998,403 5,180,944,468
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3,184,895,427) (3,144,795,022) (2,764,246,834)  (3,573,827,409)
Cash generated from operation 425,266,222 465,31}'6.527 230,751,569 1,607,117,059
Income tax deducted at source and paid (221,695,851) [221.655,851] (167,942,147) (319,353,740)
Net cash generated from operating activities 203,570,371 243,670,776 62,809,422 1,287,763,320

o S
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Purchase of property, plant and equipment (704,500,728) (704,500,728) (345,660,992) (942,913,037)
Investment in Joint Venture (88,034,789) (88,034,789) (3,534,028,548) (3,057,116,410)
Investment in Mir Securities Limited (79,800,000) -

Investment in FDR : - - 754,972,500 (468,985,961)
Investment in Projects (39,900,000) (39,900,000) 48,362,692 32,460,198
Net cash used in investing activities (832,435,517) (912,235,517) (3,076,354,348)  (4,436,555,210)
Cash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment 922,251,036 922,251,036 3,372,048,884 3,586,605,071
Cash inflow for MSL Shares (NCI Portion) 200,000

Issuance of new shares through IPO 207,715,470 207,715,470

Share Premium ©1,042,284,530 1,042,284,530

Interest Paid (425,926,163) (425,926,163) (379,093,795) (361,407,703)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 1,746,524,873 1,746,324,873 2,992,955,089 3,235,197,368
:'::IT::::{ ;‘:;:Eml SLou A o 1,117,659,728  1,077,760,132 (20,589,836) 86,405,478
é}:::e:rllf:ﬁ;); Gain/(loss) related to Foreign 5,152 5,152

Opening cash and cash equivalents 476,915,521 476,915,521 497,505,358 411,099,881
Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E) 1,594,580,400 1,554,680,805 476,915,521 497,505,358

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has a subsidiary company namely Mir Securities Limited. Paid-up capital
of Mir Securities Limited is BDT 80 million and Mir Akhter Hossain Limited holds 99.75% shares of the
company. The financial statements of Mir Securities Limited has been fully consolidated as Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited directly controls more than 50% of voting rights of Mir Securities Limited. The
accounting policies of Mir Securities Limited have been aligned with the policies as adopted by Mir

Akhter Hossain Limited.
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SECTION XIII: RATIOS FOR THE LAST FIVE ACCOUNTING YEARS

Key ratios of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited for last three years is presented below:

2021 2020 2019
Ca
Sl.  Ratio Formula
Current Assets 1.53 151 1.85 1.61
1 Current Ratio
Current Liabilities
Current Assets - Inventories 0.68 0.67 0.71 0.90
2 Quick Ratio
Current Liabilities
Fixed Cost N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 Break-Even Point Total Sales Revenue-Cost to make
products
Total Debt 3.08 3.07 4.27 3.86
4 Debt to Equity Ratio
Total Equity
i Debt to Total Assets Total Debt 0.75 0.75 0.80 0.79
Ratio Total Assets
Accounts Net Sales N/A N/A N/A N/A
6  Receivable
Turnover Ratio® Average Accounts Receivables
) : Gross Profit 28.86% 28.86% 28.43% 26.53%
7 Gross Margin Ratio
Net Sales
& Operating Income Operating Profit 22.74% 23.06% 23.08%  20.79%
ratio Net Sales
) Net Profit after Tax 14.17% 14.49% 13.92% 14.82%
9 Net Income ratio
Sales
Net Profit after Tax 2.02% 2.07% 1.84% 3.72%
10 Return on Assets
Total Assets
Net Profit after Tax 8.27% 8.44% 9.75% 18.22%
11 Return on Equity
Shareholder’s Equity
i2 Earnings-Per-Share  Net Profit after Tax 421 4.30 3.75 6.32
(EPS) Weighted Average number of shares ;
Aot Pe—ms 22—
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13 Net Asset Value Net Asset 46.00 46.09 38.46 34.71
(NAV) per share Number of shares
Net operating cash Net Operating cash flow 0.44 0.52 0.17 2.04
a flow to Net Income Net Income
i Total Debt to Total debt 133 133 1.24 327

tangible assets ratio  Total Tangible assets

*There is no accounts receivable from 2019.
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i ir Hossain wymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
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SecTiON XIV: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE

Credit Rating of Issuer: Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Date of Declaration Valid Till Long Term Short Term Rated By
Credit Rating and

26.12.2021 25.12.2022 Information
Services Limited

Credit Rating of the Issue:

Date of Declaration Valid Till Long Term Rated By
Credit Rating and

26.12.2021 25.12.2022 Information
Services Limited

For detailed credit rating report, please see Annexure 3 & Annexure 4.

B -

‘ r‘)Ll -t Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masb
Mir Nasir Hossain Chief Financial Officer Company si':ritfﬁ’ AR
Managing Director Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter H "
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SECTION XV: LATEST DEFAULT MATRIX AND TRANSITION STATISTICS OF CRC

CRISL three years CDR for corporate under investment grade (AAA to BBB) stood at 1.44% with no
default at AAA and AA rating notch.

The CDR at single A and BBB notch stood at 0.69% and 2.23% respectively which signifies that CRISL
investment grade default is quite low against the backdrop of increasing default loan in the industry.

Calculation of 3-years Cumulative Default Rate (CDR3) for 2014, 2015, 2016

ICDR3
AAA 0.00%
AA 0.00%
A 0.69%
IBBB 12.23%
Investment Grade (AAA-BBB) 1.444%
BB 9.01%
B 0.00%
CCC 0.00%
cC 0.00%
C 100.00%

CRISL Corporate Rating Transition Matrix (2016-2020)
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SecTioN XVI: DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUSTEE: UCB INVESTMENT LIMITED

UCB Investment Limited is acting as Trustee for Mir Akhter Hossain Limited Zero Coupon Bond subject
to regulatory approval.

UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank PLC. — One of
the leading private commercial bank in Bangladesh. It was incorporated in Bangladesh with the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RISCF), vide registration number: C-94654/11 dated 3rd
August, 2011 as a private limited company under the Companies Act (Act XVIII) of 1994. It obtained
full-fledged Merchant Banker & Portfolio Management license (Reg No: MB- 97/2020) from
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on 5th October, 2020.

The head office of UCB Investment Limited is located at BULUS Center, Plot- CWS (A)-1 Road: 34,
Gulshan Avenue Dhaka- 1212, Bangladesh.

* Authorized capital as of 31 Dec 2020: BDT 1,000,000,000 (Taka one thousand million)
e Paid-up capital as of 31 Dec 2020: 250,000,000/~ (Taka two hundred fifty million)

**Paid-up capital has been increased to BDT 1,000,000,000 (Taka One thousand million} as
on 13 July 2021.

» Net worth as of 31 Dec 2020: BDT 312,194,085 (Taka three hundred twelve million one
hundred ninety four thousand eighty five)

* Shareholding Details: e I
' Share Holding Posmon

Sharaholders % of Share No. of Shares
i 4 L Holdngs | |
____Unlted Commerclal Bank lelted i 99 999996% 9,99,99,999
Mohammed Habibur Rahman | G 000004% | 1

100% | 1,00,000,000

Brief on Board of Directors:

Mr. Mohammed Habibur Rahman:
Chairman

Mr. Habibur Rahman is acting as the Chairman of UCB Investment Limited, He has recently joined
United Commercial Bank PLC. (UCB) as the Deputy Managing Director. Prior to joining UCB, he was
Senior Executive Vice President at Corporate Banking division of Eastern Bank Limited.

Mr. Rahman having vast experience in home and abroad in diverse sectors of banking for over 24 years
worked in different financial institutions like Bank Indosuez, ANZ Grindlays, Standard Chartered,
Toronto Dominion (TD), HSBC, City and EBL. He played a very important role in Corporate Banking
division of EBL and was also the Head of Credit Risk management division.

> P
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Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan:
Director

Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and Deputy Managing
Director of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Alam has a wide experience in the field of Cost and Management Accounting. As a qualified Cost
and Management Accountant he is associated with numerous reputed group of Companies including
Aramit Group. Prior to joining this group, he was associated with Birds Bangladesh Agencies Limited
Chittagong for a period of nearly 26 years.

Mr. Nurul Mustafa Tarek:
Director

Mr. N. Mustafa Tarek is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and has been serving as Deputy
Managing Director of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Tarek, having 26 years of professional experiences in Government, Multinational,
Telecommunication, Local Conglomerate and financial institution, joined United Commercial Bank
PLC. on 5th January, 2012 as Executive Vice President. He has a long professional track record in
Human Resource and Industrial Relations, Administration, Project Management, Supply Chain and
Safety, Health and Environment.

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon:
Director

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and is the Deputy
Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer (COQ) of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Mamoon joined UCB on 01/03/2017 as Senior Executive Vice President with over 27 years of multi-
disciplinary experiences in diversified professional domains with Government and Financial
Institutions.

Prior to joining in UCB, Mr. Mamoon served in AB Bank and BRAC Bank Ltd in different capacities that
include Head of Core Business Team, Head of Operational Risk Management, Head of Program
Management etc. He also served in bKash Limited, Kayfin Consultants Limited and Bangladesh Army,
Government of Bangladesh. He served in the United Nations 'Peace Keeping' mission in United Nations
Mission in Sierra Leone (UNAMSIL).

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman:
Independent Director

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman is the Independent Director of UCB Investment Limited and one of
the Independent Directors of United Commercial Bank PLC. He is also a member of Audit Committee.

Mr. Rafiquzzaman is a highly experienced international banker with 36 years of professional
experience in the entire gamut of banking, having worked in two multi-national banks across four
geographies. He is a certified risk professional and has extensive experience of working in emerging
markets.
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Tanzim Alamgir:
Managing Director and CEO

Mr. Alamgir is the founding Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Managing Director of UCB Investment
Limited. Mr. Alamgir has a special focus on fund raising for large, local and multinational corporate
houses of the country. He is a seasoned professional having diversified exposure in finance, operations
and strategy for more than 13 years. Previously, he was the Chief Operating Officer (COO) of City Bank
Capital. He has completed numerous first of its kind deals in Bangladesh during his tenure in CBC like
perpetual bonds, bank guarantee backed bonds, preference share of first private LNG terminal in
Bangladesh, first subordinated bond for a state-owned bank (Agrani Bank Limited) etc. He has also
completed numerous other deals like subordinated bonds, zero coupon bonds for a number of
commercial banks and corporates in different industries.

Business Activities of UCBIL:

With its group of versatile financial consultants, UCBIL aims at delivering top-class, customized
investment solutions to its clients to cater to their specific needs and be their long-term growth
partner. The services UCBIL provide are:

Investment Banking Services:

v Bond Issuance
v Corporate Advisory
¥v" Mergers and Acquisitions

Primary Market Services:

¥ Issue Management Services
v Underwriting
¥ Capital Raising and Private Placement

Secondary Market Services:

v Portfolio Management

!
{
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Present status of issued debt securities in which UCB Investment Limited is acting as Trustee is as

follows -
Date of Value of Repayment 0::;:::::3
st Name of the Maturity IM Issue Completion debt Amount 20,2021 Default R Fie
Issue Period Date of (8DT (80T s (Famy) | o
subscription Millian) Million) Million)
NRBC Bank .
1 | Subordinated 07 years Namber Subscn;_:tlon 3,000 3,000 Nil
Bond1 23,2021 Ongoing
Bank Asia
2 Perpetual Perpetual N/A 5,000 - 5,000 Nil
Bond
Mercantile
3 Pe?::tkual Perpetual N/A 5,000 5,000 Nil
Bond
‘/L\J = Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus S -
< g ary . aus sunna
Jir Hasi Hicessn Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mir nag” :’IﬂH ssain Ld. Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SecTioN XVII: Mobus OPERANDI OF THE ISSUE
a. Application Procedure

The Bonds shall be distributed through private placement.

Each investor (Bondholder) shall enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with the Issuer and
shall be bound by the terms and conditions contained in such Subscription Agreement containing in
details the rights and obligations of the investors.

Undertaking to Issue

The Issuer will, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Subscription Agreement, on
the Closing Date, duly execute and deliver to the Bondholder a Bond Certificate attached with the
Conditions, representing the allocation amount of Bonds subscribed.

Undertaking to Subscribe

The Investor will, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Subscription Agreement, on
the Closing Date, subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price for the allocation, in Bangladesh
Taka for same day value to such account as the Issuer designates.

Closing
Subject to the conditions precedent contained in the Subscription Agreement, the closing of the issue

of the Bonds shall take place on the Closing Date.

Investor Representation Letter: On the date indicated in the Subscription Agreement, the Bondholders
will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer.

Payment of net issue proceeds: On each Closing Date, of the Bondholders shall pay the purchase price
of Bonds to the Issuer in Bangladesh Taka.

Bond Certificates

Registration: On each Closing Date, the Issuer shall procure that the principal amount of Bonds
subscribed for by the Bondholders for which payment has been received in accordance with the
Subscription Agreement and are registered in name of the Bondholders (with a notation on the
Register and on each Bond Certificate identifying the Issue Date of such Bond Certificate).

Issue: On the Closing Date, the Issuer shall duly execute and deliver the Bond Certificates to the
Trustee for authentication. Promptly following the Closing Date, the Issuer will deliver to each
Bondholder Bond Certificates, duly authenticated by the Trustee and representing such Investor's
entire holding of Bonds.

b. Allotment

On the closing date, to be determined, the issuer shall allot and issue the bonds, in registered form in
a minimum denomination of BDT 500,000 and integral multiples thereof. A bond certificate (each a
“Bond Certificate”) will be issued to each bondholder in respect of its registered holding of each series
of Bonds. Each Bond and each Bond Certificate will be numbered serially with an identifying number
which will be recorded on the relevant Bond Certificate and in the register of Bondholders (the
“Register”), which will be kept by Registrar on behalf of the Issuer.

r’#ﬂ\*
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Each of the issuer, the Trustee and any Agent may deem and treat the registered holder of a Bond as
the absolute owner of such Bond, free of any equity, set-off or counterclaim on the part of the Issuer
against the original or any intermediate Holder of such Bond (whether or not the Bond shall be
overdue and notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing thereon or any notice of
previous loss or theft of the Bond Certificate issued in respect of that Bond) for all purposes and,
except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by applicable law, the Issuer, the
Trustee and the Agents shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

c. Refund:
Not Applicable.
d. Transfer:

Subject to the terms and condition as to be implemented in the Trust Deed, a Bond may be transferred
to another person in Bangladesh (a “Transferee”) upon surrender of the Bond Certificate issued in
respect of that Bond, together with a duly completed and executed instrument of transfer (a
“Instrument of Transfer”) by the registered holder of the Bond, as transferor (the “Transferor”) or the
proposed Transferee.

A valid instrument of Transfer shall be duly stamped, completed and executed by both the Transferor
and the Transferee. If the Transferor or the Transferee is a corporate body, such Instrument of transfer
shall be executed by the authorized persons of the Transferor or the Transferee, as the case may be.

Upon receipt of the Bond Certificate issued in respect of the Bond to be transferred along with the
duly completed and executed Instrument of Transfer at the specified office of the Transfer Agent,
together with such evidence as such Transfer Agent may reasonably require to prove (i) the title of
the Transferor and (ii) the signature and authority of each of the individuals who have executed the
Instrument of Transfer on behalf of the Transferor and the Transferee.

Upon receipt of the Bond Certificate, the Instrument of Transfer and the other supporting documents
named above, the Transfer Agent, as the duly authorized delegate of the Issuer’s Board of Directors,
shall approve and certify the transfer on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Issuer. If the Transfer
Agent refuses to register the transfer of any Bond it shall immediately provide notice of such refusal
to the Issuer. If the Issuer does not agree with the Transfer Agent’s refusal to approve and certify such
transfer, it shall within 3 (three) Business Days of receipt of such notice from the Transfer Agent, direct
the Transfer Agent to approve and certify the transfer as requested in the relevant Instrument of
Transfer. If the Issuer agrees with Transfer Agent that the requested transfer should be refused, the
Issuer shall, within 30 (thirty) days from the date on which the relevant Instrument of Transfer was
lodged with the Transfer Agent, send or cause to be sent notice of such refusal to both the Transferor
and the Transferee.

Where it is proved to the satisfaction of the Issuer that a duly completed and executed Instrument of
Transfer has been lost, the Issuer may, in its direction, on application in writing made by the Transferee
and bearing such stamp as is required by an Instrument of Transfer, register such transfer on such
terms as to indemnity as the Issuer may think fit. Where not all the Bonds represented by the
surrendered Bond Certificate are the subject of the transfer, a new Bond Certificate in respect of the
balance of the Bonds will be issued to the transferor.
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e. Trading or Listing:

The bonds will be privately placed. However, if instructed by BSEC, it may on a later date be traded on
the alternative trading board.

f. Repayment:

Scheduled Redemption: Unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled as specified, each
Bond shall be redeemed in the amount of each Redemption Instalment as specified below on the
following Redemption Dates on a pro rata basis to the Bondholders whose name will appear in the
register at Record Date.

The redemption of the Bonds will start from the end of the 18th month from the issuance of the Bonds
and each 6 (Six) months thereafter in equal instalment and the redemption value shall be paid by the
Issuer on scheduled redemption date.

 Face Value i
in BOT
y ——
2 | S
:  — e T ol
4w | 295568 416500000
5 | 30 350,681,824
6 _ 36 338,823,018
s AN -
: e
i e 1 S

Calculated based on 7% p.a. The approval from BSEC to be taken in a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to
adopt any market change and to be finalized based on market condition at the time of bond issuance.

Incremental charge at the rate of 2% per annum payable by the Issuer to the Bondholders above the
amount to be paid by the Issuer to the Bondholders on the redemption Date for failure of the Issuer
to make payment to the Bondholders on the Redemption Date.

g. Redemption or conversion or exchange:

This Bond is not early redeemable and has no conversion feature. It will be redeemed as per the
Repayment Schedule mentioned in the earlier point.

h. Details of conversion or exchange option, if applicable:

This is not applicable for this issuance.

v‘)LJ,,._,_,___J
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Particulars
Application Fee of BSEC (Issuer)
Consent Fee of BSEC (issuer)
Trustee Apphcatlan Fee

Trust Deed Registration Fee

Credit Rating for Bond (4 years)

-"Approxlrnately

Reglstratlon Fee of Trustee ' BDT 100 000

| 0.1% of total face value Max

BDT 1 million

2 499 000
50,000
100,000

1,000,000

BDT 50,000 for each year
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Arrangémént Fee
Counsel Fee
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- the Bond)

At actu I

Total Cost Excluding VAT =
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G. KIBRIA & CO. gmni

- CHARTERED ACCOUNTANIS member
an association of
ot

b & partnering for success

- Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

- Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
- We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED and its subsidianes {the ‘Group’) as well as the

separale financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED (the ‘Company’), which comprise the consolidaled and separale statement

of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated and separate stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

consolidated and separaie statement of changes in equily and consolidated and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, ang
- notes to the conschidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faidy, in all matenal respects, the financial position of the Company and Group as
at June 30, 2021, and iis financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intematicnal Financial Reporting
- - Slandards (IFRSs)

Basis for Opinion

= We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards an Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
desaribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auait of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemnents section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfiiled our other ettucal responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe

i that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basig for our opinion
Key Audit Matters
= Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current penod  These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial stalements as a whole, and in forming our opimon
therean, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these mallers
S—
KEY AUDIT MATTER
whm-m’ ation and Stand-Alone
£ | Our audit procedures to mitigate the rsk include
' | > We perormed discussions with management to understand ther procedures and
| processes (o prepare consolidated financal statements as well as perorming |
restatement of prior year financial information :
- The Company has recognized a new asset worth BT | » We reviewed supporting documentation o ensure the subsidiary met the criteria for |
79 800 00D in subsidiary Mir Secunbes Limited as al 30 June | consolidation and management has applied the appropdate accounting standards |
2021, This investmant represents 99 75% ownership in the | = We reviewed the consolidation procedures pedarmed by Management We reviewed |
| subsidiary as at 30 June 2021 Ths i the first year of | management's eliminaton of mtercompany balances to ensure accuracy and
- | consolidated fnancial statements and there are | appropnateness. We aisc revewed the stand-aicne financial numbers used io
inmmmmmmm | prepare the consohdated stalements 1o ensure clencal accuracy of consohdated
entiies Consdenng hese factors, the overall nsk profile of | financial statements
| this ifem was considered high and was considered as akey | B We reviewed Management's calculation of Non-Controlling Interest for all financial
L | audit maner | years presenied on the staiement of financial position and ensured there were no

1

| ciencal eors and IFRS 10 was apphed approprialely |

| | > We reviewed management disciosures and noles to the financial statements 10 |

| | ensure they ware accurate and adequale in regards to the requirements of IFRS 10 |
and tAS 8

 Management has presented separate consolidated financial statements as well audited financial statements.

s
Head Office : Sadharan Bima Sadan (5th Floor) 24-25, Dilkusha Commerrigl Ar
Mir Nasir Mogsafffice :Plot 51, Floor-2, Road 14, Block-G, Niketon, c;ulshgﬂ_! !
Managing Director TEL OFF : 02-223388071, 02-22335532 NI 19443
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| Property, Pant & Equipment

Cur audi procedures included:
> Obtain an understanding of Company'’s intemal controls, systems and processas
around PPE

mwr:m PPE balance as at 30 June | ” ml unmuau@:mmmmwwuwmmam
2021 was BDT 4,076 (BOT 3.840 Billion as at 30 June 2020). -
This represents 18% of Total Assets of the Company (19% | "‘WT‘W%“MWM
? M,' med ”m"““;mw“m'zml :B“lm.'r‘.: » Wa performed reasonability of depreciation expenses chamed by management 1o
Based gwd:ahm;nmum: g

on : :
is a major asset catagory, this was determine tobe akey | © mmhmmmmmmm:m
audit matter. procedures ensure management's assumplions around irment

A4

For disposais of assets, we obtained supporfing documentation o delermine the cost
and fair market value of the asset and then reviewed management's calcuiations to
ensura no ciencal errors took place to calculate any related gams or iosses.

Detalled notes regarding Property, Plant & Equipment has been included in Note 5,00 and Hote 5.00A in the Financial Statements

Revenue of BDT 3.242 bifion (2.694 billion for the year 30 " uded:
June 2020) is recognized i the income stalement of Mir Oour i
Aldttor Hosssin Limied for the current yeer > Obtain an understanding of Company's intemal controls specifically geared
3 towards adoption and implementation of IFRS 15,
This material item is subject to inherent risk due o the Exai detsiming beween
Mmummﬁmamm ” ARV RO &) s o ol »
e for Customer and Company to understand when control of the goeds
Wm’mi"'anmmmd'"u' DR fF prophrminieg wmmwuw.
Against this background the proper applicaton of the - mmmm“rmm
accounting standards is considered 10 be complex and fo 8 b R dotadidion b of
certain extent based on estmates and assumptions made by o ol b S e s
| management padadin
|

Details of Ravenue Recognition are included in Note 27.00 and Accounts Recaivable are included in Note 10.00 to the Financial Statements

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for information other than financial statements and auditor's report. Tneoﬂmirﬂmhmomwmesnfmsws
Report, Corporate Governance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. We expect to receive this other information after
the date of our auditor's repon

Cur opimion on the financial stalements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therson

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsisient with the financial staterents or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the dale of the auditer’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard..
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, Ihe Companies Act
1984, the Secunties and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such intemal control as

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error
In praparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Company and Group's ability lo continue as a going concem,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or Group or to cease operafions, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Ral: GRC/21-22A30 - Page i

. Parymel KumaF Bar
z"f Nasir Hossain Chief Financial Officer Md. Masbaus Sunnah
anaging Director Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid. Company Secretary
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o cblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report thal includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a malerial missialement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or eor and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professicnal judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also

>  Identify and assess the risks of malenal missiaiement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor, design and perform
audil procedures fesponsive ta those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not delecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may
invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or ihe override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemnal conirol relevant to the audit in order fo design audit procedures that are approprale in the
circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Cenciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability fo
continue as a going concem . if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repon
to the related disclosures i the financial statements o, if such disclosures are inadequale, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, futura events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease fo continue as a going concem.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disciosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those
charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statemenl that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with govemance, we defermine those malters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial stalements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 2 matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing $0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such commumication

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant nolifications issues by Bangiadesh Securities
and Exchange Commission, we aiso report that:

> We have obtaned all the information and explanations which lo the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose
of our audit and made due venfication thereof;
in our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept by the Group and
Company so far as it appeared fram our examinations of those books,
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 20201 of subsidiary namely, Mir Secunties Limited have been audited by us and
have been properly reflected in the consolidated financial statements. We have expressed an unqualified opinion for the company,
The consolidated and the separate statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and retums; and
The expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Group's and the Company’s business.

L . S S

Date. 26 Oclober, 2021
Dhaka, Bangiadesh
DVC. 2110280352A5048568
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Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer
Ref GKC/Z4-22IA30 mm Chief Financial
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
B Bl Bl
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 4,075,655,901 3,840,446 370
Investment in Joint Venture 5 10,403,928 520 10,315,894,731
Investment in Projects 8 “?&105 527,826,105
15,047,411,526 14,684,267,208
Current assets
Security Deposits (Retention Money) 7 805,068,568 732,829,403
Advance and Prepayments 8A 970,370,307 951,888,504
Advance income tax net of tax provision E 49,772,694 48,134,478
Inventories 10 4252811374 3,525,944 685
Cash and cash equivalents 1A | 1,504,580,400 | 478,915,521
1673603342 _mm
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity s
Share capital 12 1,207,715470 1,000,000,000
Share premium 1,042,284,530 -
Revaluation Reserve 13 107,539,881 107,539,881
Non Controlling Interest 148 173,984 -
Retaned eamings w Lo amaap]| s
3,846,005,599
Non-current liabilities e
Deffered tax liability 15 3325976 3326976
Long term loan 16 %13%% 13,470,481,349
13473817325
Current liabilities and provisions =
Short term loan (Current portion of long-term loan) 16 4,873,468,063 2,612,089,755
Deferred LC 17 101,827,962 38,455,672
Liabifities for expenses 18a | 55276654 | 138,712,446
___SOMT2ET 3100257873
Total liability 17,165,362,732 16,574,075,188
Totalequity and abiltes RTINS 204080757
Net Assets Value per Share 26.2A ____”_ 3521

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

|7 S

Chief Financial Officer

“Mubnm Aot bt g chzp¢/

Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

Dhaka, 26th October 2021
DVC: 2110280392A5948568

GKC/A21-22/30

* N

Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
hir Akhter Hessain Ld.
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Parymal Kumer Sarker ﬁ_\ :
Chgf Financial Officer Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Company Secretary
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Revenue 19 3,242,277 000 2,684,859,701
Cost of execution of the contract 20 (2,306,555,858) (1,928,782,658)
Gross profit 935,721,142 766,177,043
General and administration expenses 21A {198,461,468) (144,650,336)
Profit from operations 737,250,673 621,526,707
Non-operating income . 22 16,382,166 13,328,379
Financial expenses 23 (425,821,011 {379.093,795)
Profit before tax and WPPF 327,720,828 255,761,201
Contribution to WPPF {18,101 |..3°.§1. {12,479,109)
Profit before tax from own construction business 311,619,523 243,582,182
Tax expense B Ty e i

Current 241 | {220,057 835) {168,613,886)
Total Tax expense (220,067 635) (168,613,886)
Profit after tax from own construction business 91,561,888 74,968,296
Profit after tax from Joint Venture 25 367,884,649 300,038,702
Total net profit after tax for the year 45448537 375,006,987
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year . 450446537 375,006,997
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 462,914,886 375,006,997
Mir Akhtar Hossain Limited | 462,940,902 l 375,006,997
Non-Controlling Interest @0
Basic and Dilutive Earnings per Share 26.1A 42 343

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

| W il C phosen

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director " Chairperson

Welolsulso Nonlv
Secretary Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

G.

Dhaka, 26th October 2021 AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner
DVC: 2110280352A5948568 G mmu co.

GRCIAR1-22730 s ks %
Mﬁsir H;;sain pa,,[ ) Kumer%’arke f _ m )
Managing D¥ackr Chief Financial Officer \ sbaus

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. ST 7 any Secretary
khter Hossain Ltd.



~ MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the endad 30 June 2021

Taka Taka Taka Taka
—  Balance as at 01 July 2019 1,000,000,000 . 1363450,720 107,539,881 - 2.470,998,601 3470,998,801
Profit afler tax for the yaar 30 June 2020 . 74 558 295 - - 74,560,295 74 968,205
Profit after tax from Joint Venture - 300,038,702 . . 300,038 702 300,034,702
Balance asat 30 dune 2020 IEXTCXC) e AT TSN : ZB005.598 384003508
Balance as of 01 July 2020 1,000,000,000 . 2738485717 107,529 581 . 2,846 005,508 3,846.005,598
Issue of new shares 207,715,470 1.042. 284 530 1.250,000,000
Profit afier tax for the year 30 June 2021 . . 91,561,888 . 91,561,888 91 561,838
w  Profit afler tax from Joint Venlure . - 37884649 - 367,884,649 367 884,649

NC! Portion of Loss in Subsidiary 2M6
NC! Porfion of Equity in Subsidia

{28,018)
200,60 _200000 __200000
iages INSSRIN SKSMLIN

Tha accompanying noles form an miegral pan of these financial statements and are 1o be raad in conjuncion therewith

- Pre B v 2 ppce—

Chied Financial Officer
Signed in larms of our raport of even date annexsd. G
i ]
Dhaka, 26ih October 2021 AK. Gulam MGtirla FCA, Partner
OVC: 2110280392A8948568 G. KIiBRIA & CO.
- Chartered Accountants

i (L‘*‘-*wc_—« 9}——)2,-

Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Cempany Secretary
- Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Lid, Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows
For the ended 30 June 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operation

income tax deducted at source and paid
Net cash generafed from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4
Investment in Joint Venture 5
investment in FDR

Investment in Projects 8
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment

Cash infow for MSL Shares (NCI Portion)
Issuance of new shares through PO
Share Premium

interest Paid

Net cash {used in)from financing activiies

D. Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Unrealized FX Gain/{loss) related to Foreign Currency held

E. Opening cash and cash equivalents

F. Ciosing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Net Operating Cashfiow per share (Note 26.3A)

2

. 3,610,161,648

: 2,994,998,403
_{3.184,885.427) (2.764.246,834)

- 425,266,222 230,751,569
(221,695,851) {167,942, 147)

203,570,371 62,809,422
{704,500,728) (345,660,992)
(88,034,789) (3,534,028,548)

‘ 754,972,500

251, 3,372,048,884
200,000 *
207, 715470
1,042,284,530
_ (sesiy o
1748524873  2,992,955089
1,117,659,728 {20,589,836)
5,152 -
. AT6915521 497,505,358
..Jm&. m,m
1.88 0.58

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

L"L

Chief Financial Officer

!;o.«ﬂ’"’/
Director

by ﬁ_c'%&”"‘

Holalowdso N omie
Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

Dhaka, 26th October 2021
DVC: 2110280392A5848568

GHC/ARY- 2330 Fage 4
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Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
Mir Akhter Hessain Ltd.
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Chief Financial Officer

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

ﬁCompany Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
_ s o=l Sl
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 I = 3,840,446,370
Investment in Joinl Venture 5 | 10,315,894,731
Investments in Mir Securities Limited =
investment in Projects 6 . 567 527,926,105
- 15,427.211,526 14,884,267,206
Security Deposits {Retention Money) 7 732,928 403
Advance and Prepayments 8 951,888,504
Advance income tax net of tax provision ] 48,134 478
Inventories 10 3,525,044 685
Cash and cash equivaients 1 476,915,521
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 12 1,207, 715,470 1,000,000,000
Revaluation Reserve 13 - 107,530,881 107,538,861
Retained eamings 14 | _3,208,318,829 2,738,465 717
5,565,858,710 3,848,005,509
Deffered tax fiabiiity 5 [ 3325978 3325976
Long term loan 18 | 12131384077 13,470,491,349
 12,134,800,053 13.473,817,325
Current liabilities and provisions =
Short term ioan {Current porticn of long-term loan) 18 4,873,488,083 2,612,089,755
Deferred LC 101,927,962 349,455,672
Liabdlibes for expenses 1 138,712 446
3,100,257 873
Total liability 16,574,075,188
Totalequity and lbiltes AT
Net Assets Value per Share 3521

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements and are 1o be read in conjunclion therewith.

N . Sl —

Chief Financiai Officer : Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

Dhaka, 26th October 2021
DVC: 2110280352A8948568

GROAZY-2270 Page 5 Mir Akhier Hossain Limited
m;;:;ﬁ;'rnl:,m ' Parymal Kumer Sarker iid Dasbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ld. Chief Financial Officer s &

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. ompany Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Revenue 18 3,242,277,000 2,694,959,701
Cost of execution of the contract 20 \ (1.928,782,658)
Gross profit 935,721,142 766,177,043
General and administration expenses 21 (188,054,895) (144,650,336)
Profit from operations 747,666,247 621,526,707
Non-operating income 22 16,382,166 13,328,379
Financial expenses 23 921,011 (379,093,785)
Profit before tax and WPPF 338,127,402 255,761,281
Contribution 1o WPPF {18,101,305) (12,179,108)
Profit before tax from own construction business 322,026,007 243,582,182
Tax expense

Curent 241 (220,067,635) (168,613,886)

Deferred 242 - -
Tolal Tax expense (168,613,886)
Profit after tax from own construction business 101,968,462 74,968,296
Profit after tax from Joint Venture 25 367,884,649 300,038,702
Total net profit after tax for the year mn‘l Swz
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year Mﬂ 352&7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

%—‘———ﬁ__

Chief Financial Officer

.

Dhaka, 26th October 2021
DVC: 2110280392A8948568

GKCIAN-22030

,}q_,__,_/

Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

=l
il

Signed in terms of our repart of even date annexed.

Page 6

Parymal Kumer Sarker
Chief Financial Officer
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

Hoalswlsa Nomivr
Director

AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#352)
G. KIBRIA & CO.

asb Sunnah
Cempany $ecretary
Mir Akhlef Hossain Ltd.



“ — MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year snded 30 June 2021

- Taka Taka
Balance as at 01 July 2019 1,000,000,000 2,363458,720 107,539,681 2,470,998,801 3470,998,601
Profit after tax for the year 30 June 2020 74,568 295 - 74,068 295 74,968,295

« Profit after tax from Joint Venture 300,038,702 - 300,038,702 300,038,702
Balance as at 01 July 2020 1,000,000,000 2,738,465,7117 107,539,881 2,846,005,588 3,846 005,508

= |ssue of new shares 207715470  1.042.284.530 1,250,000,000
Profit after tax for tha year 30 June 2021 $ . 101,968 462 - 101,968,462 101,668 462
Profit aher tax from Joint Venture 367,884 649 - 367,884 849 367,884 648

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are 10 be read in conjunction Merewith

A
Hodnalsudan Nom\v S W
Chief Financial Officer Secretary Director Managing Director Chairperson
Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed
= Dhaka, 26th October 2021 AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner
DVC: 2110260392A5948568 G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

GHCAI- 2230

h;-k\-\w \ '

ir Nasir Hossair
Managing Djmc:'-m
Mir Akhter Hossain Lad,
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Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 3,610,161,648 2,954,998,403
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3,144,795,022) (2.764.246,834)
Cash generated from operation 465,366,627 230,751,569
Income tax deducted at source and paid (221,696, 851) (167,942 147)
Net cash generated from operating activities 243,670,776 62,809,422

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(704,500,728) (345,860,992)

Investment in Joint Venture (88,034,789) (3,534,028 548)
Investment in Mir Securities Limited {79,800,000) -
Investment in FDR - 754,972,500
Investment in Projects _(39,900,000) 48,382,602
Net cash used in investing actilties T @12208517) _ (3.076,364.348)
. Gash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment 622,251,036 3,372,048,884
Issuance of new shares through IPO 207715470 B
Share Premium 1,042,284 530 -
inerest Pad (425906163 _  (379.090.795)
Net cash (used in)from financing activities 1746324873 2992955089

D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,077,760,133 (20,588,836)
Unrealized FX Gain/{loss) related to Foreign Currency held 5152 .

E. Opening cash and cash equivalents Mﬁg‘! 49?‘5051358

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E) 1554680805 476,915,521
Net Operating Cashflow per share (Note 26.3) 223 0.58

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

T

Chief Financial Officer Chairperson

@ N idnckondee. Marty
Secretary Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

G.

AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, (#392)
Dhaka, 26th October 2021 G.KIBRIA & CO
DVC: 2110280392A5948568 Chartered Accountants
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the period ended 30 June 2021

1 Legal Status and Nature of the Company

11

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited ["MAHL"} was incorporated as Private Company Limited by shares on July 18, 1980 vide
registration # C-B166/35 with Registrar of Joint Stock Comparies & Firm under the Companies act, 1813,

The company in its extra ordinary general meeting heid on 3rd and 10th January, 2017 made some amandments to
the Memorandum and Articies of Association of the company with a view to converting it into a Public Limited
company, increasing its authorized capital, decreasing the denomination of face value of shares complying with the
Compamies Act 1894, which were approved by the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Dhaka. On
January 26, 2021, the Company was listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange {DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange
{CSE) through intial Public Offering {IPO).

12 The address of the corporate office of the company is at Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level 7 & 10, 7172 Oid
Elephant road, Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

The company owns and operates a construction business. In addition to working under its own name, MAHL also
executes several construction work under Joint Venture agreements. The company was also invoived in trading of
cigarettes. However from July 01, 2017 the company has discontinued its cigarettes business as per decision of its
Board Meeting daled September 20, 2017 with refrospective effect from 01 July 2017 All inventory held for the
cigarsite business were disposed in the year at book market value resuling in no gain or foss on disposal

Jascrntion of s ’L-L‘""-'i' £S and associales

Subsidiaries are entities controlied by the Group. The Group controls an entity when i is exposed 1o, or has rights to,
variable refumns from its involvement with he entity and has the ability fo affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are inciuded in the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which control commences until the dale on which control ceases

Mir Securities Limited

Mir Securiies Limited {MSL') was incorporated in Bangladesh on 2 March 2021 vide registration # C-16934 /2021 as
a private company himited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994, The registered office of the Company is
situated at Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level # 7 & 10, 37/3/A, Easkalon Garden, Dhaka. I is a subsidiary Company
of Mir Akhler Hossain Ltd that holds §8.75% ownership of the Company.

The main objective of Mir Securiies Limited is to act as a member of slock exchanges, the central depository system
{CDS) companies and lo camy on the business of broker, jobbers or dealers in stocks, shares, securiies, bonds,
debentures. The Company is currently in fhe process of oblaming their Trading Right Entilement Cenrtificate
{TREC)from Bangladesh Secunties and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

2 Basis of preparation

21 Statement of compliance

These financial stalements are individual financial statements of MAHL, and have been prepared in accordance with
Intamational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act, 1684, the Securities and Exchange Rules,
1887, reievant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) | Income Tax
Ordinance 1984, VAT and Supplementary duty Act 2012, Reguiations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange,
Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (Amendment in 2013) and Bangiadesh Labour Rules 20115, Finarcial Reporting Act
2015 and other applicable iaws in Bangladesh. These indivdual financial statements present the financial position and
performance of MAHL and its investment in Joint Ventures with multiple entities.
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These financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis. Unless otherwise specifically mentioned,
historical cost principle has been followed for the purpose of the financial statements.

22 Structure, content and presentation of financial statements

Being the general purpose financial statements, the presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with
the guidelines provided by IAS 1. "Presentafion of Financial Statements’. A complete set of financial statements
comprises.

i) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial Position;

iij Consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;

iif) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Changes in Equity;

iv) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows;

v} Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting
poticies and other explanatory information to the financial statemants.

23 Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

The financial stalements of subsidiary, Mir Securifies Limited (MSL') has been fully consolidated as Mir Akhtaer
Hossain Limited {MAHL") directly controis more than 50% of the voling rights of MSL. The accounting policies of MSL
have been aligned with the policies adopled by Mir Akhtar Hossain Limited.

{ii) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the equily inferest in MSL not altributable to MAHL. NCI is calculated at MSL's
proportionate share of identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition as per para 19 of IFRS 3: Business
Combinations . NCI is presented in the consciidated statement of financial position, separately from the equity of the
shareholders of MAHL as per paragraph 22 of IFRS 10: Consofidated Financial Stalemanis

in accordance with paragraph B94 of IFRS 10: Consclidated Financial Statements, the Group attributes the profit or
ioss and each component of the ciher comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controliing
interests even if the results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

{iii) Loss of control |

When MAHL loses control over it's subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabifities of the subsidiary and any
related NCI and other components of the equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recogmised in the profit or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

(iv) intragroup transactions

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are .¢liminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminaled against the invastment to the extent of MAHL's interest in
the invastee. Unreahsed losses, f any, are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment

23 investment in Joint Ventures

In addition to the Company's own consiruction business, the Company will form joint ventures with other
organizations to execute customer contracts. The investment in these joint venlures are accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in the joint ventures are initially recognised af cost The
carrying amount of the investments are adjusted to recognise changes in the company’s share of net assels of the
joint venture since the acquisition date

24 Basis of measurement

Under the historical cost, assets are racorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire fhem at the time of acquisiion. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of procesds
received in exchange for the obligation, or in some circumsiances ( for example, income taxes), at the amounts of
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to salisfy the fiability in the normal course of business
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25  Functionai and presentational currency

These financial statements are prepared in Bangladeshi Taka (Taka/BOT ), which is both the company's functional
and presentational currency. All financial information has been rounded off o the nearest integer

28 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make judgment, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expense, asset and liabiliies and the accompanying
disciosures including disclosures on contingent liabilities. Uncertainties about these assumplions and estimates could
result in culcomes that require a maltenal adjustment lo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future penods

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
in particutar, information about significant areas of assumptions, estimations and judgments in applying accounting

policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements are
described in the following notes

Note - 2.2 Basis of consolidation

Note-23and 5 Basis for using Equity Mathod

Note - 2.7 Going Concemn

Note - 3.2 IFRS 16 Leases

Note - 343 Depreciation and useful ife duration of assets
Note-35 impairment of Assels

Note - 3.8.2 and 15 Dederred tax assetiiability
Note - 3.5.1 and 24 Provision for corporate tax
Note - 3.13 and 35 Contingent Liabilities

Maasurement of Fair Vaiue
When measuring the fair valie of an assel or a liability, the Group uses markel cbservable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair vaiue hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techriques as follows:

Level quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities

Level 22 mputs other than quoled prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i . derived from prices)
Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

27  Going concern

As per |AS-1 para 25, a company is required 1o make assessment at the end of each year to assess its capability to
continue as a going concem. These financial siatements have been prepared on going concern basis. The company
has adequate resources to continue its cperation for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to
adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial stalements. The current resources and credil facilities of the
company are sufficient to meet the present requirements of its existing business.

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic

Similar to all other organizations, MAHL was aiso not immune fo the impact of Covid-18. There were significant delays
in the compietion of several on-going projcets duning the cument year and prior year. As a resull, there was a
significant reduction in revenue recognized the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020 (which was the first year of
the pandemic) With the partial improvement of the pandemic in the courtry and vaccination rofi-culs, the overall
economy has stadted to recover. This impact can also be seen in the financial parformance of the Company with 20%
increase in ravenue 'or the Company compared to the prior year. The Company has managemed to eam a positive
Cperating Cash Flow which shows that the averall liquidity position of the Company is still sound. The Company is
mmmmwmmmmmhwmmammm
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Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with as per |AS 7 "Statement of cash flows” under direct
method as prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange (BSEC) rule 1987. A reconciliaion of Net
operating cashflow from operating activities under the indirect method has aiso been prepared in accordance with
Clause No. 5(2)(e) of Netification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2008-158/208/Admin/81 Dated 20th June, 2018 (Gazette
publication date: August 8, 2018)

Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each malerial item as considered by management significant, has been presented separately in the financial
statements. The Company reports separately both assets and liabiiities, and income and expenses uniess required by
an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflacts substance of the transaction and such offsetting is permitted
by applicable accounting standard. No amount has been sei off unless the Company has legal right to set off the
amounts and infends lo settle on net basis

Reporting period
This financial peniod of the company covers one (1) year from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

Compliance with Financial Reporting standards as applicable in Bangladesh for the Company

The following IASFRS are applicable for the preparations of financial statements for the period under review
1AS 1 Presentation of financial statements

1AS 2 inventories

IAS 7 Statement of cash flows

1AS B - Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
IAS 10 Events after the reporting pericd

IAS 12 income taxes

IAS 18 Property, plant & Equipment

IAS 17 Leases

IAS 19 Empioyes benefits

IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
1AS 23 Borrowing costs

IAS 24 Ralaled party disclosures

iAS 28 investment in associates and Joint Ventures

IAS 33 Eamings per share

1AS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments, disclosures

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 15  Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 16  Leases

Accruai Basis

Mir AKhter Hossain Limited prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis
of accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the Company recognizes items as assets, liabilities,
equily, income and expenses (the elements of financial stalements) when they satisfy the definitions and recognition
criteria for those elements in the IFRS concepiual Framework.

Comparitive Information

Comparafive information has been disclosed in respect of 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 in accordance with IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements for all numenc infarmation in the financial siatements and also the narrative and
descriptive information whera i11s relevant for understanding of the current periods of financial statements.
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214 Current versus non-currrent classification

The Company presents assets and fiabilities in the stalement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. Assets and liabilites are classifierd as current when they are expected to be realized, settied, sold or
consumed in a normal accounting cycle or within twelve months after the reporting period. Assets and liabifities that
are heid primarily for trading are also considered cument.

215 Standards Issued but not yet effective in Bangladesh

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below.

IFRS 17 insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the 1ASE issued IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts coverng recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosura. Once effective, IFRS 17 will
replace IFRS 4 insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required This standard is not appiicable to the
Company and will not be adopted.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments - Fees in the "10 per cent’ test for derecognition of Hiabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annuai improvements to IFRS standards process the IAASB issued amendment o IFRS 8
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the tarms of a new or modified
financial fiability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial Hability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the cther's behaif. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabiiities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022 with earlier adoplion
permitied The Company will apply the amendments lo financial liabilities that are modified or axchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not
axpecied to have a matarial impact on the Company.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments fo IAS 8

in February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of ‘accounting estimates’
mwmmaﬂmmmmhmﬁummmmcmhwﬁmm
and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entiies use measurement techniques and inputs to develop

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply o
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that penod.
Earlier application is parmitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected to have a matenial
impact on the Company

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently fo all percds presented in these financial
statements.

31 Shareholders’ capital - paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents the total amount of shareholders capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time.

32 Lease transactions (IFRS 16)
Starting 1t July 2018, IFRS 18 has been adopted and 3l leasing arrangements except thase having less than 12

months of useful ife and underlying asset values considered low value when new, have been capitalized as “rght to
use” assets with a corresponding financial liability on the balance sheet
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Leased assets are capitalized from the start date of the lease agreement al the present value of the future leassd
payments, based on the rate of infersst entered in the assel master data. Low value and short term leases
{<12months) have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operating profit as rental costs.
Lease reassessment and lease modification to increase/decrease the vaiue of an asset depending on a change in
scope of lease agreement can be made if necessary.

The asset is written off on a straight-line basis over the tenure of the lease agreements. Hence, the useful life of any
lease assels depends on the number of periods the assets can be used. The useful Bfe of such assels are dependent
on individual agreement and can vary from one agreament to another

For the Current Year, the Company entered into (or had already existing) two (2) iease agreements. These lease
agrefements were renta leases for the Company's two office premises. For both of these leases, both the lessee and
lessor have the nght to terminate the lease without permission from the ofher party and also without any penalty being
imposed by the other party. Therefore in line with Parapraph B34 of IFRS 18, both of these leases are not considerad
to be enforceable.

Since thase agreements are not considered enforcable, they do not meet the definion of a contract under IFRS 16
and thus dees not create a right-of-use Asset. Hence, MAHL has recognized the rent paid for their premises in fine
with their previous practice under IAS 17 which is recognizing a rental expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Since MAHL's rental agreements did nol meet the definition of IFRS 16 night-of-use asset, there was no impact on the
financial statements due to the adoption of this accounting standard,

33  Employee benefits: Provident Fund

Provident Fund

MAHL maintains a defined contribution plan {(Employee Provident Fund) for its eligible permanent employees. The
eligibility is determined by according to tha terms and conditions sef forth in the trust deed and ruies. The company
subscribes to @ contributory provident fund for its permanent employees which is administered by a Board of
Trustess. As per IAS 19, in a defined confribution plan, the entity pays fixed contributions into a fund but has no legal
or constructive obligation to make further payments. Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an amployee benefit expense in profil or loss in the pericd during which related services are rendered
by employees

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

In accordance with 1AS 19, an entity shall recognize the expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments if the
entity has a present legal or constructive obfigation to make such payments and reliable measurement of the
oblfigation can be made. The company makes the prowision of WPPF @ 5% of its net profit before tax after charging
such expense as WPPF in accordance with Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 as amended in 2013.

The Company does not have any policy to provide Defined Benefit Employement Benefits and therefore the Company
does not maintain a Gratuity Fund, Consequently there is no provision or gratuily expenses recognized by the
Company

34 Property, piant and equipment
341  Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associaled with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the lem can be measured refiably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or vahuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any Cost includes expendifure that is directly attbutable to the acquisition of the assets, bringing the assels to the
ipcation and condition necessary for it to be capabia of operating in the manner intended by management.
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342  Subsequent costs

The costs of replacing parf of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognisad in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow Lo the company and its costs
can be measured reliably The costs of the day to day senvicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised n
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

343  Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a reducing balance
method over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation of an asset begins
when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earfier of the date that the asset is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5
and the dale that the assel is derecognised or sold. No depreciation is charged on leasehold land and capital work-in-
progress. Depreciation is calculated and charged on all other property, plant and equipment at the following rates on
cost or valuation, considenng the estimated useful lives of the assets:

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20
Land 0% 0%
Plant and machinery 15.00% 15.00%
Spare parts Office equipment 10.00% 10.00%
Fumiture fixtures and fittings 10.00% 10.00%
Shuttering Material 20.00% 20.00%
Motor Vehicle 20.00% 20 00%

Gain or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as per provision of IAS 16: "Property, plant and equipment”

Depreciation has been allocated to the different projects on the basis of uses of the assets

MAHL recognizes two kinds of spare parts: parls which are considered long-term assets and parls which are
considered inventory. In addition, there are some spare parts which are used over mulliple years and they are used
on the field to service other capital equipment. These parts are used over mulliple years, are of very high value and
are held for use in the production of goods or service. Since these ilems are large, high value and used over multiple
years, they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, as per paragraph 6 of IAS 18 and thus are presented
as fixed assets and not inventory

344 Revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment

When using the revaluation madel, as per IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment paragraph 31, after recognition as
an assel, an item of property, plant and equipment whose fair value shall be measured refiably can be carmed at a
revalued amount. If PPE and revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the camying amount
does not differ matenaily from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The company revalued its land by an independent professional firm namely Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co., Chartered
Accountants, creating a ravaluation surpius of Taka 11,08,65,857 . The valuation report has been prepared and
trealed in accordance with Intemnational Accounting Standards (IAS) and intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The revaluation report was prepared based on the
financial position of June 30, 2017.

The increase in the camying amount of revaiued assels is recognized in the separate component of equity under the
head of revaluation surplus. However, the increase is recognized in profit or loss account to the extent that it reverses
a revalualion decrease of the same assets previously recognized in profit or loss account. There were no income
racognized for the current for any such reversals. Since the asset which was revalued (Land & Land Developments) is
not depreciated, there is no transfer of revaluation surpius to aquity done by the Company.
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35  Impairment
351  Recognition

The camrying value of the company's assels, other than inventories, are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication axists, the assel's
recoverable amount 1s estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the assel or ifs
cash-generating unit exceeds #s recoverable amount. Impaimment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. For the assets that have indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount
is estimated at each statement of financial position date.

No indication of impairment was cbserved in the period ended 30 June 2021.
352  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of net selling price and value in use. The estimaled future cash
flows are discounied to their present value using discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assel For an asset that does not generate significantly independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs

353  Reversal of impairment

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent thal the assel's camying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.
There was no reversal of impairment in the period ended 30 June 2021

36  Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant
and equipment ihat were not ready for use at the year end and these are stated at cost.

37 Financial Instruments
As per IFRS-7 “Financial Instruments. Disclosure” all financial instruments are presented in a way so that users are
enabled to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for the Company and nature and extent of nisks arising
from financial instruments o which the entity is exposed during the period and how the entity manages those risks.
Investments in fixed deposils

invesiments in fixed deposits are shown in the financial stalements at its cost and interest income is recognised as
they bacome due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances and deposits with licensed financial institutions that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Advances

Advances with no staled interest are measured ai the original amount if the effect of discounting is mmaterial
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MAHL has adopted IFRS 8 for the current period as this standard has become effective. In previous periods, the
entity used IAS/BAS 39 to account for their financial instruments. The adoption of IFRS § did not have any impact on
the Company’s financial stataments as there werg no changes in the Company's classification of the existing financial
nstruments (all remained measured al cost). As per [FRS 8, a financial instrument is measured at cost if they are
heid with a business model whose objective is hold assets and collect contractual cashfiows and the contractual
terms give rise to cash flows on specific dates which are only payments of principie and insterest on the outstanding
principle. These two criterias are met by afl three instruments above.

38  Borrowing costs

As per requirement of IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, directly afiributable borrowing cosls are capilalised during
construction period for all qualifying assets A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for #ts intended use or sale. The borrowing costs that are direclly attributable 1o the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying assel are those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the
expanditure on the qualifying asset had not been made. Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in
the periad in which they are incurred.

3.9 Taxation

Tax on the statement of comprehensive income for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
racognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates o tems recognised directly
in equily, in which case it is recognised in equily.

381  Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using {ax rates enacted or subsianiively
enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

382  Deferred tax

Deferrad tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided
for: the inilial recognition of goodwill; the inilial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relaling to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent thal they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realisation or settiement of the camying amount of assels and fiabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel if there is a
legal enforceable nght 1o offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relale to income laxes levied by the same
tax authority on the same laxable entity.

A delerred tax assel is recognised only fo the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utifised Deferred fax assets are reviewed at each reporiing date and
are reduced fo the extent thal is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

310  Inventories

3101 Stocks
Inventories represants construction material and supplies i.e., rod, cement, sand , stone, tiles, bricks, pipes, electtrical
goods elc. awaiting use in the production process . Therefore, the company compiies with the principles of 1AS-2 *
inventories” and recognise inventories at cost using weighted average cost formula and measure the same at
reporting date at lower of cost and net realisable value.

3102 Stores

Spare parts and miscellaneous items are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable vaiue.
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3103  Contract Assel - Work in Progress & Contract Liabilities

Contract Asset: Work-in -process represents performance obligation completed by MAHL but for which consideration
is not yet due (since the customer has not been billed). In accordance with paragrapgh 107 of IFRS 15, this is
recorded as an asset IFRS 15 aliows a Company to use alternalive description to represent Contract Assel in the
statement of financial position (paragraph 109) Therefore contract asset is presented as "Work in Progress” in the
statement of financial position.

MAHL does not operale or use sales agenets who receive compensation in the form of commission from the
Company. Rather than agents, the Company has human resources engaged in business development The
compensation of these employees are not directly related fo aquisifion of any single contracts but rather incurred
peridocalty in the form salary and wages. Therefore the Company does not record any contract assets in refated to
customer contracts regarding costs incurred to obtain contracts which is in fine with IFRS 15 Paragragh 91

Contract fiabililes represent payments received for consideration not yet completed The Company only bills their
clients for work completed after a survey is completed by the Customer to confirm the stage of work completion. The
Company only recogmizes revenue after this process if compleled and only then will the Company bill their customers.
Consequently, nc payment is ever received before an obligation is completed and hence there is no Contract
Liabiklies on the financial statements

n Trade and other receivables

Contracts receivable represent the amounts bilied on completed consltruction coniracls - In accordance with IFRS 15,
the receivable amount represents MAHL's right to consideration that is unconditional The consideration is
unconditional due lo the fact that the service has been completed and the customer has been billeed for the services
provided. Conteact receivabie asset should be distinguished from Work in Process which represnts confracts assets
where MAHL has completed thewr performance obligation but payment i not yet due {since the customer has not
been billed yet). There are further details in Contract Asset: Work in progress is Note 3.10.3

312  Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in BDT which is company's functional curency. Transactions in foreign
currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and kabiiies n foreign curmencies al the date of statements of financial position are transiated into taka at the
exchange rate prevailing at that date Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are iransiated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial fransaction. Non-monetary tems measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined
Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary itlems or on translating monetary items at the end of the
raporting period are recognised in profit or loss a per 1AS-21 the Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

3113 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or construciive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required o seftle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabiities

Cantingent liabilities is a possible obligation that anises from the past events and whose existance will be confirmed
only by the occurance or non-occurance of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. or
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a) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation;
or

bj the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent Assets

A Contingent assel is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by
the occurance or non-occurance of more uncertain future events noi wholly within the control of the entity

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position of the Company. They are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

314 Revenue recognition

Under IFRS 15, revenue is measured under a 5 step process. The 5 step proces includes:

1. identification of contract

2 |dentification of performance obligation

3. Determination of transaction price

4. Allocation of transaction price to performance obiigation

5. Satisfaction of performance obligation

Through a 5 step process, the Company identifies a contract with a customer and the contracl defails the
consideration amount that is to be received from the customer in refum for distinet performance cbligations that is to
be performed by the Company The performance of these obligations are fullfled through the transfer of goods and
services lo the customer.

As MAHL operates in the construction business, fulfiment of their contracts invalve providing goods and services of
varied nature in 3 given contract. However the nature of these servces is such that they are not distinct individually
but rather cumulatively makes up one single distinct delivearble {since the customer cannot enjoy the benefits from
those goods or services on their own). Therfore the consideration to has been agreed in the contract is attributed to
the that one deliverabie rather than allocating them to individual goods or services since they are not distinct from one
anothar

The paformance obligation related to MAHL'S construction contracts are salisfied over-ime. MAHL uses the output
method fo determine the entity's progress iowards compiete satisfaction of a performance obiigation over time. MAHL
uses the output method because it provides a true and fair presentation of the value to the customer of the goods and
services transferred to dale relative to the remaining goods and services promised under the contract

As described above, the Company adopted IFRS 15 using the full retrospective method. Adoption of IFRS 15 did not
lead to any changes in the revenue recorded in previous periods. Revenue was recognized in fine with the Company's
progress of completion in pror years and the consideration to be received did not involve vanable elements or
muitiple performance obligations.

315  Contract Cost

Contract costs are costs that are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer or cosis that are directly related
to fulfiling a specified customer (Fulfimen cost). Conlract cost is capitalised as an asset and amortised in a way that
i5 consistent with the transfer of the related goods and service.

316  Interest expenses

Interest expense comprises interest expense on overdraft, import loan, demand loan, finance lease and term loan Al
interast expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or foss and other comprehensive income when it accrues.
interest expenses is allocated fo the different projects and joint ventures on the basis of loan used
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317 Earings per share
Basic eamings per share
The company presenis basic eamings per share (EPS} for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary sharehoiders of the companyby the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding at the year end as per 1AS-33 " earmings per share”
Dituted earmings per share

No diuted eamings per share are required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the
year under review,

318 Related party transaction
Parties are considered to be related if one of the party has the ability to control the other party or execise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions The company carried out transactions in the
ordinary course of business on an arms length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.

318 Events afier the reporting date
Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the company's position al the reporting date
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the repoding date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes when material.

320  General
Pravious year's numerical information, narralives and descriptive information in the financial statements and

accompanying notes have been disclosed and rearranged/reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to
current year's presentation.

Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer Sarker Md-Masbaus Sunnah
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5. Investment in Joint Venture

This amount represenis the company's investment in the projact
with foreign collaboration [ 10403820520 || 10,315,894 731 |
— 1050 10318884731

- Name of the Joint Venture Nature of Business
HALLA-MAH-SEOKWANG JV Construction 796,016,542 859,971 559
Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV Construction 3,004,580 686 3,235,381,400
Mir Akhter-Komaihaitec JV Construction 426,336,740 1,484 885 585

= Mir Akhter-WMCG JV Construction 871,928,159 924 137,347
Hego-Mir Akhter JV Construction 1,047,597,383 1,055,626,581
Halla-Mir Akhter JV Construction 2993132828 2,755,782,249

- Mir Akhter-CAMCE JV Construction 715,862,328 -
CRCC-MAHL Jv Construction 545,464,854 a

M 10,315,894,731

HALLA-MAH-SEOKWANG:

-— Three entities viz, Halla Corporation, Korea, Mir Akhier Hossain Lid,, Bangladesh and Seockwang Development Co. Lid

formed a Jont Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract to perform the construction work of Cox's Bazar
Asrport under the Civil Awviation Authority of Bangladesh

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV:

- Two entibes viz, Samwhan Corporation and M Akhter Hossam Lid., Bangladesh formed a Joint Venture Undertaking
{Partnership al will) based on a conlract for improvement of road from Dulla Mari road to Tangail (224 Km ) from 2-Lane to 4-
lane inciuding structures and performance based maintenance works on improved 4-lane road from Dulla Mari Road to

i Tangail (224 Km ) and Construction of 8 (Six) Nos (G-14) Storied Residential Building (100 S® Each unif) including civil,
internal & external sanitary & water supply and electnical works, suppOly & Installation of lift, Generator, electric substation
and fire fighting system etc in Block-A of Dhaka Elevaled Express way (DEE) project.

Mir Akhter-Komaihaitec JV:

Two entities viz, Komathaitec LId. and Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. formed a Joint Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will) based
on a contract No PW-02 for Construction of 16(Sixteen) Nos. Bridge at Rajshahi Zone of Western Bangiadesh Bndge
- improvement project.

Mir Akhter-WMCG JV

Two entiies viz, Mir Akhter Hossain Iid. And Wuhan Municipal Construction Group (WMCG) formed a Joint Venture
undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for the construction of 7 35 km road from Rajghat to Mohoriguna in
Moheshkhali upazilla of Coxsbazar

o 125._.——1_.
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Two entibies viz; Henan Highway Engineering Group Co. Lid., Republic of China and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. formed a Joint
Venture Lindertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for part-1: Improvement of road from west side of
Bangabandhu Brdge to Hatikumrul intersection (19 80 km) to a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving vehicular traffic
(SMVT) lane on both sides & structures and part-2: performance based maintaince works on improved 4-lane highway from
west side of Bangabandhu Bridge to Halikumrul intersection (19,80 km) to a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving
vehicular traffic (SMVT) lane on both sides & structures under the SASEC road connectivity project-1l: Improvement of
Elenga-Hatikumrul-Rangpur road o a 4-lane highway, ICB No.. SASEC-I/ICB/MP-1/WP 06 (LOT 2).

Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Halla-Mir Akhter JV

Two entities viz, HALLA Corporation , Republic of Korea and Mir Akhter Hossain Lid., Bangladesh formed a Joint Venture
Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for rehabilitation of road from Badarkhali naval police station to
Yunuskhali {Ch. 30+ 339 lo Ch. 36+123) including new 680 m kohelia bridge, strengthening of exssting runway and taxiway at
OSMANI INTERNATIOANL AIRPORT , SYLHET and construction of 535m long PC box grider bridge box over Bakkhali river
at Kustun Ghat under sadar upazila of Cox'sbazar District.

CRCC-MAHL JV

Two enfities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain ftd. And China Railway Construction Bridge Engineering Bureau Group Co. Ltd. formed
a Joint Venture undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for the construction of Construction of Broad Gauge Rail
Line from Madhukhali to Magura Via Kamarkhali.

MIR AKHTER-CAMCE JV
Two entiies viz; Mir Akhter Hossain itd. And China CAMC Engineering Co. Ltd. formed a Joint Venture undertaking

{Partnership at will) based on a contract for the Strengthening of Existing Runway and Taxiway at Shah Amanat Intemational
Airport, Chittagang

Legal Status of all Joint Ventures:
The legal status of the joint venture is a Partnership at will because it was created only fo carry out a particular construction

projects as per confract, but in accordance with the prowision of Section - 2 (20) BB of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 its status
is a Company though it does not have any consequential effect under this Ordinance

6. Investment in Projects

Balance as at 01 July 527,926,105 576,288,797
Add. Addition during the year 39,900,000 .
567,826,105 576,288,797
Less Refund dunng the year - (48,362.692)
Balance as at 30 June “?m 527,926,105
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Security Deposits {Retention Money)

Security Deposits
Balance as at 01 July

Add: Security deposits retained by the empioyer

Less: Refund during the period
Balance as at 30 June

VAT refund:

Add: Additions during the year
Less Refund during the year.

Advance & Prepayments

Advances lo employees against salary
Advances to suppliers

Consclidated Advance & Prepayments
Advance & Prepayments - MAHL
Advance & Prepayments - MSL

Less: intercompany Elimination

Advance income tax

Balance as at 01 July

AIT an import

AIT on Contract revenue

AIT on IPO & STD accounts

AIT on the registration of Car and Vehicle

Less: Provision for tax
Balance as at 30 June

Inventories

Stocks
Work-in-process
Raw materials (Note-13.1)
Goods-in-transit

Pe_—

Parymal Kumer Sarker
Chief Financial Officer

Mir Akhtar Hossain Lid.

Page 25

713,858,073 743,670,554
148,673,865 115923418
(76,534,700 (145,834,899)

187,098,238 713,959,073

18,970,330 40,744 548
. (21,774,218)
m 102“&
___SemeR 732901
2,226,787 2,855,630
938,415,189 549,033 874
w 951,889,504
840,641,976 851,889,504
30,000,000 -
{271,668) -

970,370,307 951,889,504

48134478 48,806,217
26,696,435 41,930 415
186,201,958 122,020,389
1638216 1,204,843
7,150,242 2,786,500
268,830,329 216,748,364
(220,057,635)| (168,513,886)
49,772,5% 48134478
1,740,101,845 1567.132,878
1,995,339,200 I 1,832.486.556
517,370,329 138,325,253
4252.811,374 3,525,944.685

Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Cempany, Secretary
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11.1

11.2

GROAN 2570

101 Details break-down of Raw materials:
Cement
M.S.Rod
Stone Chips/Boulder
Sand
Bricks
Sanitary Material
Wood & Plastic Door
Tiles
PVC pipa RCC pipe & 5 S Pipe
Bitumen
Chemical
Hardware Material
Elecirical Material
GP Sheet
Holo Biock
Thai Aluminium
Others
Total

221,541,230 210,007,899
239,233,520 212,896,819
451,247 800 403 463498
482,714 570 433374148
5,833 690 61,245,780
3,821,200 4,123,560
566,910 678,900
328,180 212,340
3,823,690 3,640,800
45521450 54,125,730
6,322,580 8,823,650
1477820 16,823470
8,962 540 9817 460
5,922 360 8,715,400
477,850 1,645,210
655,240 879,250
516,888,560 402,212,580
139,200 1,832,486,556

Due to targe volume number of items of stocks, it is difficult to quantify each items in a separate and distinct category

Therefore, it is grouped under the suitable head.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand (Note- 11.3)
Cash at banks
Cash at bank { Note-11.1)
Cheque in hand { Note-11 2)

Cash at bank
Cash at bank MAHL
Cash at bank IPO account (BDT account)
Cash at bank IPO account {USD converted to BOT)

Cheque in hand

Project Name

Rajshahi New Road{RNR)
Reliance Insurance Limited
Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB
Patenga Container Terminal-Ground Improvement-(PCT
Residential Model Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk Dhaka
RHD Sylhet Road Project, SRP

Dhaka Airpont (DAP)

Chitagang Deveiopment Authority BAKALIA
Kanchpur Meghna Gumti Bridge, (OSJI JV)
Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW
Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP

-’#‘3__._\__

Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

14,430,642 33,513,150
1,170,208,269 105,405,975
370,041,894 337 996,396
1,540,250,163 443,402,371
LSS0 nestssa
401,869,703 105,405,975
767,713,712 -
624,854 -
L0229 105405975
159,341,312 41,196,320
37,779,354 -
- 5,820,373
41,687 961
- 13,050,100
32,774 867 26,534,151
- 11,819,723
58,965 275
61,749,164
78,367,187
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11.3 Cash in hand

Project
Head Office 1,468,103 -
- RAJUK, Uttara Dev. Project, DHAKA 7 1,358,200
Uttara Residential Apartment Project 623,540 1,535,420
0SJ| JOINT VENTURE 578410 1,012,500
*| Reliance insurance Limited 859,632 1,478,600
Chittagang Development Authority, BAKALIA . 185,680
Malarbari Power Plant . 184,000
RHD, Shylhet Road Project{SRP) 2,655,820 3,955,400
- Dredging Work Madaripur, DWM 5 1,457,800
Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB - 2,783,290
Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW 3,655,120 -
- Munshigan; Bridge, MSBP 825,630 .
Kushtia Shilpakala Academy (KSA) 531470 2,520,100
Dhaka Airport (DAP) 2920417 8,844,200
Bangabandhu Bridge, RHD (BBTL) 312,500 3,720,380
= Dawlatdia Basantapur Road, RHD (DBR) - 4 679,500
14,430,642 33,513,150
- 11A  Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank MAHL ( Note-11.1) 1,170,208,268 105,405,975
Ll Chegue in hand ( Note-11.2) 370,041,894 337,998,398
Cash in hand (Note- 11.3) 14,430,542 33,513,150
Cash at bank - MSL 39,899,595 -
—ISMSMOMG 476815521
e
“Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
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& Parymal Kumer Sarker
cngf Financial Officer — Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Company Secretary
Mit Akhter Hossain Ltd.
GRCIAR1.2270 Paga 27 Mir Akihies Hossain Limited



12,

Share capital

Authorised
200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
120,771,547 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each

= SN000000 2000000000
[ 1.207.715470] __ 1.000,000,000

1,207,715470 1,000,000,000

Shareholding position of the company
Nominal value (Taka) Percentage of holding (%)
30-06-2021 30-06-2020 30-06-2021 30-06-2020
Sponsors/Directors 586,670,000 §86,670,000 48.58% 58 67%
Institutions 47,106,540 - 390% 0.00%
General Public 573,938,930 413,330,000 47 52% 41.33%
1 715,470 1!m!m!m 100.00% 100.00%

On 26 January 2021, the Company raised total proceeds of BDT 1,250,000,000 through Initial Public Offering (IPO). Overall
the Company issued 20,771,547 shares with nominal value of BDT 10.00 per share. The Company recognized an increase in
Share Capital of BDT 207,715 470 and share premium of BDT 1,042,284 530

13.  Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation reserve 110,865,857 110,865,857
Less. Deferrad tax liabilities on revaluation reserve (3,325 876) {3,325,976)
107, ' 107,539,881
14.  Retained earnings
Balance as at 01 July 27384685717 2.363.458,720
Profit transferred from statement of comprahensive income 101,968 462 74 968 295
Transferred from joint venture business 367,884,649 300,038,702
Balance as at 30 June 3208318828 2,738,465,717
14A Consclidated Retained eamings
Balance as at 01 July 2,738 485,717 2,363 458,720
Profit transferred from MAHL Business {MAHL) ~ 101,968.462 74,968,295
Less: Loss in MSL attributed to MAHL  (10,380,558) .
91,587 905 -
Transferred from joint venture business 367,884,649 300,038,702
Balance as at 30 June m 2,738,465 717
148 Non-Contolling Intrest in MSL
Balance as at 01 July -
NCI Portion of M3L Commaon Share Equity 200,000
NCI Portion of MSL loss for the year _(26,018)
17398
A B - A
Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer Sarker: Md. Masbaus Sunnah
M_anaging Director Chief Financial Officaf, Company Secretary
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15 Deffered tax liabilities

The company has recognised deffsred tax fiabilities on revaluation surpius complying with the international Accounting
Standard (1AS-12)

s Thera are no other sources of deductibleftaxable temporary differences for MAHL. Historically, the Company's depreciation
expense for accounting purposes have been in line with depreciation expense recorded for tax purposes leading to no
temporary differences. MAHL's joint venlures which are recorded using the equity mathod also does not lead to any

5] taxable/deductible temporary difference since the Joint Ventures are taxed as a separate enfity. All distribution of profits paid
to MAHL are done on an after-tax basis and therefore there s no instance where a temporary difference can anse

B Revaiuation surplus 110,865,857 110,865,857
Tax rate, as per Section 53H of the income Tax Ordinance 1984 read with
3% 3%
Rute 171 :
- Defferd tax &abilites

16.  Loan from Financial Institutions

Social Islam: Bank L. 1,510,777.691 1.501,630.958
Shahjalal isizm Bank Ltd 1,581,546,454 2,024 448 6586
Dhaka Bank Ltd. 1,928,868 864 1,783,006.413
L United Commercial Bank Limited 2,276,685,362 2175424 679
Jamuna Bank Limited 865,740,893 1,478,498 356
Uttara Bank Limited $§27,218,368 503,751,240
R BRAC Bank Limited B80S 606,087 831,085,279
Pubali Bank Limited - 7453158
Standard Bank Limied 931,584 568 1,277 437 585
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Lid 1,204,325,180 740,395,869
- Midland Sank Lid 368,700,432 338,135,404
Maodhumoti Bank Ltd 718,819,347 889,157 899
Mutual Trust Bank Lid 1581827828 1,303,714 975
- NRB Commercial Bank Lid 841,630,556 589,480,648
Dutch Bangta Bank Limited 1,862,100,300 910,879,893
17,004,832,140 16,082,581,104
Less: Short term Loan {4,873,468,063)| {2,612,089,755)
- Long term loan 12,131,364,077 13,470,491,349
- 16.1  Social islami Bank Ltd.
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Social Islami Bank Limited on vanous dates for
Ll execuling the projects and improting the equipments and others. These loans are repayabie with interest at the range of
700%800%pa
- 16.2 Shahjaial Islami Bank Lid.
This represents the amount cutstanding agains! term loans taken from The Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited on various dates
- for executing the projects and impoerting the equipments and olhers. These loans are repayabie with interest at the range of
700%900%pa

[
Ivir Nasir Hossain P
anaging Director
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" _ Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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16.3 Dhaka Bank Ltd.
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Dhaka Bank Limited on various dates for
axecuting the projects and importing the equipments and ofhers. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
700%-900%pa

16.4 United Commercial Bank Limited
This rapresents the amount outstanding against lerm ioans taken from The Uniled Commercial Bank Limited on vanious
dates for executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are rapayable with interest at the
range of 7 00%-8 00% p.a

16.5 Jamuna Bank Limited
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Jamuna Bank Limited on varicus dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with inferest at the range of 7.00%-
9 00%p.a

16.6 Uttara Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Uttara Bank Limited on various dales for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at 7.00%-8.00% pa

16.7 BRAC Bank Limited
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from BRAC Bank Limited on various dales for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00%
pa.

16.8  Pubali Bank Limited
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Pubal Bank Limited on various dates for exscuting
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-8.00%
pa.

16.9 Standard Bank Limited
This represents the amount oulstanding against term oans taken from Standard Bank Limited on various dates for executing

the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with inferest at the range of 7.00%-8.00%
pa

16.10 Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited

This represents the amount culstanding against term loans taken from Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the of
7.00%-9.00%pa %_____,)‘_ 2 2 3

3 = nah
Mir Nasir Hossain g:mL I::mar Sarker s e }ax:;"
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16.11 Midland Bank Ltd.

- This represents the amount outstanding against term ioans taken from Midland Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing the
projects and importing the equipments and others. These ioans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-8.00% p.a

16.12 Shimanto Bank Ltd.

- This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Shimanto Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing the
projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a

16.13 Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount oulstanding against term loans taken from Modhumoti Bank Lid. on various dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-98.00%
pa

16.14 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

This reprasents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Mutual Trust Bank Lid. on various dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest al the range of 7.00%-9.00%
pa

16.15 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from NRB Commercial Bank Lid. on various dates for
execuling the projects and impaorting the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% pa

16.15 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Dutch Bangla Bank Lid. on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7100%-9.00% pa

16.17 Security

(a) Personal guarantee of all the Directors including Managing Director of the company.

{b) Existing charge on immoveable property. moveable property, book debts and floating assets (present and future) of the
company duly registered with RISC&F

(c) Mode wise post dated MICR cheques for each limit separately in favor of the bank to be oblained through an undertaking
to the effect that these have been provided by you for repayment purpose.

{d) Fresh usual charge documents (mode wise) duly stamped and filled in

pals = T S
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17.  Deferred LC
SL | item Name BODT Value
1 |Stone 36,443 550
2  |Motor Grader 6,796,000
3 {Stone 3277, 11
4 [Stone 2.823,180
5 {Stone 1,771,208
6 |Stone 3,298,603
7 |Lab Equipment 1,468,600
8 |Stone 2,360,153
§  |Motor Grader Parts 2.913,700
10 |Stone 887,235
11 |Stone 2,815 787
12 {Stone 3,313,050
13 [Woven Geotextile 8,834 573
14 |Geogrd 3,287,565
15 |Stone 3,311 504
15 |Bantonite powdar 2,534 483
17 |Stone 3,313 058
18 [Stone 3,297 258
19 |Stone 2,775,529
20 Stone 3,286,503
21 |Stone 3,305,651
Total 101,927,962
18.  Liabilities for expenses
Salary & Allowances 13,345,900 25 184,180
Audit fees 350,000 350,000
Legai Fees 140,000 100,000
Director's Remuneration 560,000 160,000
Teigphone & Fax Bill 12,380 42,680
Electncal B 101,600 83,057
Repair & Maintenance (Machinery) 65,700 103,000
Repair & Maintenance {CAR) 63,000 90,100
Repair & Maintenance {Equipment) 16,320 17,530
Office Rent 1835177 1,835,178
GAS & WASA Bill 37,200 39,220
Payable lo Suppliers 10,065,713 15,000,000
Stationery 15,200 14,880
Newspaper & Postage 1,040 4,050
Office Mantenance Charges 27,19 26,760
Fuel & Lubricant 15,120 130,500
PF Contribution 310,200 252,033
Contribution to WPPF 28280414 92,299,258
242,154 138,712 446
w
18A. Consolidated Liabilities for expenses
Liabifities for expenses - MAHL 55242154 138,712,448
Liabilities for expenses - MSL 308,169 -
Less: Intercompany Elimination C ] b 71,6 -
ﬁ' m 138,712,446

ir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
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19.  Revenue
#  Project Name (Details of Revenue is shown in Annexure - 1)
1 RHD Sylhat Road Project{SRP) 1,057,260,712 333,788,187
2 Chevron Bangladesh (BD)Block Tweive Ltd 75100472 20,818,400
3 Kushtia Shilpakala Academy {(KSA) 52,808,262 35,301,493
4 Maizkandi-Boalmari Gopalgan Road(MBG) - 3784254
5 Matarban Power Plant{MPP) - 68,126 485
&  Kanchpur Bridge Narayongong (KMG)OSJI 165,267,024 1,047,005 682
7 Patengha Contamner Terminal Ground Improvement (PCT) 311,807 918 188,200 985
& Rajshahi New Road{RNR) 241,277 132 242,080,753
9 Uttara Construction Building Project{UTTARA) 183,615 4,887,025
10 Residential Mode! Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk Dhaka - 15,819,080
11 Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NB8 - 20,092 949
12 Chitagang Development Authority BAKALIA 85,564,000 78,181,000
13 Relaince insurance Lid 135,821,135 83,533,136
14 Dawlatdia Basantapur Road RHD (DBR) - 237,882,095
15 Dradging Work Madaripur, DWM 1,245,526 14,891,467
16 Bangabandhu Brdge RHD {BBTL) 141,628,399 132,160,002
17 Dhnaka Airport (DAP) 358,525,326 188,237 708
18 LGED, Gopalganj, BAPARD (Kotalipara) 64,048 421 -
18 Multarpur Bridge, AMBP 89,821,505
20 Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW 337,821,180
21 Jamuna Rai Bridge Project, JRBP 48,182,487
22 Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP 95,026,905 .
Total Revenue _SME: 2;594&!?91
20. Cost of execution of the contract
Opening stack of constriction material 1,832,486,556 1,635,458,010
Development and matenal expense (Note 23.1) 1,711,877,572 1,951,084.708
Cost of construction matenial available during the pericd 3,544,464,128 3,586,542,7118
Closing stock of construction material 1,895,339,200 1,832,486,556
Cost of constrution material consumed during the period 1,549,124,928 1,754,056,162
Direct expenses {Note 23.2) 940,399,898 880,805,172
Total cost of construction in process 2,489,524 827 2,644,661,334
Cpening Work in Process 1,557,132,878 841,254 200
Closing Waork in Process 1,740,101,845 1,557,132 876
Total Cost of execution of the contract 2,306,555,856 1,928,782 658
20.1 Development and material expense
Earth filling and developmant work 3,852,400 64,821,580
Matenal cost 1,708,125.172 1,886,263,148
Less: Vat Refundable - -
Total Development and material expenses —_LTNPTIST? __ 1.951,084,708
e A’
Mir Nasir Hossain 'P’z”—”l* ¢ i X
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20.2

20.241.

21.

Direct expenses

Project Expenses
Cariage Inward
Fuel and Lubnicant

Bank chargefOthers charge by the Empoyer

Salary & Wages
VAT (Note-23.2 1)
Depreciation (Note-04)
Total Direct Expenses

VAT

VAT Deducted from Construction Business

VAT Deducted from Impor Stage
Total VAT

General and administration expenses

Staff Salary & Allowance

Board Meating Fea

irectors Remuneraton
Advartisement

Printing & Staticnery

Tender, Prequalification/Enlistment
Office Rent

Fess & Chgarges

Traveling & Tour

Telephone & Fax Charge

Postage & Talegram

Fuel & Lubricant

Repair & Maintenance (Machinery)
Repair & Maintenance (CAR)
Newspaper & Penodicals
Elgcirical Charge

Conveyance

Entertainment

Unifiorm & Liveries

Secunty Services

Insurance & Pramium

Donation & Subscription/Zakat
Business Promaotion

Head Cffice mainteance

Madica! expenses

Repair & Maintenance (Equipment]
(GAS & WASA Bilt

Site Office Maintenance

Audit fes

Legal Fee

Total General and administration expenses

Mir Nasir H\B?sain
Managing Director
Mirddchter Hossain Ltd.

Parymal Kumer Sa
Chief Financial O
Mir Akhter Hoasain

1,744 820 1,812,560
826320 1,236 980
93,675,719 88,788,520
5138739 9951936
420,428 480 404,127 820
251,756,412 212,876,745
166,529,408 171832611
. MOJSE _ 890505172
178,196,533 59 426 960
73,559 879 113,449,785
; Qig§41z 21;8?6!745
142485915 103,252,783
62,000 -
9,240,000 1,680,000
48720 145,200
182,400 178.320
369,230 482,100
21848579 21,772,358
478,350 485,200
148, 320,550
389.230 512,300
28110 32150
1,672,600 1,565 480
789,254 1,236,930
756,220 1.080,710
12480 48570
1,219,486 756,885
218,150 268,500
255,680 488,750
55470 78,950
212,580 155400
3614118 6,235,000
141,200 126,500
71420 65,230
228,510 302,380
433,680 482 500
220,100 210420
446,463 475,880
326,320 n4n
350,000 700,000
1,680,000 1,200,000
¢ : &M 1&550!336

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary

Mir ARRYEF FiBEs4iR Ltd.



21A.  Consolidated General and administration expenses
General & admimisiration expense - MAHL 188,054,895 144 650,336
General & administration axpense - MSL 10.406.574 .
Total Consolidated General and administration expenses 198,461,469 144,650,336
22 Non-operating income
interest Income (STD Bank Interest) 153,953 74,012
interest Income (IPQ Bank interest) 16.228.213 .
FDR Interest Income - 13,254 367
16,382,168 13,328,379
23 Financial expenses
Interest Expense 1476,762.418 1,316,659,987
Foreign Exchange {gain)ioss - Realized 431,904 7832838
Foreign Exchange (gain)foss - Unrealized 102,970 (344 434)
Bank Charges 756 488 855,361
'IM’ 781 1,325,003 752
Less: Interest charged to Joint Venture Partners:
a) HALLA - MAH - SEOKWANG JOINT VENTURE 16,325,188 .
bl SAMWHAN-MIR AKHTER JOINT VENTURE 271,269,196 396,136,744
¢) MIRAKHTER-KOMAIHALTEC JV 10428 677 75,676,036
d) M Akhler-WMCG JV 115,109,101 45,082,906
e) Hego-Mir Akhter JV 98,663,782 28 976 848
f)  Halla-Mir Akhler JV 382,120,371 400,037 425
gl CRCC-MAHL JV 81,432,964 -
B} MIR AKHTER-CAMCE JV 66,783,461 -
1,052,132,770 945,900,957
Financial expenses charged M&1 m,mlm
24, Income tax expense
Currant tax (note-25 1) 220,057 635 168,613,886
Deferred tax {note 25.2) ‘ 3
M,m l&ﬂ 5&6
241 Current tax
1) Construction business income (as per 82C income) 212,898 383 163,850,804
2) Interest income on FDR - 4639028
3} Inferest income on STD account 34639 24064
4) Interest ncome on IPD account 365148 -
5) Excess taxes related to vehicie registration 3,473,255 -
Totai current tax expense 220,057,635 168,613,886
The current tax expense is calculated as per Section 82C of the Income Tax Ordinanca 1884 which descnbad the minimum tax to
be paid by the Company Therefore no further effective tax rate reconciliation is necessary
As per Paragraph 81(C) of 1AS 12 Income Taxes an explanation of the relationship between tax expense (income) and accounting
profit s provided below:
Net Profit before tax 322,026,097 243 582 182
Income Tax Rate - 22.5% (A] 72455872 79,164,209
Income Tax deducted at Source [B] 212,898 393 163,960,804
Minimum tax U7S 82C of IT Ordinance 1984 - 0.6% of Revenue [C) 19,453 662 16,249,728
- Income Tax Prowision for the year: Higher of [A, B & C] 212,898,393 163,950,804
e i ..,..,...-.-L | )
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242  Deferred tax

There were no lemporary differences between camying amount of assets and fiabilites for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Thesefore the company did not record any deferref tax Habilties or assels apart from the
reviuation reserve that is described in Nole no-17

Details of the carrying vaiue of fixed assets [both tax and accounting value) are provided below

Depreciation for tax (as per 3rd Schedule 166,825,408 171,832 611
Depraciation as par Accouting 165,829,408 171,832 611
Temporary diffarence: - -

Since there is no temporary difference between the depreciation charged for tax and accounfing purposes, there is no taxable
temporary difference in the cammying value of the fixed assels for tax and accounting purposes. There is one source of temporary
difference which is caused by the revaluation of land which has already been recognized by the Company (BDT 3,325 976) Since
there is no change in the value of land {beth tax and accounting), there is deferred tax expense recognized for land in the current

year.

25, Profit after tax from Joint Venture

Name of nt Venture

HALLA-MAH.-SEOKWANG JV 107,354 215 .
Samwhan-Mir Akhler JV 1,823,000 488 113,882 829 124 520,180
Mir Axhter-Komaihallec JV 763,715,026 5,535,225 18,164 3499
Mir Akhter-WMCG JV 808,834 829 45,568,319 16,581,161
Hego-Mir Akhter JV 871,786,863 3B/.281127 3614158
Haila-Mir Axhier JV 2,766,381 517 134,608,365 138,768,794
Mir Akhter-CAMCE JV 397 544 014 8503616
CRCC-MAHL JV 540,332 000 20,518,185 .
7,878,748,952 367,884 649 300,038,702
26. Price Sensitive Information:
26.1 Earnings Per Share:
Net profit for the year 469853111 375,006,997
Number of shares 109,231,799 108 231 753
Basic earnings per share (EPS) 4.30 3.43

e Number of shares outstandii

Opening Balance 160,000,000 360 100,000,000
{ssuarice of new shares 20,771,547 160 9,231,798.67
120,771,547 109,231,799

*“The EPS of the previous correspanding period has been recaiculated with the current total number of shares after considering

ssyance of new shares
Diluted earnings per share :

No diluled EPS i$ caicuiated for the period as there was no scope for dilution during this period

o

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
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26.1A  Consolidated Earnings Per Share:

Consolidated Net profit for the year

- Number of shares

Consolidated Basic earnings per share (EPS)

Net Assets Value per Share

Net Assets (with revaluation)

Number of shares

=t Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)
Netl Assels {without revaluation)

Number of shares

- Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)
2624  Consolidated Net Assets Value per Share

Numper of sharas

Net Assels (with revaluation)

Consplidated Net Asset vaiue per share (NAVPS)

- Net Assels (without revaiuation)

Number of shares

Consolidated Net Asset vaiue per share (NAVPS)

28.3 Net Cperating Cashflow per share

Net Operating Cashfiow

Number of shanes

Net Operating Cashflow per share (NOCFPS)

26.3JA  Consolidated Net Operating Cashfiow per share

Net Operating Cashflow

— Number of shares

Consolidated Net Operating Cashflow per shars (NOCFPS)

5.4 Reconciliation of net operating cash flow:

Net profit before tax
Adjustment for:

Changes in:

e

-:‘I:r N?sir Hossain
Mum L.

Profit after tax from Joint venture
Interest expensas

Income tax paid

Invaritories

Secunty Deposits

Advances and prepayments
Daferred LC

Liabiliies for experses

‘P’E-———J;—,

Parymal Kumer Sarker
Chief Financial Officer
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

459 446 537 375,006,997
108,231,799 106 231,768
Az 343
5.565,858.710 3,846 005,589
109,231,795 108,231,798

5095 3821

5458,318,829 3,738 465 ?17J
109.231,798 108,231,798
897 Uz
5.555.552,1:5] 3,846,005 599
109,231,799 109,231,799
50.86_ 35.21
s.«a,uzﬁ] 3,846 005,599
109.231, 108 231,798
49.88 3521

243 570,776 82 4018 477]
109,231,799 108,231,799
223 0.58
203,570,371 7 B0 427
109,231,798 108,231,799
1.86_ 0.58

243 582 1821

300,038,702

478 063,796

(167.942,147)

475,837 406

(1,041 150.132)

51485 699

137,000 454

(346,710,585)

31,574 048

243 670,778 62,809,422

Md.

Company Secretary
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26.4A  Reconcifiation of net operating consolidated cash flow:
Net profit before tax 311518523 243 582 182
Adjustment for: Profit after tax from Joirt ventura 367 854 645 300,038,702
inferest axpenses 425,921,011 379.093.785
Inpome tax pad {221,695 851} {167 942 147}
Depreciaton 469,291,198| 475 837 406
Changes in: Inventones {726,886 688) (1.041,150,132)
Secunty Deposils (73,139,165} 51,485 659
Advances and prepayments {18,480 803) 137,000,454
Deferred LC {247 527,710) {346.710.585)
Liabilities for expenses {83.435,793) 31 574,048
mﬂg& (2,809 422
1. Capital Expenditurs Commitment
There was no credit faciily available 1o the company under any contract, other than trade credit available in the ordinary coursa of
business and not avatied of as on 30.06 2021
8. Payment of Foreign Currency
The company incurs foegn currency expenses through impont of Machinery & spare paris of the machinery and import of Raw
Materials
No other expense included consultancy fee, royally, technical expert and professional advisory fee, interest, slc was incurred of
paid in foreign currencies except as staled above
29, Foreign Exchange Earmned
Compnay has no foreign currency income dunng the year except fumover of Joint Venture Partnership which has beeen disclosed
in their respactive separate accounts,
Ng other income ncluding consultancy fee, royalty, technical expert and professional adwisory fee. interest. stc was incurred or
paid in foregn currencies excent as stated atove
30. Commission, Brokerage or Discount against sales
No commussion was incurrest of paid 16 distributors, agents nor any brokerage or discounts were incurred or paid against sales
31 Segment Reporting
The Company operates under one single business and geographic segment. As a result, separate segment reporting is not
necessary
32 Related party transactions (as per I1AS-24)
Alties
Direciors Remwuneraton Safary and Festival Bonus
Mir Telecom Ltd Common Rental Expenses 560 059
Adjustments lance
7,840,000 {7 840,000 560,000
Mir Telecom Lid 560,059 6,720,710 (6,720,710} 560.058
Disclosure as per requirements of schedule XI. part- nanies act - 1954
Nar f the TS Po fi
Mir Nasir Hossain Managing Director 4,800,000 5,500,000
Mr Shama-e-zaheer Drractor & COO 1,820,000 2,240,000
—
Mir Nasir Hossain Md—Masbaus Sunnah
scanzz  Managing Director -yma Cumpany:Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid, .af Financial

Akhter Hessaln Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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[ Total 1 7,840,000 |

In addstion, as per requirements of Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, the Company provided compensation o key management personnel
which includeds Cheef Financial Officer

31-June 2021 31-June 2020
Key Management Compensation (excluding Directors) 14,739,710 16,536,528
Period of payments to Directors from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 The above directors of the company were nol paid other than
the above remuneration

a. Expenses reimbursed 10 the managing agent- Nil

b Commssion or other remuneration payabie separately lo a managing agent or his associates- Nil

¢ Commission received or receivable by the managing agent or his associates of buying agent of ather concerns in respect of
contracts entered into such with the company - Nil

d The money value of the contracts for the sale or purchase of goods and malenals or supply of services, entered into by the
company with the managing agent of his associates during the financial yaar- Nil

& Any other perquisities or benelits in cash or in kind stating -Nif

f Other allowances and commission including commission-Nil

Attendance status of Board Meeting of Directors

During Ihe period from 01.07.20 to 30.08 2021 there were 4 {four) Board meeting were held. The attendance status of all the
meeling is as follows

= 1 |Mir Nasir hossain Managing Diractor 4 4
2 |Mrs Sohela hossan Director 4 4
3 {Mrs. Mahbuba Hossain Director 4 4
4 {Mr Shama-a-zaheer Director and COO 4 4
s 5 |Md Farid Uddin Independent Director 4 4
6 |AKM Faizur Rahman Independent Director 4 4
7 Prof Dr Muhammad Shanat Ullah independent Director 4 2
- 8 |Prof Nausheen Rahman Independent Director 4 2
34 Status of income tax assessment
2018-20 X0-01 Assessment is under process
201819 2018-20 Assessment completed and setlied
- 2017-18 2018-18 Assessment completed and sellied.
201647 201718 Assessment completed and satlled
2015-16 01817 Assessment completed and settled
- 35 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets .
There is a contingant liabiity of Tk. 77,90,736 in respeci of tax claim in the assessmenl year 2012-13. This matter has been
appealed to the honourable High Court and is still pending
36. Number of employees engaged
Total number of employees having annual satary of BOT 36,000 or above each was 1967 as at 30 June 2021 and 1680 as at 30
June 2020
. Events after reporting date
Thera 18 no adjusting and non-adjusting post balance sheet avent of such importance, non disciosure or recognition of which would
i affect the ability to the users of the financial stalements to make proper evaluation and decisions
- e %’__.ﬁ____
3 . in
el s o Parymal Kumer Sarker "
ncial Officer
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Chief Fina

er Hossain Lid. .
Mir Akht M asbaus Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



38. Details of Lease Agreement:

The company does not have any assats or iabliiities under finance lease agreemenis. The company's oparations renl thesr faciities
under a non-controlling operating lease. The tolal lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was TK. 21,848 579 (aiso
inciuded in Note 21)

3. Operating Debt

{ 1) Debt considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured :

The gebtores occurred in the crdinary course of business are considered good and secured

(M) Debt considered good for which the company hold no security other than the debtors personal security

There is no such debl in this respect as on 30 June' 2021

(Il1) Debt considered doubtful or bad

The company does not make any provision for doubtful debts as on 30 June’2021, because of the fact that sales/export are being
made on regular basis with fixed maturity dates.

{IV) Debt due by directors or other officers of the company

There is no such debt in this respect as on 30 June 2021

{V) Debt due byifrom Common Management
The company has na receivable from sister companies under common management. For more details related fo this recevable,
refer 1o Note 32 "Related Party Transactions

40 Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed 1o risks of varying degrees of significance that could affect ifs ability to achieve its strategic objectives
The main objectives of the Company’s nsk management procass are 1o ensure that risks are properly identified and the capital
pase is adequate n relation 10 these risks
The Company is exposed through its operations lo the following financial risks

A interest rate Risk

8 Currency Risk
A Interst Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates ralates prmarly o the Company's loans payable An increase of
1% in the average interest rale for the Company would resull in approximately additicnal expenses of BDT 10,874 664 in the
current year
B. Currency Risk
The Company's cash flows are impacted by currency movements as 3 significant portion of the Company's raw materials are
purchased in US doliars. An increase of 80T 1 and BDT 2 in the US dollar to BDT exchange rate would have resulted m an
estimated decrease fo net incoms of approximately BOT 6,752 162 and BOT 13,504 324 respectively in the current year

41 Date of Authorization:
The Boara of Directors have authonzed thesa financial statements on 26.10 2021

Mir Nasir Hossain

Managing Director
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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ANNEXURE 2: DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE OF TRUSTEE
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Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director oy K Somhet Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Axhter Hossain Ltd. R E AN ON e Company Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE OF THE TRUSTEE

The Chairman
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

SUBIECT: ISSUACNCE OF ZERO COUPON BOND OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED WORTH BOT 2,499 MILLION.
we, the under-noted trustee to the abave-mentioned forthcoming lssue, state as follows:

1. We, while act as trustee to the above mentioned issue on behalf of the efigible investors, have
examined the draft information Memorandum, legal and other documents and materials as relevant to
our decision; and

2. on the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer, it’s directors and officers, and
other agencies; independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the Issue and the
contents of the documents and other matérials furnished by the issuer;

WE CONFIRM THAT:

a)] Al information and doc as are relevant to the issue have been received and examined by us and the
draft iM, draft Dead of Trust and draft Subscription Agreement forwarded to the Commission has been
approved by us;

b) We have also examined all documents of the assets to be charged with the Trust and are satisfied that the
assets bear the vaiue, titie and charge status as disclosed in the IM;

¢] While examining the above docuiments, we find that all the requi its of the Bangiadesh Securities and
Exchange Commission {Debt Securities] Rules ,2021 have been complied with;

dj We shafl act as trustee to the issue as i d above as per provisions of the Deed of Trust 1o be executed
with the issuer and shall assume the duties and responsibilities as described in the Deed of Trust and in the
IM;

el  We shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission {Debt Securities) Rules, 2021
and conditions Imp d by the Co tssion as regards of the issue; and

fl The above dediarations as ocal and irre bl

For Trustee

’L;(’"

Tanzim Alamgir
Managing Director and CEQ
UCB Investment Limited

Date: December 23, 2021

Place: Dhaka
Buls Certov (17 Fload. Plat-CwWE~(A)-1 Rosd No—34, Guishan Avenue. [nake— 12192
£ =l suppoiSuct—y w . Vet ar G
- _—
Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
44
Strictly Private & Confidential PL——-———@_
Parymal Kumer Sarker
Chief Financial Officer Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Cempany Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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ANNEXURE 3: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE

N
i Nasir
Managing D*H:ds:rain Parymal Kumer Sarker Md Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

) Mir Aknter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
First 150 9601 : 2015 Certifist Cenci! Rating Compary = Bangladash Operating Since 1985

CREnIT a.anne REPORT
On
ZERO CWPON BOND OF TK. 2,499.00 MILLION
OF MIR AKHTER H_OSSAIN LIMITED

REPORT: RR/49175/21

This is & credit rating report B per the provisions of the Credit Rating Companies Rules 1996. The rating will be valid for

one year from the date of declaration, After the above period, the rating will not carry any validity uniess the Instrument
. gues for ssting surveillance. CRISL followed Bond Rating Methodoiogy published In CRISL website

Issue Rating (Zero Coupon Bond) A+ {Indicative)

{ Date of Rating Declaration December 27, 2021

Rating Validity Decamber 26, 2022

1.0 I1SSUE RATING RATIONALE

CRISL has assigned 'A+’ (Indicative) rating (pronounced as "A" plus indicative) to Zero
Coupon Bond of Tk. 2,499.00 million of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited. The above rating has
been assigned In consideration of some strong fundamentals of the issue such as good return
from Investment, tax benefit etc. However, the above factors are constrained, to some extent,
by the feature oﬁ' the bond which includes unsecured and non-convertible debt instrument,
etc.

Securities rated in this category are adjudged to be of good credit quality and offer adequate
safety for timely repayment of financial obligations. Protection factors are considered variable
and mmsmpabie to changes in circumstances than securities in higher-rated categories.

2.0 ISSUE FEATURE: rm ZERO COUPON BOND OF MAHL

Tk.2,499.00 mitlion

Trustee:
UCE Investment Limited

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (HARL) will issue Zero Coupon Bond hereinafter referred to as
"ZCB' or “the issue”) of Tk. 2,499.00 million (833 no. of bonds ¢f Tk.3.00 million each ict).
MAHL will issue above bond to pay off its existing loan liabilities as well to invest In working
capital through a private placement basis to potential investors such as Banks/Non-Bank
Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies and Corporate Bodies, Mutual Funds, Asset
Management Firms and high net worth individuals etc. The bond is conditionally secured,
nonconvertible and fully redeemable in nature. The indicative discount rate is expected to be
within the range of 7% - 9% per annum. However, in case of late redemption or on failure to
make timely payment, there will be incremental charge at the rate of 2% per annum payable
by the Issuer to the bondholders, above the amount to be paid by the Issuer to the
bondhalders on the redemption date. The bond will be redeemed in 6 instaliments (having
equal amount of TK. 416.50 million} starting from the end of 18" months of the date of
issuance followed by six months interval thereafter. Coupon Payment of the bond wili be paid
half yearly on the coupon payment dates at the end of each coupon period. A Subscriber shall
have the right to freely transfer the ZCB upon fulfilment of certain formalities, IDLC Finance
Limited will act as a Lead Ammg&r and UCB Investment Limited will act as a Trustee of the
bonds.

3.0 ISSUER mf- MIR AKHTER aouuu unm -

Mir Akhter Hossaln L!mlteﬁ (MAHL) is a buﬁﬂlng and/ civil construction company and a major
concern of Mir Group. The Group consists of several business units having exposure in
Telecom, Cement, Ceramic, Real Estate, Power, ICT sector etc. The Group started its Journey
in 1968 ‘with Mir Akhter Hossian Ltd. as the flagship company under the prominent
entrepreneur late Mr. Mir Akeb Hossain, From inception, every concern of the Group has been
operating with good reputation and positive brand image. MAHL was initially established as a
partnership company in 1969 which later converted into a private limited company in July 18,
1980. Subsequently MAHL was converted into a Public Limited Company on January 10, 2017.
In January 26, 2021; the company went for initial public offering and the shares of the
company are iisbad wi!:h both the bourses of the country-Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) under 'N category. The company Is operating with
Tk.2,000.00 million of authorized capital and Tk.1,207.72 million of paid up capital as on
September 30, 2021. The mission of the company is to provide quality and superior services

through the integration of excellent design solutions, dedication to sww

B Huzafiar Aboed, roses s

President and CEO
Chief Financial Officer

IS0
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary

~ Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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CREDIT RATING REPORT
On
ZERO COUPON BOND OF TK. 2,499.00 MILLION
OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

capacity, responsible of hiring competent subcontracts and value for safety and customer
satisfaction. Equipped with sound production facilities, the company successfully executed
diverse projects like construction of international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges,
Industrial Complexes etc. MAHL has one subsidiary namely Mir Securities Ltd. (99.75%
holding) which has incorporated from March 02, 2021. Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain, a renowned
businessman, is the Managing Director of the company. The Head Office of the company is
located at Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level-7 &10, 37/3/A, Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

4.0 ISSUER CREDIT RATING

CRISL has reaffirmed the Long Term rating to ‘AA-" (pronounced as double A minus) and the
Short term rating to 'ST-3" of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (MAHL) on the basis of its audited
financials up to June 30, 2021 and other relevant quantitative and gualitative information up
to the date of rating. The above ratings have been reassigned after due consideration to its
fundamentals such as increase in financial performance, average liquidity, sound
infrastructure facilities, strong Group support, experienced management team etc. However,
the above ratings are constrained, to some extent, by factors such as debt based capital
structure, significant competition in the market, risk of project completion, etc.

The Long Term rating indicates that entities rated in this category are adjudged to be of high
quality, offer higher safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating Indicates a
corporate entity with a sound credit profile and without significant problems. Risks are modest
and may vary slightly from time to time because of economic conditions. The Short Term
rating indicates good certainty of timely repayment. Liquidity factors and company
fundamentals are sound. Although ongoing funding needs may enlarge total financing
requirements, access to financial markets is good with small risk factors.

CRISL also views the company with "Stable Outlook” believing that the company will be able
to maintain its fundamentals with the same trend in the foreseeable future.

5.0 TRUSTEE TO THE ISSUE

5.1 Background of Trustee

UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank
Limited {99.96% shareholding by UCBL and remaining 0.04% by UCB Capital Management
Ltd.). It was incorporated in 3™ August, 2011 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act (Act XVIII) of 1994. It obtained full-fledged Merchant Banker & Portfolio
Management license from Bangladesh Security and Exchange Commission on 5% October,
2020. The authorized and paid up capital of UCBIL stood at Tk, 1,000.00 mition and Tk.250.00
million respectively.

The company has been inaugurated on 29th November, 2020 and under the firm guldance of
the founding CEO, Mr. Tanzim Alamgir, the company aims to play a vital role in bridging the
gap in professional financial management services in the country and the gap between
investors and investment opportunities. The services of UCBIL are Bond Issuance, Corporate
Advisory, Mergers and Acquisitions, I1ssue Management Services, Underwriting, Capital Raising
and Private Placement, Portfolio Management etc. The registered address of the company is
Bulus Center, Road: 34, Plot: CWS- (A)-1, Gulshan avenue, Dhaka-1212.

5.2 Roles and Responsibilities of the Trustee

The Trustee has the following duties and powers in connection with the Trust:
+ To act on behalf and for the exclusive interest of the investors;
* To ensure compliance of the Issuer as per the requirements of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;
« To monitor timely payment of all dues of the issuer tg the investors in terms of the

Parvmfgilemrsamr Md. Masbau§:San s
Chief Financial ®*icer Cempany S &‘w _
Mir AKhter Hessain Lid. Mir Akhter Hoss ion and Services Lt
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IM or other terms and conditions of the issue of securities under Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission {Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;

*« To ensure creation of charges by the issuer over collateral securities and obtaining
other securities or guarantees in favour of the trustee;

* To enforce its rights, over the credit enhancement or collateral securities and other
securities or guarantees when it is necessary to do;

+ Call the investors’ meeting and enforce the decisions within such time of any default
or any act of the issuer which may affect the interest of the investors as specified in
the deed of trust and in the IM;

+ Delay in payment of any dues by the issuer, which is not approved by the trustee
shall be treated as final default, in such a case the trustee shail enforce its rights
over the credit enhancement or collateral securities and other securities or
guarantees of the issuer observing due legal process and thereafter the trustee shall
dispose-off the same to pay the proceeds proportionately to the investors after
deduction of costs related thereto;

+ In case the delay is approved by the trustee for a certain period upon any reasonable
ground, the trustee shall ensure repayment of the dues within the approved delay
period along with interest for the delay period at a rate of 2% (two percent) per
annum above the usual rate of return of the debt instrument;

« In case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger) of the issue under
surveillance rating, the trustee shall ensure the collection of risk premium from the
issuer or originator for the investors as per declaration in the deed of trust or IM,
aimed at securing the lender claims from the borrower's higher risk level;

s The trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission regarding
the activities of the issuer including repayment of dues to the investors;

» The trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors
within one month of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the
Commission informed about the number, nature and other particulars of the
complaints receivec and the manner in which such complaints have been redressed;

+ The trustee shail be liable to sue or to be sued on behalf of the investors:

« Provided that if any loss Incurred due to negligence of trustee in case of litigation or
recovery process, the trustee shall bear the ioss;

+ The trustee may, if required, inspect or call for books of accounts, records, registers
of the issuers and the trust property to the extent necessary for discharging its
obligation,

53 Events of Default: The Trustee shall not be bound to give notice to any person of
the execution of the Trust Deed or to take any steps to ascertain whether any Default or

Event of Default has happened and, until it shall have actual knowledge or express notice to
the contrary.

5.4 Rights, Duties And Obligations Of The Investors

Binding Obligation: Investors/bondholders are required to enter into a Subscription
Agreement with the Issuer and be bound by the terms and conditions of that agreement.

Severability of Bondholder's Obligations: The failure to perform obligations of the
Bondhoiders under the Subscription Agreement and other agreements with identical terms
shall not affect the obligations of the Issuer towards any other Bondholder(s) under other
identical agreements.

Individual Right: Each Bondholder will be entitled to protect and enforce its
individual rights independently without the need for other Bondholder(s) to be joined as
additional party in such proceedings for such purpose.

Powers: The Bondholders shall be able to hold meetings with such power and scope as
provided for in the Trust Deed.

Poo

Managing Director
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

Chief Financial Officer ~ Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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Issue Bond Certificates: [ssuer shall duly execute and deliver bond certificates to the
bondhoiders with conditions attached.

Subscription: The Investors will subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price on the
Closing Date for the allocation, In Bangladesh Taka for same day value to such account as the
Issuer designates, subject to the provisions of the Subscription Agreement.

Compliance: The Bondholder(s) are obligated to comply with ail applicable laws and
regulations of Bangladesh.

Indemnity: The Issuer shall fully indemnify the Bondholder(s) from and against any expense,
loss, damage or liability which any of them may incur as per provisions of this trust deed in
connection with the enforcement, protection or preservation of any right or claim of the
Bondholders under the Transaction Documents.

Payment: The Bondholders will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer in the
form attached as (Form of Investor Representation Letter) of the Subscription
Agreement on the date specified. They are further obligated to pay the purchase price of
Bonds to the Issuer in Bangladesh Taka in the manner provided for on each closing date.

Termination: The Bondholders can give a termination notice to the Issuer at any time on or
prior to the Ciosing Date if the Issuer fails to perform any of its obligabions under
the Subscription Agreement, if any of the conditions precedent is not satisfied or walved by
the Bondholders on the Ciosing Date, or in the case of force majeure. Upon service of such
notice Issuer will be discharged from its obligations except for its liability in relation to
expenses related to the Bonds and except for any liability arising before or in relation to such
termination and Bondholder would also be discharged from performance of their respective
obligations under the subscription agreement.

Protection of Interest: The Bondholders are entitled to have their interests
protected/preserved by the Trustee

6.0 UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS & REDEMPTION SCHEDULE

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. is expected to receive a net discounted amount up to Tk. 2,071.78
million considering 7.00% discount rate from the sale of the Zero-Coupon bond. The bond
proceed shall be used to refinance a portion of existing high cost liabllities (75%) and for
working capital investment (25%). The company has outstanding loan of BDT 17,004.83
million as on June 30, 2021. Dependency on bank financing is a8 major concern for MAHML.
MAHL's dependence on bank financing will decline to some extent through issuance of ZCB.

70 INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Bangladesh bond market is still in its infancy. One of the main functions of a bond market
is to provide long-term finance by creating aiternative sources of finance through the capital
market. From the investor's point of view, the main purpose of the bond market is to provide
a stable source of income to the investors against the volatile capital market. The Bangladesh
capital market is yet to be developed as the required platform to create such a bond market is
absent. Besides, the investors are more interested in short term gains instead of waiting for a
stable return. However, the introduction of Basel III may create a new avenue among the
bankers to issue bonds under Tier-1 & Tier-1I capital to support its capital requirement.
Bangladesh Bank already circulated the issue principles of the above bonds. Bangladesh Bank
has fix-up the maximum deposit rate at 6%, which create the demand of bond due to its
higher return.

P, ﬁmﬁ
Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. aw fu%.m L]

Chief Financial Officer Com
J pany Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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The focal currency bond market in Asia, increased significantly by 12.7% to USD 5,370 billion
in FY2018 from USD 4,771 billion in FY2017. China dominates the Asian iocal currency bond
market with 47% share, followed by South Korea (22.25%) and Japan (13.46%). Indonesia
(0.54%), Philippines (0.40%), Vietnam (0.06%) and Bangladesh (0.30%) have smaller bond
markets as compared to other Asian countries. The presence of the secondary market has
played a vital role in the development of the bond market in Asian countries. As a percentage
of GDP, in 2018, South Korea had the largest corporate debt market (73% of GDP) foilowed
by Malaysia (46% of GDP). In India, the corporate bond market is 16% of GDP. In Indonesia,
87% of the total outstanding bonds are traded in the secondary market, followed by 70% in
India.

The corporate bond market in Bangladesh is almost non-existent, with only two bonds listed
in the prime bourse at present namely APSCL (Ashuganj Power Stations Company Ltd.) Non-
Convertible and fully redeemable coupon bearing bond of Tk.6000.00 million, being getting
the permission from Bangladesh Security and Exchange Commission (BSEC) in the year 2020.
Another listed bond is IBBL Mudaraba Perpetual Bond (first perpetual Shariah based
instrument); worth of Tk.3000.00 million and getting the permission from BSEC in the year
2007. To strengthen the bond market, BSEC has recently issue “Debt Security Rules 2021”
cavering the public private placement related issues, default and transition matrix statistics of
the credit rating companies along with notches wise defauit status.

So far, a good number of commercial banks have issued a subordinated bond. Countries’ first
subordinated bond is issued by The Brac Bank Ltd. worth of Tk. 3000.00 million {Tk. 2700.00
million from the private placement and remaining Tk.300.00 from public Subscription), is
getting the first permission from BSEC in the year 2010, to strengthen their additional Tier 11
capital base. A subordinated bond is a debt security. It is referred to as subordinate because
debt providers (lenders) have a subordinate status concerning the normal debt. It is aiso
known as a subordinated loan, debenture, or junior debt that carries a lower-priority claim on
the issuer's income or assets than that of other debt.

A few of the banks also declared to issue bonds under Tier-1. The market analysts are also
hopeful that such an issue will boost the other banks In Issuing Tier-1 bonds because the
subscribers will earn a stable return from the Tier-I bond in the face of the existing volatility
of the capital market. CRISL, however, views that a good number of mutual funds and other
Fls may Inciude the bond in their portfolio for risk minimization through asset diversification,
Due to the increase of the Asset Management Companies, they will be very much Interested
to add Tier-I bonds in their portfolio as Fixed Income Securities.

Perpetual bonds of banks often yleld a higher rate than the interest on fixed deposits. The City
Bank Ltd. and The Jamuna Bank Ltd. {(both have been getting the first permission from BSEC)
as well as One Bank and the Mutual Trust Bank's as non-shariah based instruments in the
year 2020 for Issuing of Tk.400 crore each to strengthen their additional Tier 1 capital base.
Only a few banks are going to issue perpetual bonds to meet their long-term capital
requirements as well as strengthen the Tier 1 capital base. Like other bonds, even perpetual
bonds come attached with the risk of liquidity, credit risk, and interest rate risk. If you are to
invest in perpetual bonds, then you have to keep in mind these aspects.

As per the Global Infrastructure Hub report, Bangladesh needs $608 billion of investment in
infrastructure sectors - water, electricity, telecom, ports, airports, rail, and road - from 2016
to 2040. However, current trends indicate $417 billion of investment is possible in the
aforementioned sectors, thereby leaving a gap of $192 billion in investments in the period
2016-2040. This gap in the top three sectors, power, telecom, and water sectors, is $100
biltion, $41 billion, and $40 billion respectively.

These projects are mostly financed through the government's own fund and multilateral and
biiateral funding agencies. But if the government can develop a framework for meeting the
funding gap of those projects by issuing long term infrastructure bonds, a new asset class can
be crested. This might also attract foreign portfolio investments which specialize in
infrastructure finances. A new category of mutual funds can be created in
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will invest in that type of bond. Considering the current interest rate scenario and the current
state of capital market, the bond market can emerge as a knight. Banks, NBFIs and Merchant
banks can enhance their fee-based income by working on bond issuances and cover for the
losses they are likely to suffer from the lower interest rate in the market and the loss suffered
in the capital market.

The Bangladesh bond market has been inactive over the years on account of several issues
that have acted as barriers for issuers and investors alike. From the issuer's point of view, the
cost of issuance of bonds in Bangladesh is significantly high (1.5%-2% of the total issuance
value as compared to approximately 0,2% cost of issuance of bonds in India). Besides, there
is an absence of tax benefits or other incentives for the issuers raising funds via the issuance
of debt securities. According to The Income Tax Ordinance 1984, any income derived from
zero-coupon bonds by a person other than a bank, an insurance company, or a financial
institution is exempted from tax. The tax benefit is only applicable if the zero-coupon bond (if
issued by the banks, financial institutions, and other cormpanies) is approved by BSEC or
Bangladesh Bank.

The regulators lack the necessary infrastructure to perform due diligence of the application
received from the issuers. As a result, it takes six months to one year for the issuer to issue
bonds. This acts as a major barrier for a project developer who wants to raise funds via the
bond market in a short time. Due to the lack of availability of long-term financing options, the
project developers either avail funds through bridge financing or avail long-term financing
from NBFIs and banks at interest rates of 15% to 18%, which substantially increases the
overall project cost. The long-term debt market has witnessed a lack of participation from
institutional investors as well as individual investors. Institutional investors like banks,
insurance companies, and mutual funds prefer to invest in high return low-risk debt securities
offered by the government instead of the low return-high risk bond market. The confidence of
general investors in the private sector Is still low because of the lack of regulatory regime,
tack of awareness, and failure to service the interest and principal payment obligations in the
past by the issuers. Furthermore, due to the lack of a benchmark yieid curve, the presence of
a secondary market is almost negligible. Overall, the long-term debt market is yet to emerge
as an effective investment avenue to large and small investors as well as position itself as an
attractive avenue for the companies to ralse funds through the issuance of debt securities.

8.0 CORPORATE CONSIDERATION OF THE ISSUER

8.1 Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of eight (08) members and led by Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain as the
Managing Director of the Board with his prudency in the business arena. The Board mainly
reviews the overall activities of the business and gives necessary strategic guidelines for
onward policy implementation. A brief details of the board Is delineated below-

Name Academic Qualification Position in the Board
Mrs. Schela Hossaln M.A (Philo.) Chalrman

Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain B. Com (H) M.Com MD
Mrs. Mahabuba Nasir B.A Director
Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer MEA Director & COO
<-)\-A ; Mr. Md. Farid Uddin M.A (Modern History) ndependent Director
e
: Mr. A.K.M Faizur Rahman Masters(Bridge Engineering) ndependent Director
ir Nasir Hossain Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat | Ph.D{Economics) Independent Director

uliah
naglﬂg Director Prof. Nausheen Rahman MBA {Finance) Independent Director

ir Akhter Hossain Lid.

8.2 Management
The corporate management including overall business operation of the company is headed by

Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain, Managing Director. In the management team, Mr. Nasir is aided by
Page 6 of 13 Executive Directors, Project Engineers and officers. Managing Director is empowered with

sufficient financial administraﬁve and business delegation, rent
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levels have been given requisite business delegation. The Head Office management s
segregated into different divisions and is headed by experienced & qualified professionals who
are successfully carrying out various tasks towards achieving the company goal as well as
Group objectives. Various divisions at Head office include Engineering, Planning and Co-
ordination, Procurement, Administrative, and Accounts divisicn.

Name Designation

Mr, Mir Nasir Hossain Managing Director

Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer Director & COO

Mr. Azizul Haque Sr. Executive director {(Technical)

Mr. Md, Golam Mostofa Sr. Executive director (Mech.)

Mr. Syed Rasheduzzaman St. director

Mr. Manik Kumar Biswas Sr. Executive director {(Pro

Mr. Md. Momtazul Karim Khan Executive director {(Planning & Co-ordination)
Mr. Md. Ashraful Isiam e Executive director (Project)

Mr. Kumer , FCA Chief Finance Officer

8.3 Human Resources

MAHL provides competitive compensation package to its employees. Among other fringe
benefits it has the practice of creating provident fund for employees. As of September 30,
2021, MAHL's had total 1967 personnel as a technical, professional and other supporting staff
and permanent workers. The company aiso has contractual staff and temporary daily basis
workers. MAHL has the expertise and technical know-how to handle assigned tasks efficiently
and effectively at all times. Performance evaluation and career development through in-house
and outside training program seems limited in the company.

9.0 BUSINESS & FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF THE ISSUER

9.1 Business Profile

MAHL is widely focused in the construction business, which includes construction of
international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges, Industrial Complexes like Factory buildings
of Sugar, Pharmaceuticals and Textile Mills, Office Complexes, Functional Buildings,
International Standard Hotel Buildings, Auditoriums, Academics, Food and Fertilizer
warehouse etc. The clients of MAHL consist of Government, Semi-Govt., Private and Public
company, Associations, Foreign Embassies etc. The company has successfully completed a

- good number of high valued projects at all central points over the country.

9.2 Infrastructure and Construction Facilities

The company is well equipped with construction and infrastructures facilities, The company
has adequate equipment to handle more than 40 projects at a time. Besides, in order to
support its ongoing activities, MAHL has contractual arrangement with different construction
companies to outsource work in times of necessity. Major items of construction eguipment
includes Mixture Machine, Nozzle, Vibrator Machine (diesel & electric), Water Pump, Water
Tank, Submersible Pump, Drill machine, Generator, Grinding machine, Audit-Steel shutter,
Column shutter, Beam shutter etc. The company has been adding construction equipment to
its operation every year to cope with increasing volume of business. The company has its own
architects for design purposes, Technical collaboration of the company Is obtained from
reputed international companies for execution of large projects financed by international
financial organization like WB, ADB etc. However, large local projects having complicated
nature and types require formation of the company by Joint Venture (JV), Consortium, and
Association with defined share of participation by each party. MAHL has the expertise and
technical know-how to handle assigned tasks efficiently and effectively at all times.

9.3 Completed Projects

The company has successfully completed various highly prestigious projects and handed those
over to their clients. During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated” S new projects such as Jamuna Rail
Bridge, Jamuna river dredging, Munshiganj bridge . from which it generated Tk.634.90
million revenue. Moreover, the company centinued work on 12 project from the previous
year which generated Tk.2,789.38 million revenue.

Axhter Hossain Lid.

Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Chief Financial Officer Cempany Secretary
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9.4 Ongoing Projects

As of November 11, 2021 the company has 30 on-going projects. Total values of these
projects stands at Tk. 60,956.86 million. Among the on-going projects, 14 projects are
currently completed more than B0% with the value of Tk. 25,961.77 million which are
expected to be completed within next 2-3 years.

9.5

Financial Performance

Indicator FY2020-21 FY2019-20 FY2018-1

million TK.) 3,242.28 2,694.96 4,267.04
Gross Profit (in million TK.] 935.72 766.18 1,132.23
Net Profit from own construction business (in 91.56 7497 200.50
million TK.)
Net) Profit after tax from Joint Venture (in million 367.88 300.04 431.99
Tk.
Total Net Profit after tax (In miliion Tk.) 459.45 375.01 632.49
Gross Margin {%) 28.86 28.43 26.53
Net Profit M % 14.17 13.92 14.82 |
Cost to Revenue Ratio (%) 71.14 71.57 73.47
Administrative & Selling Exp. to Revenue Ratio 6.12 5.37 5.75
%

Fi Ratio % 14.14 14.07_ 8.47
Return on A After Tax {%) 2.1% 2.00 4.27
Return on Average Equity After Tax (%) 9.77 10.25 20.05

|_Return on Average Capital Empioyed (%) 2.62 2.44 5.52 |

The overall financial performance of MAHL has been found to be good during FY2020-21 as
the company registered a revenue growth of 20.31%. MAHL has been recognizing its revenue
on bill received basis. During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated 5 new projects from which it
generated Tk.634.90 million and continued the work on 12 project from the previous year
which generated Tk.2,789.38 million revenue .Consequently, the gross profit increased by
22.13%. Though the admin and finance cost increased, the net profit increased by 22.52%
due to increase in income from joint venture. As a result all the profitability indicators such as
Return on Average Assets (ROAA) and Return on Average Capital Employed (ROACE)
increased as the growth of return was comparatively higher than asset and net asset growth.
Moreover, MAHL has 30 ongoing projects with a value of Tk. 60,956.86 million.

While analyzing the cost efficiency of the company, CRISL observed that the cost of services
to revenue ratio remained stable. On the other hand, the administrative expenses and finance
cost ratio both increased from previous year resulting 19.59% growth in cost of execution of
contract.

CRISL has also considered the Unaudited Financial Statements for 1* Quarter of FY 2021-22.
As per the unaudited accounts, the revenue stood at Tk, 810.14 million (Tk.216.35 million for
1* Quarter of FY 2019-20) and gross profit stood at Tk.235.83 million.Net profit significantly
dropped to Tk. 67.23 million against Tk.104.40 million of the same period of FY2020-21 due
to decrease in income from joint venture.

, FCMAFCS
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(T, In nyilign)
Particulars Ason June | AsonJune | Ason June
30, 2021 30, 2020 30, 2019
__Current assets 7,673.60 5,735.81 5,652.38 |
|_Less Current liabliities 5,030.67 3,100.26 3,515.52
|_Net Current Asset 2,642.93 2,635.56 2,143.87
Add: Non-Current assets 15,047.41 14,684 27 11,328.78
|_Capital Employed _17,690.34 | 17,319.82 | 13,472.64
|_Financed by
|_Equity:
| Paid up capital 1,207.72 1,000.00 1,060.00
Retained earnings 3,197.94 2,738.47 2,363.46
Share Premium 1,042.28
_Reserve & Others 107.71 107.54 107.54
Total Equity 5,555.65 3,846.01 3,471.00
Non-Current Liabliities:

Long Term Uiabllities e 12,134.69 | 13,473 10,001.64
Total Equity & Non-Current Liabilities 17,690.34 17,319.82 13,472.64
_Leverage Ratio (X) 3.08 4.31 3.89 |

(x) 2.99 2.89 4.04
1 (%) 2.60 2.43 3.64

MAHL is operating with debt based capital structure. The capital structure revealed that, the
company has 75.55% debt (of which 29.31% in short-term and 70.69% in long-term) and
24.45% equity. The equity pie comprised of 21.74% share capital, 57.56% retained earmings,
18.76% share premium and 1.94% reserve and others. As a construction company, MAHL
financed its projects through bank loans therefore, total liabilities of the company increased
by 3.57% In the form of short term as well as long term debt. However, the leverage ratic
decreased due to higher growth in equity compared to the growth of liabilities. Both debt
service coverage ratio and interest coverage ratio indicate that the company has the
capabilities to pay off its debt obligation.

FY2020-21 | FY2019-20 | FY2018-19

1.53 185 1.61

0.68 0.71 0.90

203.57 62.81 1,287.76

orking Capit T 2,642.93 2,635.56 2,143.87
Operating Cash Flow to ent Debt Ratio (X) 0.05 0.02 0.37

Being a construction company, MAHL needs funds for purchasing construction materials and
other administrative costs of projects and has been maintaining Its working capital
requirements as well as liquidity from bill received, short term bank financing, inter-company
ioan and trade credit facility from supplier. Generally, the company starts work against the
work order and submits the bill based on completion of work. The company received the bills
after the work is inspected and met the required quality. Mostly, the company received the
bills within 30 days after submitting the bills. On the other hand, the working capital
requirement of the company varies in line with project works and the company has been
enjoying bank ioan facilities for meeting its requirement. At present, the company is enjoying
loan liability of Tk. 27,706.52 million against the project value of Tk.60,956.86 million
representing 45.45% of praject value,

The liquidity of the company has been found to be average due to positive cash flow and net
working capital. The current ratio also found to be average but the quick ratio is below than
accepted level due to holding high inventory for its business. While analyzing the cash flow,
CRISL found that the operating cash flow increased in FY2020-21 as the cash receipts from
customers increased by 20.54%. However, the operating cash flow to current debt ratio has

been found moderate as the company has significant amount of current |i the form
of short term loan.
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10.0 PROJECTED BOND REDEMPTION CAPACITY

10.1 Repayment Schedule & Redemption Capacity

The bond will be redeemed in 6 Installment (having equal amount of TK.416.50 million)
starting from the end of 18" months of the date of issuance followed by six months interval
thereafter. The redemption schedule at a discount rate of 7.00% is given below:

Repayment | IssuePrice | FaceValue | No of bond "'(“.ru‘;:‘" Face ":.r";' o
period (8DT) (8DT) Issued o] g -

8 75,162.89 8333333 4,998 375.66 416.50

24 72.620.19 83,333.33 4,998 362.96 416,50

30 70,164.43 | 83,333.33 4,998 350.68 416,50

36 67,791.72 83,333.33 4,998 338.82 416.50

a2 65,499.25 83,333.33 3,998 327.37 416.50

a8 63.284.30 8333133 2,398 316.29 416.50

Total 214,321.77 |__500,000.00 3,071.78 2,499.00

10.2 ESTIMATED RETURN FROM THE BOND

The investors are likely to get good return from their investment in ZCB. The rate of return
will be 7% annually. The coupon payment will be made semi-annually where the first payment
will be due on the date falling eighteen months after the issue date. The reinvestment
opportunity for the bondholders may make this bond more attractive. The bond holder will get
the tax benefit out of their investment in ZCB as per prevailing tax rules,

11.0 RISK MANAGEMENT

11.1  Issue Related Risk

11.1.1 Transferability Risk

Transferability risk arises when the bondholder faces difficulty to sell the bond. As the bond is
issued under private placement and is not proposed to be listed, the bondholders are exposed
to easy transferabiiity risk.

11.1.2 Redemption Risk

The annual redemption for each series of bond requires Tk.416.50 million at every & month
after the eighteen months of issue date. CRISL views that bond redemption at a certain date
may put pressure on the cash flow of the company.

11.1.3 Subordination Risk

There is no specific charge creation over the fixed or fioating assets of the company against
the bond issue whereas the other lenders will get priority on first charge basis over the fixed
and floating assets of the company. In this case, the bond holders are strategically becoming
subordinated to those lenders. So, for any default in loan repayment, bondholders will not get
priority over other lenders.

11.1.4 Regulatory Risk
ZCB are now a tax free instrument to some extent. Due to the tax Incentive, investment in
bonds has become attractive. However, there is a risk that Government may change the
policy In future. Any change either in the form of withdrawal or reduction in tax incentive
scheme will affect the expected return of the potential investors. MAHL has no such provision
to compensate the investors in such event.

%———‘7—— :mw on and Serve
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11.1.5 Late Payment Risk

Late payment risk arises from delay in payment of bond redemption. In case of late
repayment, the issuer shall pay a compensation on late payment of 2% higher than the
interest rate and be payable on the amount not paid on due date up till the date of actual
payment. Hence, the issue is less exposed to late payment risk.

11.2 Issuer Related Risk

11.2,1 Project Completion Risk

The successful implementation of the project depends on the ability of the coempany’s
construction of the facilities, weather condition, labor and supply of raw materials within due
time. Moreover, the Bangladeshi construction industries have been directly and indirectly
affected by the ongoing measures taken by the country’s government to control the spread of
the corona virus pandemic. The unprecedented measures have suspended the construction
works of all major infrastructure projects, worth more than US4$30bn, including the Padma
Bridge, Rooppur nuclear power plant, Matarbari power plant, Karnaphuli river tunnel and
Dhaka metro rail. One of the reasons for the suspension of construction works is that, neither
foreign nor local employees can work under the prevailing situation, which wili definitely slow
down the progress of the projects.

11.2,2 Price Fluctuation Risk

Prices of construction materiais such as iron, cement, concrete are increasing in recent years,
rapidly. As MAHL has to complete the project works within stipulated time frame at fixed
contract price, it is exposed to price fiuctuation risk.

11.2.3 Market Risk
Bangladesh has high potential for infrastructure industry market. Already many players are in
the industry and MAHL has stable position in the market. However, the entry barrier in the
market is not acute and several construction companies are coming in the business each year.
Entrance of new competitors wili create unheaithy competition in the market affecting the
existing market share.

11.2.4 Raw Materials Supply Risk

Though MAHL has backward linkage {construction materiais such as brick, cement, concrete,
tiles etc.) to support the construction works it sources the construction materials from open
market. Any supply gap in both local and international market may hamper the project

completion in due time.
Muﬁr«a&?&ms
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12.0 OBSERVATION SUMMARY
Rating Comforts: Rating Concerns:
Issue: Issue:
Good return from Investment Unsecured debt instrument
Diversification of funding source Subaordination to bank liability

Tax benefit in case of holding by corporate entity

No specific policy to accumulate bond redemption
fund

Development of Capital market in Bangladesh

Issuer:
Issuer: Levered capital structure
Good financial performance Dependency on bank finance
Sound production facllities Project completion risk
Experienced management team Stress liquidity arisen from future cash flow may
Strong Group support affect bond redamption
Business Opportunities: Business Challenges:
1ssue: Issue:

Lower market depth of Bangladesh bond market

Changes in Govt. reguiations Mostly dependent on institutional investor for
subscription
Issuer: Issuer:
Exploring export market Lack of government supportive policies
Further product diversification Global instability
Increased competition In the market
Cost control
END OF THE REPORT

(Information used herein is obtained from sources befieved to be accurate and reliable. However, CRISL does not

©of any information and is not responsibie for any errors or

accuracy, adequacy or compieteness
omissions or for the resufts obtained from the use of such information. Rating Is an apinion on cradit quality only
and is not 8 recommendation to buy or sell any securities. All rights of this report are reserved by CRISL. Contents
acknowledgement,

may be used by news media and researchers with due

)

{We have examined, prepared, finafired and (ssued this report without compromising with che matters of any
conflict of interest. We have aiso complied with all the requirements, policy procedures of the BSEC rules as
prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. ]

Mir Nasir Hossain

Managing Director
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| RATING 3
AAA Investment Grade
{“""“ Securities rated In this category are adjudged to be of highest credit quality. This
W’Wﬂ, level of rating indicates highest level of safety for limely payment of interest and
and nearest to risk gernment securities.

AA+, AR, AA- mmmmmmmqmwuunqﬂmmmymmr

(Dt;ubleh) higher safety. This level of rating indicates a security with sound credit profile and

{High Safety) without significant probiems. Protection factors are strong. Risk Is modest but may

from to time because of economic conditions.

A+, A, A- Securities rated In this category are adjudged to be of good credit quality and offer |
Single A adequate safety for timely repayment of financial obligations. Protection factors are

(Adequate considered variable and more susceptible to changes In corcumstances than securities
Safety) Iin higher-rated categories.

BBB+, BBB, | Securities rated in this category are adjudged to offer moderate safety for timely
BBB- repayment of financial obligations. This level of rating indicates deficiencies in certain
Tripie B protective elements but still considered sufficient for prudent investment. Risk factors

{Moderate are more variable in periods of economic stress than those rated in the higher

| categories.
Speculative Grade

BB+, BB, BB-

Double B Securities rated in this category are considered to be of speculative grade but

(Inadequate | deemed likely to meet obligations when due. Present or prospective financial

) prmm factors fluctuate according to industry conditions or company fortunes,
move up or down within this
mmwhmmmmﬂmmunmwmmum This

B+, B, B- level of rating indicates high risk assoclated with timely repayment of interest and
Single B principal. Financlal protection factors will fluctuate widely according to economic

(High Risk) cycles, industry conditions andfor company fortunes, Potential exists for frequent

in the within this or into a higher or lower rade. |

CcCC+,CCC, Securities rated in this category are currently vu to non-repayment, and is
cce- dependent upon favorable business conditions for the obligor to meet its financial

(Vulnerable) | commitments on the obligation.

CC+,CC, CC- | Securities rated In this category Is currently high vuinerable to non-repayment.
(Migh

Vulnerable)

C+,C,C- Securities rated in this category are considered to be near to default. Protection
(Near to factors are scarce. Timely repayment of interest and principal is possibie only if
Default) favorable circumstances continue.
Default Grade
1+ Defaulted debt obligations. Issuer falled to meet scheduled principal and/or Interest
(Defauit) payments.

)
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DISCLOSURE AS PER RULE 8(b) of BSEC NOTIFICATION NOVEMBER 17, 2009,

We, Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL) while assigning this rating to Zero Coupon
Bond of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited hereby solemnly declare that:

(i) We, Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL) as well as the analysts of the
rating have examined, prepared, finalized and issued this repert without compromising
with the matters of our conflict of interest, if there be any;

And

(i) We have complied with all the requirements, policy and procedures of these rules as
prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2001-27/01/Admin/01-41 dated November 17, 2009 in respect of this
rating.

Muzaffar imeﬂ FCMA, FCS

President and CEQ

Credit Rating Information & Services Limited
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audﬂmmt the provisions of the Cradit Rating Companies Rules 1996. CRISL'S entity rating s valid
o b 5 3nG & monthe for short term rating. CAISL' Bar foan rating (bir) s valid ane year for long
mmmemm(mmmdem;hmmmmmm
Address: periads, these ratings wifl not carry any validity unless the entity goes for i
CRISL CRISL followed Rating Methodology published in bsite www. crisibd.com
~Jﬁ:~5"m) & | Valid up to: December 26, 2022
S Date of Rating: December 27, 2021 alid up to:
/14, Sequntiagichs Long Term _Lw
Tel: 95309914 | Boiity Bating P | 373
Fax: 88-02-953-0995 | Outlogk Stable
Email: Bank Facilities Rating
arisidhki@orisiod.com Bank/F1 of in_million) Bank Loan Ratings |
Dhaka Bank limited *WCLL-Tk.2,650.00 DirAA-
Rating Contact: Al-Arafah  Islami  Bank | *WCLL-Tk.3,900.00 bir AA-
Md. Asiful Hog Limited =l
asebip i Bank Asia Limited SWCLL-Tk.1,600.00 BiF AA-
- BRAC Bank Limited *WCLL-Tk.4,630.00 bir AA-
Analysts: Jamuna Bank Limited *WCLL-Tk.4,550.00 bir AA-
Md. Anowsr Nossaia **TL0-Tk.351.28
anowar@crislod.com Midland Bank Limited *WCLL-Tk,700.00 bir AA-
Mutual Trust Bank Limited | *WCLL-Tk.3,679.00 bir AA-
Sanzida Begum NRE Commerciali Bank | *WCLL-Tk.2,600.00 bir AA-
Limited ]
Uttara Bank Limited *WCLL-TK.920.00 bir AA-
United Commercial Bank | *WCLL-Tk.4,500.00 bir AA-
bty o I Limited 4TL0-Tk.206.70
Short Term: ST-3 Shahjalal  Islami  Bank | "WCLL-Tk.4935.28 bir AA-
Limited **TLO-Tk.B.06
Dutch Bangia Bank Limited LL-Tk. 2120, AA-
Outlooks Stable : . = 3?10-“.55?.3? i
Social Isiami Bank Umited | *WCLL-Tk.3,550.00 bir AA-
XKHTER “¥T{0-Tk.50.83
s _ Modhumoti Bank Limited *WCLL-Tk.2,100.00 bir AA-
HOSSAIN LIMITED - i
*TLOTK.8.16
Standard Bank Limited *WCLL-Tk.2,450.00 Bir AA-
ACTIVITY **TLO-Tk.1,289.36 bir AA-
Canstruction service *WeLi- MWMM“KO Term Loan Cutstanding
DATE OF
INCORPORATION
July 18, 1980 1.0 RATIONALE
~ CRISL has reaffirmed the Long Term rating to 'AA-’ (pronounced as double A minus) and the
oo i Short term rating to 'ST-3' of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (MAHL) on the basis of its audited
financials up to June 30, 2021 and other relevant quantitative and qualitative information up
to the date of rating. The above ratings have been reassigned after due consideration to its
EQuITY fundamentals such as good financial performance, average liquidity, regular loan repayment
Tk. 5,555, 65 milion status, sound infrastructure facilities, strong Group support, experienced: management team
etc. However, the above ratings are constrained, to some extent, by factors such as debt
TOTAL ASSETS based capital structure, dependency on bank finance, risk of project completion etc.

The Long Term rating indicates that entities rated in this category are adjudged to be of high
quality, offer higher safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating indicates a
corporate entity with a sound credit profile and without significant problems. Risks are modest
and may vary slightly from time to time because of econcmic conditions. The Short Term
rating indicates good certainty of timely repayment, Liquidity factors and company

—— — fundamentals are sound. Although funding needs may enlarge total financing
ir Nasir Hossain requirements, access to financial markets is good with smail risk factors.
5 naging Director CRISL also views the company with “Stable Outlook” believing that the company will be able
ir Akhter Hossain Lid. to maintain its fundamentais with the same trend in the foreseeable future.

Parymal Kumer Sarker

Chief Financial Officer
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

¥res and CEO
Tasbatis St ¢
Company Secretary
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2.1 The Genesis

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is a building and civil construction company and @ major concern of
Mir Group. The Group consists of several business units having exposure in Telecom, Cement,
Ceramic, Real Estate, Power, ICT sector etc. The Group started its journey in 1968 with Mir
Akhter Hossian Limited as the flagship company under the prominent entrepreneur late Mr. Mir
Akeb Hossain. From inception, every concern of the Group has been operating with good
reputation and positive brand image. MAHL was initially established as a partnership company
in 1969 which later converted into a private limited company in July 18, 1980. Subsequently
MAHL was converted into a Public Limited Company on January 10, 2017. In January 26,
2021; the company went for initial public offering and the shares of the company are listed
with both the bourses of the country-Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock
Exchange (CSE) under ‘N’ category. The authorized capital and paid up capital stood at
Tk.2,000.00 milllon and Tk.1,207.72 million respectively as on September 30, 2021. The
mission of the company is to provide quality and superior services through the integration of
excellent design solutions, dedication toc sustainable and economical capacity, responsible of
hiring competent subcontracts and value for safety and customer satisfaction. Equipped with
sound production facilities, the company successfully executed diverse projects like
construction of international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges, Industrial Complexes etc.
MAHL has one subsidiary namely Mir Securities Limited (99.75% holding) which incorporated
in March 02, 2021.

Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain, a renowned businessman, is the Managing Director of the company. The
Head Office of the company Is located at Red Crescent Borak TowerlLevel-7 &10, 71-72 Old
Elephant Road, Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

2.2 Ownership Structure

Being a public limited listed company, the ownership of MAHL is being held by sponsors,
institutional shareholders and general public. The sponsors of the company held 48.58%
shares by 4 sponsors, followed by 3.90% shares by local institutional shareholders and
47.52% shares by general public at as on June 30, 2021. Although the shareholding patterns
portraits diversified shareholding status, the overall decision making and management control
has remained in sponsor's hand. Moreover, the current share holding position is consisted of
38.58% by Sponsor/Director, 3.74% by institutions, and 47.68% by public as on November

0, 2021.

3.0 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.1 Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of eight (08) members and led by Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain as the
Managing Director of the Board with his prudency in the business arena. The Board mainly
reviews the overall activities of the business and gives necessary strategic guidelines for
onward policy implementation. A brief details of the board is delineated below-

_Name Academic Qualification | Position in the Board
Mrs. Soheia Hossain M.A (Philo.) Chairman
Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain B. Com (H) M.Com MD
Mrs. Mahabuba Nasir B.A (Hon’s) Director
Mr. Shama-e-zZaheer MBA Director & COO
Mr. Md. Farid Uddin M.A (Modern History) ndependent Director
Mr. A.K.M Falzur Rahman MBA independent Director
Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat | Ph.D(Economics) Independent Director
uilah
Prof. Nausheen Rahman MBA (Finance) Independent Director

Credd Rating Information and Services Ltd,

Kiic Nasir Hossain Pe—n

”"'m:: Bireetof Parymal Kumer Sarker

Mir Hossain Lid Chief Financial Officer Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hessain Ltd. Company Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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The board held 4 meetings during FY2020-21. The company has three-member Audit
Committee (AC) headed by Mr. Md. Farid Uddin, Independent Director as the Chairman. AC
reviews the compliance issues and recommends course of action to internal and external
auditors for removing the irregularities referred to it. The AC held 2 meetings during FY2020-
21. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee {(NRC) is formed with three members and
also headed by Mr. Md. Farid Uddin as Chairman. NRC held one meeting during the period.

3.2 Corporate Management

The corporate management including overall business operation of the company is headed by
Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain, Managing Director. In the management team, Mr. Nasir is aided by
Executive Directors, Project Engineers and officers. Managing Director is empowered with
sufficient financial, administrative and business delegation. Moreover, officiais at different
levels have been given requisite business delegation. The Head Office management is
segregated into different divisions and is headed by experienced & qualified professionals who
are successfully carrying out various tasks towards achieving the company goal as well as
Group objectives. Various divisions at Head office include Engineering, Planning and Co-
ordination, Procurement, Administrative, and Accounts division, A brief of management team
is given below-

N Designation
Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain Managing Director
Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer Director & COO
Mr. Azizul Hague St Executive director (Technical)
Mr. Md. Golam Mostofa Sr. Executive director (Mech.)
Mr. Syed Rasheduzzaman Sr. Executive director (Engineering) |
Mr. Manik Kumar Biswas Sr. Executive director (Project)
Mr. Md. Momtazui Karim Khan Executive director nning & Co-ordination
Mr. Md. Ashraful Islam Exacutive director {%}
Mr. Parymal Kumer Sarker, FCA Chief Finance Officer
3.3 Human Resource Management

MAHL provides competitive compensation package to its employees. Among other fringe
benefits it has the practice of creating provident fund for employees. As of September 30,
2021, MAHL's had total 1967 personnel as a technical, professional and other supporting staff
and permanent workers, The company also has contractual staff and temporary daily basis
workers. MAHL has the expertise and technical know-how to handie assigned tasks efficiently

‘and effectively at all times. Performance evaluation and career development through in-house

and outside training program seams limited in the company.

3.4 MIS and Internal Control Mechanism :

The IT & MIS system s still in the developing stage and the management has the pilanning to
develop and build enriched IT department. MAHL is using QuickBook Pro, Tally for Accounting,
Auto CAD, MS Project etc. for preparation of Bilis, and many other packages for daily work of
the office. The company has separate internal audit department exclusively to justify the
financial and business transaction.

SI.IBSID!MY OPERATION

The company has one fully cmh‘oéled subsidiary company namely Mir Securities Limited {(MSL)
incorporated in March 02, 2021 to carry on the business of broker or dealers in capital market.
The company has obtained Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) from DSE. Total
registered authorized capital of MSL stood at Tk.200.00 million and paid up capital of Tk.B0.00
million as on June 30, 2021. Mir Akhter Hossain Limited {MAHL) held 99.75% shares of MSL.
As the company did nct get their license of trading, MSL is yet to generate any revenue from
its business. On the other hand, the company incurred some administrative cost which
resulted net loss of Tk.10.41 million, MSL has total asset of Tk.69.90 miliion agalinst which it
has total liabllities of Tk.0.31 miilion as on June 30, 2021.

i Parymal Kumer Sarker
. Chief Financial Officer

pany : ecretar o
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5.0 BUSINESS ANALYSIS

5.1 Business Profile

MAHL is widely focused in the construction business, which includes construction of
international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges, Industrial Complexes like Factory buiidings
of Sugar, Pharmaceuticals and Textile Milis, Office Complexes, Functional Buildings,
International Standard Hotel Buildings, Auditoriums, Academics, Food and Fertilizer warehouse
etc. The clients of MAHL consist of Government, Semi-Govt., Private and Public company,
mm;,mmmm The company has successfully completed a good number
of high valued projects at ail central points over the country.

5.2 Operational Strategy

MAHL operates their projects under a set of strategies as implemented by the company
management. Operational strategy of the company is segregated into pre construction stage,
construction stage and post construction stage. The company has a good combination of
backward and forward linkage. Presently the capacity of services of the company is high in
comparison with its peers and the company attempts to secure prestigious projects by forming
joint venture with foreign construction companies. MAHL has the plan to participate in the
construction of rallway track, dredging of river, construction of effluent treatment plant for
tanneries, construction of flyover etc.

5.3 Project Management

The overall project management of MAHL starts with a project pianning where the total project
scope is determined and defined. Several meetings are arranged for decision making about
the first blush pian. Technical scope is established and basic areas of performance and
responsibilities are proposed and approved by the participants and the top management. Then
an estimation of cost and allocation of resources are made in the form of project budgeting
where the prospective profit and ioss relating to a project is determined. Some related factors
like inflation, differential changes in cost factors etc. are adjusted with the budget. Then
scheduling process is carried out to co-ordinate the overall project. Immediately after
scheduling, allocation of resources is properly done. Regular monitoring process is carried out
in the projects. Periodic inspection of accounts from Head Office is done as well as total
process is reviewed under the senior management of the company.

54 Procurement Strategy

MAHL has separate procurement policy with local and imported materials. Procurement
materials include civil worl:s, furniture fabric, furniture polish materials, carpet with underiay,
firefighting component, electrical and mechanical works and communication equipment etc.
Procurement policy of the company starts from receipt of the construction drawing as well as
upon the study of the EOQ and specification. The pianning and scheduling department is
headed by pilanning and scheduling engineer who carry cut the details of inventory of
materials required for the project. The required materials are procured through head office
purchase department. Major construction materiais are procured and stored at site in sufficient

- guantity so that progress of work is not hampered at any stages of work. The company

procures raw material and other m at different stages of construction from different
suppliers,

5.5 Infrastructure and Construction Facilities

The company is well equipped with construction and infrastructures facilities. The company
has adequate equipment to handle more than 40 projects at a time. Besides, in order to
support its ongoing activities, MAHL has contractual arrangement with different construction
companies to outsource work in times of necessity. Major items of construction equipment
includes Mixture Machine, Mozzle, Vibrator Machine (diesel & electric), Water Pump, Water
Tank, Submersible Pump, Drill machine, Generator, Grinding machine, Audit-Steei shutter,
Column shutter, Beam shutter etc. The company has been adding construction equipment to
its operation every year Lo cope with increasing volume of busingss. The company has its cwn
architects for design purposes. Technical collaboration of the company is obtained from
reputed international companies for execution of large projects financed by international

financial organization like W_B, ADB etc.
Muzaffar ﬁ im
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However, large local projects having complicated nature and types require formation of the
company by Joint Venture (JV), Consortium, and Association with defined share of
participation by each party. MAHL has the expertise and technical know-how to handle
assigned tasks ‘efficiently and effectively at all times.

5.6 Safety Measures on Operation

MAHL is operating their prajects with adequate safety and security measures which are in line
with the industry. Personal safety equipment involves using helmets, safety goggles, gloves,
boots and other accessories. The project area is properly covered with net in absence of wall
and warning sign is well displayed. Electrification work is properly carried out in compliance
with design of electrical engineer and is operated by licensed electrician. Before the start of
construction, machinery is checked thoroughly to protect it from any hazardous situation. To
have safety against fire during project, adequate number of fire extinguisher and fire exit is
kept. A proper system of entry into the project area is followed with a signing register and
security guards.

6.0 PROJECT DETAILS

6.1 Completed Projects

The company has successfully completed various highly prestigious projects and handed those
over to their clients. During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated 5 new projects such as Jamuna Rail
Bridge, Jamuna river dredging, Munshiganj bridge etc. from which it generated Tk.634.90
mitlion revenue. Moreover, the company continued the work on 12 project from the previous
year which generated Tk.2,789.38 miilion revenue.

; 6.2 ng Projects
Good number of engoing As of November 11, 2021 the company has 30 on-going projects. Total values of these
i oo projects stands at Tk. 60,956.86 million. Among the on-going projects, 14 projects are

currently completed more than 80% with the value of Tk.25,961.77 million which are expected
to be completed wiﬂ':ln nett 2-3 years.

7.0  1PO FUND am.-:nﬂoﬂ

In order to expand the business, MAHL floated its share through IPO to raise fund of Tk.
1,250.00 million from the capital market. The fund will be used for investing in capital
machineries, logn repayment and IPO expenses, The details of IPO fund utilization as on
November 30, 2021 is briefing below:

i ik Tk. in miilon
Purpose of Utilization Amount as per | Total Utilized | Utllized | Total Un-
] Prospectus Amount (%) utilized
. Amount
| _Heavy Equipment 503.00 - 0.00 | 503.00
__Aggregate Processing Plant 127.00 S 0.00 127.00
' Asphalt Plant 46.75 46.75 100.00
| Concrete Batching Piant__ 37.40 =1 omi "~ 54
[ Warehouse and Workshop 100.85 ] NGl w30
{ Repayment of Bark Loan 400.00 400.00 100.00 -
ks [ Estimated 1PO Expense 35 00 35.00 | 100.00 |
—_— | Yotal 1P0 Proceeds . 1,250.00 574.40 4595 | 675.60
ir Nasir Hossain
ing Director

ir Akhter Hossain Ltd. : .
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8.0 nmmx.m

Ftnam:la! perfmnance analysis is based on consolidated financials of the company. The
company reported consolidated financial statements as well as separate financial statement in
line with Bangladesh Mcoumg S%zndard and BB guideline.

Lk 5 FY2020-21 nazgy_-gu FYZ018-19 |
gin million TK.} ; 3,242.28 4,267.04

gm Profit (in million TK.) 935.72 766.18 1,132.23
Net Profit from own construction business (in million 91.56 74.97 200.50

TK.)

Net Profit after tax from Joint Venture (in miion Tk.) 367.88 300.04 431.85
Total Net Profit after tax (In miflion Tk.) T 459.45 375.01 §32.49
Gross Profit Margin (%) 28.86 28.43 26.53
Net Profit Margin (%) ; 14.17 13.92 14.82
: %) 71.14 71.57 73 47
6.12 A 8. 75

14.14 : 14 07 8.47 |
2.13 2,00 4.27

9.77 10.25 20,05 |
2.62 2.44 52

The overall financial perfomm of MAHL has been found to be good during FY2020-21 as the
company registered a revenue growth of 20.31%. MAHL has been recognizing its revenue on
biil received basis. During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated 5 new projects from which it generated
Tk.634.90 million and continued the work on 12 project from the previous year which
generated Tk.2,789.38 million revenue .Consequently, the gross profit increased by 22.13%.
Though the admin and finance cost increased, the net profit increased by 22.52% due to
increase in income from joint venture. As a result ali the profitability indicators such as Return
on Average Assets (ROAA) and Return on Average Capital Employed (ROACE) increased as the
growth of return was comparatively higher than asset and net asset growth, Moreover, MAHL
has 30 ongoing projects with a value of Tk. 60,956.86 million.

While analyzing the cost efficiency of the company, CRISLubwvwmtmmstofmimsto
revenue ratio remained stable. On the other hand, the administrative expenses and finance

cost ratic both increased from previous year resulting 19.59% growth in cost of execution of
contract.

CRISL has also considered the Unaudited Financial Statements for 1% Quarter of FY 2021-22.
As per the unaudited accounts, Lhe revenue stood at Tk. B10.14 million (Tk.216.35 million for
1¥ Quarter of FY 2019-20) and gross profit stood at Tk.235.83 miliion.Net profit significantly
dropped to Tk. 67.23 million against Tk.104.40 million of the same period of FY2020-21 due to

decrease in income from joint venture.
mﬁ FOUA LS
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9.0 FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY

MAHL is operating with debt based capital structure. The capital structure revealed that, the
comparny has 75.55% debt (of which 29.31% In short-term and 70.69% in long-term) and
24.,45% equity. The equity pie comprised of 21.74% share capital, 57.56% retained earnings,
18.76% share premium and 1.94% reserve and others. As a construction company, MAHL
financed its projects through bank loans therefore, total liabilities of the company increased by
3.57% in the form of short term as well as long term debt. However, the leverage ratio
decreased due to higher growth in equity compared to the growth of liabilities. Both debt
service coverage ratio and Interest coverage ratio indicate that the company has the
capabilities to pay off its debt obligation.

: - (Amount In million n.1
Particulars AsonJune | AsonJune | Ason June
30, 2021 30, 2021 | 2019
Current assets 7,673.60 573581 |  5659.38
Less Current liabliities 5,030.67 3,100.26 3,515.52
Net Current Asset 2642.93 2635.56 2,143.87
Add: Non-Current assets 15,047.41 14,684.27 11,328.78
|_Capital Empioyed 17,600.34 | 17,319.82 | 13,472.64
Financed by
Paid 1207.72 1000.00 1,000.00
Retained 3197.94 2738.47 2,363.46 |
Share Premium 1042.28 ekl i
Reserve & Others 107.71 107.54
Tatat Equity 5555.65 3846.01 3,471.00
_Non-Current Lisbifities: :
“Long Term Liabilities 12,134.68 13.473.82 |  10,001.64
Total Equity & Non-Current Liabiiities 17,690.34 17,319.82 13 472.64
| Leverage Ratio (X) 3.09 a31 3.89 |
| Debt Service Coverage Ratio (X) 2.99 2.89 4.04
Interest Coverage Ratio (X} 2.60 2.43 3.64

FY2019-20 | FY2018-19
1.85 16
0.71 0.50 |
§2.81 1,287.7¢
2635.56 2143.87
0.02 0.37

Being a construction company, MAHL needs funds for purchasing construction materials and
other administrative costs of projects and has been maintaining its working capital
requirements as well as liquidity from bill received, short term bank financing, inter-company
foan and trade credit facility from supplier. Generally, the company starts work against the
work order and submits the bill based on completicn of work. The company received the bills
after the work Is inspected and met the required quality. Mostly, the company received the
bills within 30 days after submitting the bills, On the other hand, the working capital
requirement of the company varies in line with project works and the company has been
enjoying bank loan facilities for meeting its requirement. At present, the company is enjoying
ioan liability of Tk.27,706.52 million against the project value of Tk.60,956.86 million
representing 45.45% of project value.

The liquidity of the company has been found to be average due to positive cash fiow and net
working capital. The current ratio also found to be average but the quick ratio is below than
accepted level due to holding high inventory for its business. While analyzing the cash fiow,
CRISL found that the operating cash flow increased in FY2020-21 as the cash receipts from
customers increased by 20.54%. However, the operating cash flow to current debt ratioc has
been found moderate as the company has significant amount of current liabilities in the form
of short term loan.

Parymal Kumer Sarker

Chief Financial Officer
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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11.0 CREDIBILITY AND BANKING RELATIONSHIP

11.1 Position

The company has been enjoying financial flexibility from different banks. The total liability of
the company stood at Tk.27,706.52 million consisted of term loan of Tk.2,471.71 million,
working capital funded of Tk.14,171.13 million and working capital non-funded of
Tk.11,063.69 million. The details of outstanding loan liability are shown in the following table:

£ in mitlion)
Bank Mode Uimit Outstanding | Status
Name/Outstanding Amount
Dk Bank Liied | Wi pia-Funded 1,650.00 767,90
30.11.21 Working capital -Non funded 1000.00 1,195.73 | Reouer
Al-Arafah Isiami IF 2,400.00 14,
Umited-30.11.21 1,500.00 §91.24 | egular
3,900.00 2,906.14
F P ot Bank Asia Uimited- 1,000.00 500.00 | oo
e yment 30.11.21 600.00 81.70
1,600.00 581.70
BRAC Bank Limited- 2,130.00 1,184.42
30.11.21 :qﬁ'fog 93.60 | Resular
Sub Total 4,630.00 78.02
Jamuna Bank Limited- | Term Loan 657.39 351.28
30.11.21 “Working capital -Funded 2,050.00 250.00 | Regular
] ——
601.28
Midland Bank Limited- 256,41
14.12.21 97.94 | Negular
Mutual Trust Bank Vorking 1,800.42
| Working capital -Funded LB09.42 | pegular
Limited-30.11.21 - !3454
Sub Total 2,643.96
WRE Commerciai Bank | Working capitsl -Funged ,100.00 ¥ gy
| Umited-30.11.21 | Working capital -Non funded 1,500. 742.08
Sub Total 2,600.00 1,822.17
Uttars Bank Limited - | Working capital -Funded 500.00 15
30111 Working capital -Non funded 420.00 =
Sub Total 920.00 =
Term Loan 425.40 206.70 |
United Commercial =
. [t sl i 2,500.00 1,967.00 | Regular
Bank Limited-30.11,21 i TR
Sub Yotal 5,325.40 4,059.90
Term Loan 73.46 8.06 |
Shahjalal Islami Bank | Working capitai -Funded 1,750.00 1,281.87 | Regular
Limited-10.11.21 | Working capital -Non funded 3,185.28 2,252 82
Sub Total 5,008.75 3,542.75
Term Losn 730.44 557.32
Dutch Bangla Bank | Working capital -Funded 1,200.00 116188 | Regular
Limited-30.11.21 | Working capieal -Non fundsd _ 92000 8157
Sub Total 3,850.44 3,101.17
Mﬁmm
~ President and CEO
Credit Rating fnformation and Servicas Ltd
de e e
Mir Nasir Hossain *
~~ Managing Director ~ — — Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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Term Loan : 583.60 50.83 |
Social Islami Bank | Warking capital -Funded 1,700.00 1,461.55 | Regular
Limited-30.11.21 % ] fmi -Non funded 2,250.00 90.32
s otal 4,533.80 1,602.70
: | Term Loan {130.00) 8.16 |
Madhumoti Barik warklwl -Funded 950.00 515.69 | Regul
Umiteg-30.11.21 Working capital -Non funded 1,150.00 | 640,05
: | Bub Total 2,100.00 1,163.90 |
Term Loan 1,200.00 1,289.36
Standard Bank Limited | Working capital -Funded 1,250.00 - | Reguiar
~20.12.21 | -Non funded 1,200.00 75.50
- % ] 3,650.00 | 1,364.86
' o Total 49,354.58 27,706.52

11.2  Security Arrangement against Bank Exposure

MAHL has offered both primary security and collaterai to avail the bank facilities from the
above mentioned banks. The company offered Factory Land, Building, Inventory, Rewvables
L/C margin, Shipping documents and acceptance, personal guarantee as security.

12,0 RISK ANALYSIS

i12.14  Project Compietion Risk

The successful implementation of the project depends on the ability of the company’s
construction of the faciiities, weather condition, labor and supply of raw materials within due
time. Moreover, the Bangladeshi construction industries have been directly and indirectly
affected by the ongoing measures taken by the country's government to control the spread of
the corona virus pandemic. The unprecedented measures have suspended the construction
works of all major infrastructure projects, worth more than US$30bn, Including the Padma
Bridge, Rooppur nuclear power plant, Matarbari power plant, Karnaphull river tunnel and
Dhaka metro rail. One of the reasons for the suspension of construction works is that, neither
foreign nor local employees can work under the prevailing situation, which will definitely slow
down the progress of the projects.

12.2  Price Fluctuation Risk

Prices of construction materials such as iron, cement, concrete are Increasing in recent years,
rapidly, As MAHL has to complete the project works within stipulated time frame at fixed
contract price, it is exposed to price fluctuation risk.

12.3  Market Risk
Bangladesh has high potential for infrastructure industry market. Already many players are in
the industry and MAHL has stable position in the market. However, the entry barrier In the
market is not acute and severai construction companies are coming in the business each year.
‘Entrance of new competitors will create unhealthy competition in the market affecting the
existing market share.

12.4 Raw Materials Supply Risk
Though MAHL has backward linkage (construction materials such as brick, cement, concrete,
tiles etc.) to support the construction works it sources the construction materials from open

CIL“ { ; market. Any supply gap in both local and international market may hamper the project
\ completion in due time.
Mir Nasir Hessain
Managing Director
~ Akhter Hossain Lid.
Cradit Rating Information and Senvises Lig
Parymal Kumer
etk o Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Mir Aknter Hesaain Lid. Company Secretary

1, t.xnier Hossain Lid.
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13.0 OBSERVATION SUMMARY

Rating Comforts: : Rating Concerns:
+  Good Minancial performance . Debt based capital structure
+  Regular loan repayment status s  Dependency on bank finance
+  Sound infrastructural facllities +  Project completion risk
+  Strong Group support *  Raw material supply risk
«  Experienced top management
+  Construction experience of high valued
projects
Business Prospects: Business Challenges:
+»  Diversification of operation »  Maintaining appropriate standard as
+« - Cheap labor per agreement
+  Huge Govt. expenditures for construction =  Handover of projects on time
of mega projects *  Price fluctuation of construction
materials
END OF THE REPORT
(Infi ion used b is obtained from sources believed to be accurate and reliable. However, CRISL does not
g ' ac or of information and & not responsible for any efrors or

muwwmmwmmmmm)
[We have examined, prepared, finalized and issued this report without compromising with the matters danr

prescrived by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. ]
limaﬁ-s

President and CED
Crait Raing information and Services Lid
~ . L'-—-.,
vlir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director
"ir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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14.0 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Year of Incorporation: 1980

Board of Directors:
Mrs, Sohela Hossain : Chalrman

_Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain _Managing Director
Mrs. Mahabuba Nasir - Director
Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer - Director & COO
Mr. Md. Farid Uddin in Di
Mr. A.K.M Faizur Rahman ndependent Director
Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat Ullah Independent Director
Prof. Nausheen Rahman ndependent Director

Audit Committee: 2
Mr, Md. Farid Uddin Chairman
Mrs. Mahabuba Nasir Member

Mr. A K.M Faizur Rahman Member

| Mr. Md. Masbaus Sunnah Secretary

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

1 Mr. Md. Farid Uddin Chairman
Mrs. Mahabuba Hasir Member
Mr, A K.M Faizur Rshman Member
Mr. Md. Masbaus Sunnah Secretary

M Team:
Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain Managing Director
Mr. Shama-e-Zanheer Director & COO
Mr. Azizul Hague Sr. Executive director (Technical)
Mr. Md. Golam Mostofa Sr, Executive director (Mech.)
Mr. Syed Rashedurzaman Sr. Executive director {Engineering)
Mr. Manik Kumiar Biswas S, ve director 1
Mr. Md. Momtazul Ksrim Khan Executive director (Planning & Co-ordination)
Mr. Md. Ashraful Islam : Executive director (Project)
Mr. Parymal Kumer Sarker, FCA Chief Finance O

Company Secretary: Mr, Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Auditor: G. Kibria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

S

Muzaffar A
President and CEO
Credit Rating Information and Services Lid

‘J"\J [PPNE I — =
L Pooeglii o i Hossain gt
Managing Director Parymal Kumer Sarker Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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15.0 FINANCIALS (Consolidated)
A. Balance Sheet {For the year ended 30 June)
LA (T, in miltion}

Particulars FY2020-21 | FY2019-20 | FY2018-19
|_Non-Current Assets i iIEes

Plant & 4075.66 3840.45 3970.62
\ Capltal work In progress
| Investment 10971.76 | 10843 7358.15 |

Total Non-Current Assets 15047.41 | 14684.27 | 11328.78
|_Current Assets i
|_Inventories 4252.81 3525.54 2484.79
| Trade Debtors 35 i
|_Adv. Deposits & Prepayments 1020.14 ; 1137.70

Current Assets %%.oz % 1539.39

Cash & Bank 1594.58 476. 497,51

Total Assets 7673. 5735.81 5659.38

Current Lia
|_Short Term Loan 873,47 7612.09 2712.21
__Long Term Loan-Current Portion

Trade Creditors s
|_Liabilities for Expenses 55,28 138.71 107.14

Other ST Liabilities 101.93 | 46 696,17 |
|_Total Current Liabilities 5030.67 3100.26 3515.52 |

Net Current Assets 2642.93 2635.56 2143.87
|_Capital Employed 17690.34 | 17319.82 | 13472.64 |
|_Non-Current Liabilities -
|_Long Term Loan 12131.36 13470.49 9998.32 |
|_Deferred Liabilities = 3.33 3.33 3.33

Total Non-Current Liability 13134.69 | 13473.82 | 10001.64
|_Non controlling Interest 0.17
|_Shareholders’ Equity

Share Capital 1207.72 1000.00 1000.00

Share Premium 1042.28 Skt

Other Reserve 107.54 107.54 107.54

3197.94 ‘i?ga;ea 7 236346 |
5555.65 3846.01 3471.00 |
A 3472.
22721.01 _% 1 16
B. Income Statement (For the year ended 30 June)

[ Particulars FY2020-21 | F¥2019-20 | FY2018-19 |
Sales ue 3242.28 2694.96 4267.04
Eﬁm 2306.56 78 | 3134.81

|_Gross Profit 935.72
Salary & Allowances 142.49 10.25 185.15
Admin, Expenses 198.46 :143:3 ;M'm

Total n.

Selling & Distribution Exp. 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
_Profit from Operation 737.26 621.53 886.
|_Financial Cost 425.92 379.09 361.41
|_Other Income 384.27 313.37 454.59 |
Allocation for W.P.P.F & W.F 16.10 12.18 26.10

Profit Before Tax 679.50 543.62 954.
|_Income Tax 220.06 168.61 321.56

Profit After Tax 459.45 375.01 632.49

President and CEO
Page 12 of 14 Cradit Rating Information and Services Lid
‘(L-l_w %————"‘)——.
Mir Nasir Hossain h
Sarker  Md.“Masbaus Sunna
Managing Director Pazfmlg‘h::mncMMI Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ld. Ch
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- CRISL RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS
i LONG-TERM RATINGS OF CORPORATE
| RATING | DEFINITION _
Triple A Entity rated in this category Is adjudged to be of best quality, offer highest safety and have highest
credit quality, Risk factors are negiigible and risk free, nearest to risk free Government bonds and
i economic cdrcumstances are untikely to have any serious impact on this
8BB+, BBS, mmmmwuwummmdwmwmwec
. BBe- i obligations. This level of rating indicates that a company is under-performing In some
'mmmmmmmmumum\mmmmum
sgories. These enlities are however consigersd to have the capsbility 1o overcoma the above-
Entity rated in this cotegory is adjudged to lack key protection factors, which resuits in an
(Inadequate mmmmammsamwxmmmmw
Safety) MMMMMMM Overall quality may move up or down frequently within this
B+, 8, 8- mrmmmmnwmummmwwaﬁm
Single B mmsmu paired mmmswm mnmmrabdin
ECEA,CCE, | Ently rated in this category 1s adjudged to be vuineratle and might fa s
cce- kamwwmmwmmm gh c
Triple C mewmmmmmu
mm
_%.%_ Entity rated in this category |5 8djudged to be very highly vulnerable. Entity might not have
Double C mmmmﬂmwmmnmmmmhmmumm
(High repayment is subject to external support.
Vulneral
C+,C,C- | Entity rated in this category is adjudged to be with extremely speculative in timely repayment of
Single € financisl obiigaticns. This level of rating indicates entities with very serious problems and unless
{Extremely externat support i5 provided, they would be unable to meet financial obligations,
 EA——
i - Defauit Grade i
iml 3 atege ge pected to be in default,
Hote: For kong-Heem PGS, 5 . »mmum-wumwvummmn-
mmuwmmmgmum i 6F 1S penenc rating category. MMW“WMMM
ST-1 .Wmamm mmnmanammmu
sT-2
$T-3
sT-4 Moderate liquidity and other protection factors qualify an entity to be in investment grade, Risk
mmmum-amnmmm
M-WWM
e - : 57-8 Mmmmwhmmwmmm
ir Nasir Hossain e m = : i ; s
anaging Director S sl S s T S e e
Wir Akhter Hossain Lid.
T
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RATING
LirAAA
(birTripie A)
(Highest Safety)

birRA+, birAA, hir
AR~

(Doubie A)
{High Safety)
birA+, DIrk,

birA-

Loan/ Tated in this category sre adjudged to be extremely risky in Gmely

3 repayment/ fulfiling commitments. This level of rating indicates that the clients enjoying these

{Extremely Ioary facilities are with very serious problems and uniess extermal support is provided, they would
be unable to meet financial obligations.

. Speculative)
L Default Grade
(Default) Entities rated in this category are adjudged to be either alrendy In default or expected to be In
default.
BirST-1 certainty of timely payment. Short-term liquidity including internal fund generation is
very strong and access to alternative sources of funds Is cutstanding, Safety is almost like risk
Al 1l L.t LET™_oOhgationt
High
birST-2 High of timely payment. Liguidity factors are strong and supported by good
y 4 protection facti d TeLILNS 2y SITON.
BIST-3 MGMWAM" and pany fund als are sound.
Although ongoing funding needs may enlarge totsl finandng requirements, access to capital
BirET-4
birsT-5
DIST-6
Page 14 of 14 Vuzalfar Ahmed, seua s

President and CED
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Mir Nasir Hossain Parymat Kumes Sarker . =z
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